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TSL Jewellery and the
internationally acclaimed

fashion designer

IENNE TAM are

pleased to announce the
launch of the Vivienne

Tam for TSL Fine
Jewellery Collection.

liS (’()Hl(‘llll\()l'(ll‘\

collection is set to debut

on the runway of New
York FFashion Week
together with the
presentation of the

> 002 VIVIENNE TAM Spring

2013 fashion collection

al the

> Lincoln Center.

FRp 24 4 I VIVIENNE TAM
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JE s B E M Vivienne Tam
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TAM 2013 & E 4

for TSL Fine Jewellery

Collection -

VIVIENNE
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TSL Jewellery launched its latest branding campaign at Armani Aqua, Central. Pop diva Ms. Sammi Cheng,
together with Mrs. Annie Tse, Chairman & CEO and Mr. Tommy Tse, Deputy CEO - Supplies unveiled the
latest TV commercial short film “To love is to persevere” illustrating the new tagline

“The Artisan of Love™. Top models including Ms. Lisa S, Ms. Anna R, Ms. Eunis Chan and Ms. Stella Song
attended this spectacular event as well.
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TSL Jewellery celebrated its more
than 50 years of heritage with a
Trend-setting Craftsmanship
Exhibition at The Gardens Mall, Kuala
Lumpur. This week-long exhibition
showcased TSL Jewellery’s
stunning handerafted creations
throughout the brand’s history.

Mr. Tse Sui Luen, the Founder,
attended the event and shared his
passion and professionalism on
jewellery design over the years.
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TSL Jewellery
launched its Spring/
Summer 2012 Jewellery
Collections at The
Waterhouse at South
Bund of Shanghai.
With this season’s
theme of “Pulsating
Style, Dazzling
Seasons”, celebrity

Ms. Annie Liu and style
icon Ms. Linda Li were
invited to attend the
evenl to mark the
grandeur occasion.
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“To love is to persevere”
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JCDecaux Transport & MTR Corporation
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I‘yll‘ ll i MTR Advertising The Best of the Best Awards 2012
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{5\,‘&7 W"d[’ﬁ_l ¢ Best Use of Integrated Media - Gold Award
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Annual Report Awards
AR AETH

o Annual Report 2011/12: “My Moment”
Service Awards 20111128 : [My Moment.

HF’X%%IE MerComm, Inc.

The 26th International ARC Awards

Hong Kong Retail Management Association 526} International ARG Awards
S 7% T 122
T i A B i e Non-Traditional Annual Report: Retail: Jewelry - Gold Award
2012 Service & Courtesy Award G - B - PR - &8E
2012 £ £ HY B 38

2012 Galaxy Awards

® The Best Team Performance Award - Gold Award 2012 Galaxy Awards
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e The Supervisory Level of Watch & Jewellery Category e Annual Reports: Retail - Boutique & Specialty - Silver Award
S e e B O AL - AT ES SRV S SN

e The Junior Frontline Level of Watch & Jewellery Category ® Design: Annual Reports - Non-Traditional -
S B¢ e B 0 AL - S A Asia/Pacific - Bronze Award
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Turnover ks
B asweon

3,065

Profit attributable to owners
of the Company (HKS'M)
AN FBEA N BEAL BRI G mon

/2

Excluding a write-back of overprovision for tax disputes
of HK$46 million, profit was HK$130 million.

i B3 458 ] G B 2 2 45 A W 46,000,000 7T > FL A 2
#:% 130,000,000 7€ ©

Dividend per share (ks
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0.080
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Net assets attributable to owners
of the Company per share s,
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (HK$'M)

AR A T ARE ot i)

Turnover & 3% 3,563
Profit before tax BB fif 21 F 100
Profit for the year Z<4F i 1 72
Profit attributable to owners of the Company

AN FHEA N A 282 A 72

Per Share (HK$)

DA RERT (s 52)

Earnings & 0.34
Dividend i & 0.080
Dividend payout ratio Jk& L3R 23%
Net assets attributable to owners of the Company

AN R NG 4.70
Market price T1H 4.20

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (HK$'M)

R A SR DUEGE cemem i)

No. of shares (' M Shares) B BE#K (77 ) 210
Shareholders’ funds i % & 4> 989
Borrowings fi5 & 631
Cash at bank and in hand $R1777 3K X B 4 206
Debt to equity ratio f f& Ll % 64%

Market capitalization i {f 883

2012

3,359
236
181

162

0.77
0.152
20%

4.46
6.00

210
938
440
103
47%
1,262

2011

2,518
231
200

176*

0.84
0.147
18%

3.86
6.23

210
812
216
122
23%
1,310

2010

2,018
199
147

122

0.58
0.100
17%

2.98
2.20

210
627
150
177
21%
463

2009

1,959
160
124

105

0.50
0.050
10%

2.45
0.84

209
511
132
127
23%
175
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
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Chan Yue Kwong, Michael
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COMPANY SECRETARY
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Chan Yue Kwong, Michael
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espite having experienced a slowdown in growth
D in the retail jewellery market in Hong Kong and

Mainland China during the financial year under
review (“the Year”) which lead to a decline in the Group’s
overall business performance as against that of the
previous year, I am delighted to report that the Group
has continued to take a positive long term view of the
market by continuing to invest in its sales network, the
refinement of its product assortments, its brand
revitalization and the strengthening of its management
team capability in order to pave the way for it to achieve
its medium to longer term business strategies.

The Group saw a lift in its sales momentum during the
Year resulting from the enhancement of its product
assortment and the strategic refinement of its sales
network including store expansion and relocations. In
Hong Kong, we re-developed our jade assortment which
was well-received by our customers and we expanded
our product offerings in 24-karat gold and platinum in
order to further and better penetrate into the mass
market segment. In Mainland China, despite the fact that
we cautiously maintained the size of our sales network at
about the same overall level as that of the previous year,
newly opened stores showed encouraging results which
compensated for the slowdown in sales in some of our
stores situated in sunset locations. In addition, we went
through a re-alignment of our product assortment, aimed
at better penetrating the mass market and to pave the
way for the development of a bigger 24-karat gold
business there in the future. In terms of city strategies,
we will be looking into a business rejuvenation for the
top-tier cities with a focus on Beijing next year. We have
also been actively looking into various network expansion
opportunities across the country to achieve better market
penetration and brand exposure in coming years.
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Robust and persistent sales growth needs to be supported by
maintaining a differentiated brand position that can continually
enhance and increase consumers’ awareness over time. After more
than a decade of under-investment in the area of mass media
advertising, we launched a multi-media brand campaign, “The
Persistence of Love”, in the last quarter of the Year, which covered
mass media such as TV channels, on-line channels, theatres, print
media, outdoor billboards and public transport. The theme is a
manifestation of the TSL brand character of being persistent in
delivering exquisite design and craftsmanship, serving our customers
with extraordinary customer service, and facing various challenges
with determination — all living stories of TSL. With “Trend-setting
Craftsmanship [ JE FLLZE  #EAE | as the core of our positioning, a
new tagline of “The Artisan of Love” has been introduced to further
instill an emotional attachment into our brand. Credit should be given
to all staff members especially to our marketing teams and supply chain
for their tremendous and concerted efforts in launching this campaign,
which yielded encouraging results in raising our brand awareness.
Research confirms that the campaign has significantly improved our
brand consideration as well as the switching power of TSL from our
competitors.

Another strategic move by the Group was its first ever collaboration
with an international fashion designer, VIVIENNE TAM, with the
launch of the Vivienne Tam for TSL Fine Jewellery Collection, a total
integration of fashion and jewellery originating from the same design
concept. Following its debut on the runway of New York Fashion Week
at the VIVIENNE TAM Spring 2013 Fashion Show, a series of high
profile publicity campaigns by us have raised the corporate standing
and trend-setting image of TSL, putting us into the international
limelight. This strategic project enabled TSL to extend its footprint
beyond the traditional jewellery business to a completely new fashion-
conscious segment, customers from which have become interested in
patronizing TSL shops.
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During the Year, we successfully completed the acquisition of CORE
JEWELS, a Japanese life-style jewellery brand. CORE JEWELS
demonstrates a strong vision in respect to the life-style jewellery
segment and the trends therein, which will complement our core brand
positioning of “Trend-setting Craftsmanship [ JF ;L L2 #JE4% ] and
enrich our product assortment. We are currently undergoing a
preparation process with a view to launching this business in Hong
Kong and Mainland China at a later stage.

At the corporate level, I worked with my management team during the
Year to review our mid- to long-term corporate development strategies
with the aim of taking the Group to a new level. In support of these new
strategies, we have re-aligned the organization structure at top
management level with effect from 1 March 2013. In order to transform
the Group to a brand-led business at the front end, Mr. Lambert Chan
has been re-designated as Deputy Chief Executive Officer — Commercial.
At the back-end, Mr. Tommy Tse has been re-designated as Deputy
Chief Executive Officer — Supplies to lead the research and development
of jewellery manufacturing and organize the supply chain to support
the new “brand-led” front-end operations. In order to further
strengthen the sales and operations of the Group, Mr. Eddie Tsai, who
possesses rich experience in leading sizeable and international retail
chains, was appointed as Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Erwin Huang has
been re-designated as Chief Corporate Development Officer and is
responsible for strategy and corporate development. Mr. Lawrence Lai
and Ms. Brenda Chan remain as Chief Financial Officer and Chief
Talent Officer (formerly called Group HR Director) respectively. I am
confident that these organizational changes will enable us to further
leverage on my team’s respective strengths and take our business to
the next level.
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Looking ahead, the operating environment of the Group is expected to
remain challenging due to weakened consumer sentiment across our
operating regions and rising inflation in Mainland China. Due to
continuing global economic uncertainties and the recent instability of
the gold price, we shall continue to take a cautious approach to the
mitigation of risks. Nevertheless, we are confident of the continued
growth of domestic consumption in Mainland China over the medium
to long term, and are determined to establish a robust platform to
maximize our returns from this market. We are also determined to
drive for a major expansion of our sales network in order to achieve
significant growth in sales turnover. As such, we shall maintain a
cautious yet progressive approach in developing our business.

On a final note, I would like to express my sincere gratitude and
appreciation to all shareholders, board members, our conscientious
staff members, loyal customers, business partners and other
stakeholders for their continuing support and commitment to the
Group. As the leader of the Company, [ am committed to bring TSL to
new heights.

Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 May 2013
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RESULTS OF THE GROUP

For the financial year ended 28 February 2013, the consolidated
turnover of the Group grew by 6.1% to HK$3,563 million from
HK$3,359 million last year. Profit attributable to owners of the
Company was HK$72.2 million, representing a decline of 55.5% over
last year. Earnings per share for the year was 34.3 HK cents.

As a result of the investment in new stores and in the strengthening of
management to increase the Group’s capability for future business
improvement and development in the second half of 2012, overheads
increased by HK$15.3 million when compared to last year. During the
year, finance costs increased by HK$34.5 million mainly as a result of
the successful completion of the issue of HK$250 million in convertible
bonds to CDH King Limited (a member of CDH Investments) to broaden
the Group’s capital base and to raise the funds required for the further
development of the core jewellery business. At the end of 2012, the
Group invested HK$44.3 million in the brand campaign “The Artisan of
Love” to strengthen the brand positioning of the Group. Although the
initial increase in the cost of all these initiatives may have affected the
short term profitability of the Group, we believe these investments will
provide it with ongoing benefits in the years to come.
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As discussed in the interim report, this was a challenging year for the
jewellery business as the uncertain worldwide economic outlook and
the slow down of economic growth of Mainland China affected the
consumption atmosphere on luxury items, including jewellery. On the
other hand, the boom in the jewellery market that occurred in Hong
Kong and Mainland China in the preceding two years has had the effect
of driving up the rental and staff costs which have not yet adjusted
downward in line with the slower sales growth experienced this year.
Together with the above-mentioned investments for the medium and
longer term, the growth in turnover this year has not kept up with this
increase in costs and so has resulted in the decline of profitability in the
year under review.

In Hong Kong and Macau, the Group saw a lift in its sales momentum
due to an enhancement of the product assortment and the expansion of
our flagship store at Parklane in Tsim Sha Tsui. Sales turnover grew at
9.0% year on year and accounted for 63.1% of the Group’s sales
turnover. A new generation of store design was launched there, which
has attracted the interest and attention of the market. The previous
network expansion in the Mong Kok district has also contributed
positively throughout the year by improving our penetration into the
mass market, especially in the 24-karat gold business. Furthermore,
we re-entered the high-traffic shopping area in Sha Tin in December
2012, which is benefiting from the business of both Chinese tourists
and local consumers alike. Last but not least, the relocation of stores in
Tsuen Wan and Tuen Mun during the year have definitely improved
sales performance and brand exposure. Our showrooms also performed
well as tourists in Mainland China continue to spend in the
lower-price-point items.
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During the year we took a cautious approach to our store network
expansion in Mainland China due to the sluggish growth in the demand
for jewellery there and an internal re-alignment of business strategies,
however, we remain positive about the business development
opportunities in this high-growth country. Sales turnover in Mainland
China was stable because of the abatement of consumption atmosphere
in jewellery items. On the other hand, the 24-karat gold business was
started and has been nurtured during the year and we expect it to be
one of our major growth engines for this business in the medium to
long term. We have also reviewed our business strategy in respect to
the city of Beijing where a major revamp of the store network and
product assortment will take place next financial year aimed at
rejuvenating the business in this capital city. For other strategic
locations, we have been actively looking into various network expansion
opportunities for better penetration and brand exposure in coming
years.

The overall gross profit margin of the Group declined from 47.9% to
46.8% because of the shift in sales mix and the higher inventory cost
brought forward from last year being realized during the year.

Our quality and innovative culture have been well recognized by the
industry and the market. During the year, our consistent high standard
of customer services, once again, has brought us the honour of the Best
Team Performance Award — Gold Award in the 2012 Service &
Courtesy Award organized by the Hong Kong Retail Management
Association. Our brand campaigns “The Artisan of Love” launched at
the end of 2012 has not only generated a lot of awareness from
consumers but has also won the Best Use of Integrated Media
Campaign - Gold Award in MTR Best of the Best Advertising Awards
2012.
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Looking ahead, the current economic uncertainties of the world
economy have made some parts of our business environment stay
volatile. In this respect, the sharp decrease of approximately 15% in the
gold price that occurred in mid-April 2013 caused a “gold-rush” that
month with buyers rushing in to buy resulting in sales turnover of
24-karat gold doubling over that of the previous month. Thanks to the
strategy of fast inventory turnover and frequent replenishment of
24-karat gold to hedge against fluctuations in market prices, the
increase in gross profit from sales of 24-karat gold was more than
enough to offset the losses incurred on the sale of our older inventory.
This resulted in an overall increase in the contribution from this
product category during April 2013. The weighted average 24-karat
gold cost of the Group at the end of April 2013 had also been restored
back to HK$13,844 per tael which was close to the then market prices
of HK$13,800 per tael.

We maintain the view that the growth of the economy and hence the
home consumption of Mainland China, albeit at a slower rate, will
continue and will eventually offset the unfavourable effects on the
consumption atmosphere caused by the lingering economic
uncertainties in US and Europe. The Group will continue to cautiously
invest in and enhance its brand, inventory, store network and human
resources in order to further develop its “Trend-setting Craftsmanship
[JEFLT2E  #iRIEAE | position to capitalize on future market growth
as and when such opportunities arise.

FINANCE, LIQUIDITY,
CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND GEARING

Capital expenditure, comprising mainly store renovation and
expansion, furniture and fixtures and machineries, incurred during the
year amounted to approximately HK$49.1 million (2012: HK$67.1
million), which was mainly financed by borrowings and funds
generated from internal resources.
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As at 28 February 2013, the Group’s interest bearing liabilities
increased to HK$631 million from HK$440 million as at 29 February
2012 mainly as a result of the completion of the issue of HK$250
million in convertible bonds to CDH King Limited in April 2012 which
was to provide funding for general corporate development and working
capital requirements of the Group. The gearing ratio (ratio of total
interest bearing liability to total equity) increased to 63.9% from 46.9%
and is at a healthy level. All borrowings of the Group are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. Interest on bank borrowings are calculated on
either the inter-bank interest rate or the prime rate while the interest
on convertible bonds is fixed.

As at 28 February 2013, the Group had cash and bank balances and
undrawn banking facilities of approximately HK$206 million and
HK$33 million respectively which, in the opinion of the directors,
should be sufficient for the Group’s present working capital
requirements.

EXCHANGE RATES

During the year, the transactions of the Group were mainly
denominated in local currencies and US dollars. The impact of the
fluctuation of foreign exchange rates of these currencies to the Group is
minimal.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

(a)

()

As at 28 February 2013, debentures have been executed by the
Group in favour of its banker charging, by way of fixed and
floating charges, all of the undertakings, properties and assets of
the Company and of its 11 subsidiaries as security for, inter alia,
all obligations and liabilities, actual or contingent, from time to
time owing by the Group to the banker. Rental revenue of the
Group is also charged in favour of the Group’s banker.

As at 28 February 2013, the Company and 6 of its subsidiaries (the
“Subsidiaries”) have executed a second floating charge and the
Company made a guarantee to the Subsidiaries and there was a
cross guarantee among the Subsidiaries in favour of Rosy Blue
Hong Kong Limited to pledge all of the Subsidiaries’ respective
rights to and title and interest from time to time in their
inventories or stock-in-trade and their receivables from their
overseas fellow subsidiaries in connection with the sales and
supply of any inventory or stock-in-trade to such overseas fellow
subsidiaries as a continuing security for the debts. As at

28 February 2013, the debts amounted to HK$112,911,000

(at 29 February 2012: HK$170,692,000).

45 0 2 kA

(a)

(b)
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at
28 February 2013.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 28 February 2013, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 3,340 (2012: 3,800). The decrease was mainly in
sales operations, production and administration departments as a
result of a conscious decision to streamline the structure and to build a
more efficient team for future business expansion.

Employees are rewarded on a performance basis with reference to
market rates. Other employee benefits include medical cover and
subsidies for job-related continuing education. The Group also has an
employee share option scheme. No options were granted pursuant to
the scheme during the year. Subsequent to the year ended 28 February
2013, options were granted to provide incentive to certain directors,
employees and service providers as disclosed in the announcement of
the Company on 1 March 2013.

Retail frontline staff is provided with formal on-the-job training by
internal seniors and external professional trainers. There are
discussions and in-house seminars for experience sharing.
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Tse Sui Luen, aged 76, the
Group’s Founder. Mr. Tse
provides general advisory &
strategic advice to the Group.
He was the Chairman of the
Group from 1987 to 2000 and
re-joined the Group in
September 2011. He is a
veteran jewellery expert
having over 50 years of
experience in jewellery
industry. He has a wide range
of experience in gem setting,
quality control, administration,
operations, management and
marketing. He also has very
good personal networks with
the peers and suppliers, which
facilitate the Group’s business
development. He is the father
of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy,
the Deputy Chief Executive
Officer - Supplies and the
controlling shareholder of the
Group, and the father-in-law
of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, the
Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group.
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Executive Director
HATES

Yau On Yee, Annie, aged 42, is the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group. She joined the Group in
2002, and became an Executive Director
in 2006. In the early years at the Company,
she pioneered the Group’s Jewellery ERP
discipline and modernised the Company’s
management through business process
re-engineering. Prior to joining the Group,
she worked for multi-national companies
such as Motorola Semiconductors and
IBM. She has over 20 years of
management experience in the United
States and Hong Kong. She is a director of
Partner Logistics Limited which has
discloseable interests in the Company
under provisions of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance. She graduated from
Boston University, USA and holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Computer
Engineering. Ms. Yau is the spouse of Mr.
Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the Deputy Chief
Executive Officer — Supplies and the
controlling shareholder of the Group, and
the daughter-in-law of Mr. Tse Sui Luen,
the Founder of the Group.
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Executive Director
PATES

Erwin Steve Huang, aged 47,
is the Deputy Chairman and
the Chief Corporate
Development Officer of the
Group. He is responsible for
new corporate business
developments and
organisational growth and the
tourist showroom operation of
the Group. He was the Chief
Executive Officer of the
Company for the period from
24 April 2008 to 28 February
2010. Prior to joining the
Group in 2005, he was a
seasoned entrepreneur in
different industries, including
publishing, education, telecom
and information technology.
Mr. Huang has built and
developed multiple companies
in London, San Francisco,
Tokyo and Hong Kong in the
past years. He holds double
degrees in Business Operation
Management and Management
Information System from
Boston University, USA.
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Executive Director
HATES

Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence, aged
47, is the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary
of the Group. He is
responsible for the overall
finance and administration of
the Group. Mr. Lai graduated
from The University of Hong
Kong and holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Social Sciences. He
also holds a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from
The Chinese University of
Hong Kong. He is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the
Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom. Before
joining the Group in 2001, he
had over 10 years of
experience in a listed company
in Hong Kong and an
international accounting firm.
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Non-Executive
Director
FHATES

Wang Guosheng, aged 34, has been a
Non-executive Director of the Company
since 23 July 2012. Mr. Wang is
currently a director of CDH King
Limited, which has substantial
interests in the convertible bonds in an
aggregate amount of HK$250,000,000
of the Company. He is currently an
executive director in the private equity
team of CDH group. He holds a
bachelor degree in Economics from
University of International Business
and Economics in Mainland China and
a master degree in Business
Administration from INSEAD in
France. Mr. Wang has over 11 years of
experiences in accounting and
financial sector. Prior to joining CDH
group in 2005, he worked for other
companies including KPMG, China
International Capital Corporation and
IDG Venture Capital. Mr. Wang is a
director of Luxi Chemical Group Co.,
Ltd. and a number of other private
companies.
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Independent
Non-Executive
Director
AL IE AT E SR

Chui Chi Yun, Robert, aged 56,
has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company
since 12 April 1999. Mr. Chui is a
practising Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong. He
holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Commerce (Major in Accounting)
and is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United
Kingdom. Mr. Chui is also an
independent non-executive
director of each of National Arts
Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8228), Wing Lee Property
Investments Limited (Stock Code:
864) and was an independent non-
executive director of 21 Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1003), all of
which are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
He is also a director of a number
of private companies and
associations.
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Independent
Non-Executive
Director
AL IE AT E SR

Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin, aged 48, has
been an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company since 30 November 2008. Mr.
Heng is the Managing Partner and Responsible
Officer of Jades Capital Management Limited.
He was a Managing Director of The Royal Bank
of Scotland, Hong Kong and a director of HSBC
Securities (Asia) Limited and various financial
institutions. He has extensive banking
experience specializing in equity derivatives
and investment products. He has held senior
positions in several major private financial
institutions in Hong Kong and had been
registered with the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority as Executive Officer and the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission as
Responsible Officer carrying out various
regulated activities. Mr. Heng holds a Master
degree of Arts in Mathematics & Management
Studies from the University of Cambridge,
England. He is a fellow member of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors, and a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
Hong Kong. He is also a director of a number
of private companies.
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Independent
Non-Executive
Director

B IERATE S

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 61, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 25 August 2010. Mr. Chan is
currently the Chairman and Non-executive Director of Café de Coral
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 341), the Non-executive Director of Tao
Heung Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 573) and the Independent Non-
executive Director of each of Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1888), Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1382) and
Starlite Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 403), all of which are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He has worked as a professional
town planner with government bodies in Hong Kong and Canada. He holds
a double major degree in Sociology and Political Science, a Master degree in
City Planning from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary
Doctorate degree in Business Administration, as well as being bestowed the
Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University. He is also a member of the
Political Consultative Committee of Nanshan District, Shenzhen in the
People’s Republic of China. Mr. Chan has many years of professional
experience in the public sector and over 25 years of management
experience in the food and catering industry. He is an Executive Committee
Member of the Hong Kong Retail Management Association, the General
Committee Member of the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, the Adviser
of the Quality Tourism Services Association, a Governor of the Canadian
Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong, the Honorary Chairman of the Hong
Kong Institute of Marketing, and the Chairman of the Business Enterprise
Management Centre of the Hong Kong Management Association. In the
public sector, Mr. Chan is appointed by the HKSAR Government as member
of the Hong Kong Tourism Board and member of the Business Facilitation
Advisory Committee.
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Independent
Non-Executive
Director

B IEATE SR

Chow Chee Wali, Christopher, aged 46, has been
an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 1 March 2013. Mr. Chow is the
Founding Partner of TCC Capital, an advisory and
private equity fund management company. He
holds a Diploma of Investment and Finance from
The Securities Institute of Australia, a Bachelor of
Economics degree from The University of Sydney
and is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chow
has over 20 years’ experience in auditing and
merger and acquisition advisory. Prior to founding
TCC Capital, he worked for two of the “Big Four”
international accounting firms in Sydney, Hong
Kong and Beijing and was the Partner in charge of
the mergers and acquisitions practice. He possesses
in-depth understanding of financial and capital
markets and has built up substantial experience in
advising multinational companies, state owned
enterprises and private companies in Hong Kong
and Mainland China on a number of direct
investments, and mergers and acquisitions
transactions.

J i BUAE468 0 A 20134E3 A 1 AR IAT AL 7
SEIEATHE TR o R ek By ak i R RL S R R S S A ]
TCC Capital 19 8l #F & 8 A o 0 £ 4 1 M 3% & & (The
Securities Institute of Australia) it 4% & & 4% C il ~ &
JE RSB PHBE BN R FWGFMATEE - Fkd
TE 3w S W DR 5 5t 7 T A AE 20 48 K888 o AE Al 5L TCC
Capital Z Aif > 15 1% 5k 7 v [H] 120 B 00 K € 5 e s B - 4
TREERE » Fs At > WA FH AN A Y
N o At 34 R B AS TS5 R 2 5Bk - S E) i HL
SRR > 0 T s R B A Y A D B AR R
A FENEAT BA TS TR > $RAMAT B AR R O W 5 5 S T
MHEERR -

>031






S

»uﬂf

~

0, ER T
uy(
JOITUI

\
TUIUIISD

Deputy Chief Executive Officer —
Supplies
RIAT B - B b

Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, aged 45, is the Group’s Deputy
Chief Executive Officer — Supplies. He is responsible for
strengthening the capability of the Group’s merchandising
and supplies function as well as meeting the business units’
merchandising needs. Mr. Tse joined the Group after
returning from the U.S. in 1994. He was the Chairman of
the Group from 2000 to 2008 and was, during that time,
responsible for the Group’s overall strategy and business
development. He re-joined the Group in September 2011.
Mr. Tse graduated from Boston University and holds a
Bachelor of Science (Business Administration) degree,
Bachelor of Science (Mathematics) degree, and Master of
Arts (Mathematics) degree. He is a director of Partner
Logistics Limited and Blink Technology Limited which have
discloseable interests in the Company under provisions of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance. He is the son of Mr.
Tse Sui Luen, the Founder of the Group, the spouse of Ms.
Yau On Yee, Annie, the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, and is the controlling shareholder of
the Group.
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Limited /% Blink Technology Limited 54 224 m) 2 20 T 4% % 2 Ik
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5L IR A AR S PR R AT BB AR IR R L 2 WA - NI Ay AR S
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Deputy Chief Executive Officer —
Commercial

AT B - 2685

Chan Lap Yip, Lambert, aged 47, is the Group’s Deputy
Chief Executive Officer — Commercial. He is responsible for
the Group’s corporate planning, brand and product
management, group marketing and corporate
communications. Prior to joining the Group in March 2010,
Mr. Chan had over 25-year proven track record in sales
and marketing. He has extensive experience in strategic
planning, branding and business development across a
diverse range of industries. He has held executive positions
in premier corporations including DBS Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited, The Hong Kong Tourism Board and Hong Kong
Telecom. Mr. Chan graduated from The University of
Toronto in 1986 and holds a Bachelor of Arts degree. He
has furthered his studies at a number of well-renowned
academic institutions including INSEAD in France,
Tsinghua University in China and Hong Kong Baptist
University. He is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Marketing.
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Chief Talent Officer
N T ERAE

Chan Oi Lai, Brenda, aged 54, is the Group’s Chief Talent
Officer. She is responsible for the Human Resources and training
function of the Group. She has extensive experience in staffing,
compensations & benefits, employee engagement, organisation
development and change management. Before joining the Group
in August 2011, she has held senior positions in different
reputable corporations including The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited, The Hong Kong Tourism Board,
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited and Hong Kong
Telecom. Ms. Chan graduated from The Chinese University of
Hong Kong and holds a Bachelor degree in Business
Administration. She also holds a Master degree in Counseling,
conferred by Monash University in Australia.

BESETE - BUFE 5458 > AEMZ N ERBE - WA AEMA T GIRE
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Chief Operating Officer
T AR

Tsai Ping Wai, Eddie, aged 47, is the Group’s Chief Operating
Officer. He heads up the Group’s Sales & Operations and is
responsible for driving and delivering sales and quality customer
service as well as developing distribution channels for business
growth. Mr. Tsai has a wealth of luxury retail management and
business development experience across the Asia Pacific region.
He graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and
also holds an Executive Master Degree of Business
Administration from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsai
started his career as a retail trainee where he gained solid sales
and operations experience. Before joining the Group in
February 2013, he has held key management positions in
reputable organizations including Duty Free Shoppers and
Richemont Asia Pacific.
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Report of the Directors
wmHRFHREHE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”) have
pleasure in presenting their annual report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the geographical locations of the operations of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) during the financial year is
set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 28 February 2013 and the
states of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 108 to 211.

A final dividend of 7 HK cents per ordinary share, amounting to a total
final dividend of approximately HK$14,724,000 (2012: HK$26,292,000)
for the year ended 28 February 2013 is to be proposed for
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on Tuesday, 23 July 2013 (the “2013 AGM”).
This, together with the interim dividend of 1 HK cent per ordinary
share paid on Wednesday, 9 January 2013, will amount to a total
dividend of 8 HK cents per ordinary share for the year (2012: 15.2 HK
cents per ordinary share).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
19 July 2013 to Tuesday, 23 July 2013 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered, for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the 2013
AGM. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the 2013 AGM, all
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Branch Share Registrar,
Tricor Secretaries Limited of 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong Time) on
Thursday, 18 July 2013.

Upon the approval by shareholders at the 2013 AGM, the proposed
final dividend will be paid on Wednesday, 11 September 2013 to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on Wednesday, 31 July 2013. The Register of Members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 29 July 2013 to Wednesday, 31
July 2013 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares will be registered, for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’
entitlement to the proposed final dividend. In order to be qualified for
the proposed final dividend, all completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
Branch Share Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited of 26/F., Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m.
(Hong Kong Time) on Friday, 26 July 2013.

SHARE CAPITAL AND PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-Laws or the laws in Bermuda.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$360,000 (2012: HK$601,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and of the Company during the year are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in
Equity and note 30 to the financial statements respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 28 February 2013, the five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s turnover. The five
largest suppliers in aggregate and the largest supplier of the Group
accounted for approximately 69% and 37% respectively by value of the
Group’s total purchases.

As set out in note 35(a) to the financial statements, Rosy Blue Hong
Kong Limited, one of the Group’s five largest suppliers, is a subsidiary
of Prime Investments S.A., which is a preference shareholder of Partner
Logistics Limited (the Company’s controlling shareholder).

Except for the above, at no time during the year have the directors,
their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which, to the
knowledge of the directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any interest (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”,
respectively)) in these major customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Erwin Steve Huang (Deputy Chairman & Chief Corporate Development Officer)
Lai Tsz MO, Lawrence (Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary)

Non-executive Director
Wang Guosheng (appointed on 23 July 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Chow Chee Wai, Christopher (appointed on 1 March 2013)

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Bye-Laws and to
comply with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, Messrs. Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence, Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael and Chow Chee Wai, Christopher will retire as directors at the
2013 AGM. Mr. Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence, being eligible, will offer himself
for re-election as an Executive Director of the Company for a term of
three years and Messrs. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Chow Chee
Wai, Christopher, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company for a term of
three years respectively. All other directors continue in office for the
ensuing year.

Each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors has provided a
written confirmation in respect of the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules concerning his independence to the Company. The Board
considers each of the four Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2013 AGM has a service
contract with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 28 February 2013, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive and/or their respective associates of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be entered in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”), were as follows:

Interests and long positions in issued shares of the Company
A F] B E AT IR A A 2 I A

HH R EEITERN BN A A F
2 IBEBY ~ LI By D A s
RELE SR

R20134F2H 28 H » ANFIHE R LfemiT
BN B B s % 5 2 AT N
MR R 5 M BRI XVERSE 7 K 843
T S A N ) B A8 T (AL AR DA L e ]
A BRGSO B 4 32 B R B MR A R
) I AR 2 ) B AR i 2 m) (e 95 M
BARIEE XV HE 2 2 26) ey ~ AR B 0y e A
RERE B RE 2 SR - BZEAR IR A b e 9 5
352 B RO A AIAE B2 B it - siZE
PR b7 24 B G AT AN HEAT 38 45 58 5 B A e <
S (AR Sy ) 1) Ry A ) B0 A8 BT AR 2
1&%&{7%54\ (Fic 8 5 B0 B A ) 55

VERZ B FE) By ~ R B A7y B (A o 11
ﬁé&‘?&ﬁ!{ﬂ? :

4

il

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each
TR 0.25 7T E IR

Derivative

it TR HE 47

Personal Family Corporate interest
Name of Director interest interest interest (share options)
ERUEA A £R Rt NG £ (W ICHE)
Yau On Yee, Annie 100,000 152,960,914 -
IS (Note Hfit)
Erwin Steve Huang 100,000 - -
Rk
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence 200,000 - -
BIR
* The percentage was calculated based on 210,336,221 ordinary shares in issue as at

28 February 2013.

Approximate
percentage of
Short Other total issued
interest interest  share capital*
fh 2 EAT A
wE Hibs: SEMOETIL
- - 72.77%

- - 0.05%

- - 0.10%

* T4y LR 2013412 1 28 H E#817 210,336,221 it
Trm et o



Note:

These ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and
controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Blink Technology Limited is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy, the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an Executive Director of the
Company. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is deemed to be interested in all the shares
held by Partner Logistics Limited.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2013, none of the
Company’s directors, chief executive and their respective associates,
had any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which required notification
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which any
such director or chief executive is taken or deemed to have taken under
such provisions of the SFO); or which were required pursuant to section
352 of the SFO to be entered into the register maintained by the
Company; or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code
contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company or the
Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 28 February 2013, the interests, all being long positions, of any
substantial shareholders or other persons (not being directors or chief
executive of the Company) in the shares and/or underlying shares of
the Company which have been disclosed to the Company pursuant to
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and have been
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

T B B oAl N L R AN
Jie A o R B JBe A7 v B AT RO HE 2

R

201342 H 28 H » AFfa] 3= %2 it 2 k- HoAth
AN (I AR A 7)) FE B sl de = ATIBON B 75
AN TRy o,/ SR B A B AR TR B
I3 S A B A5 810 56 XV B 55 2 B 343 B K

AN FIVE R - M BRI RS I O B 1k
155 336 MR FDA A w17 00 B 5T R Y
s (BB T -

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each

A BT P W 0.25 T 1 3 ik

Approximate
percentage of
Number of total issued
Name Capacity ordinary shares share capital*
I E AT
A S0y A Iy e WEZ)H 43 L *
@ Partner Logistics Limited (Note M7t 1) Beneficial owner 152,960,914 72.72%
JE X/ ZEDN
(ii) Blink Technology Limited (Note Mfit 1) Interest of controlled corporation 152,960,914 72.72%
Z RN I REAR
(iii)  Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (Note Mfi 1) Interest of controlled corporation 152,960,914 72.72%
A I ZPEW A F HE A
Deemed interest 100,000 0.05%
WA A HE A
(iv) Prime Investments S.A. (Note 7t 2) Interest of controlled corporation 152,960,914 72.72%
Z RN I REAR
) Rosy Blue Investments S.a.r.l. (Note ffi# 2) Interest of controlled corporation 152,960,914 72.72%

SR O AR AR



(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

Notes:

Name

i

Asiya Trust Co. Pte. Limited (Note it 2)
(Formerly known as Hif Osiya Trust
Co. Pte. Limited)

Viraj Russell Mehta (Note fl7t 2)
CDH King Limited (Notes M7 3 & 5)
CDH Fund 1V, L.P. (Note Mffit 5)
CDH IV Holdings Company Limited

(Note Kfit 5)

China Diamond Holdings IV, L.P.
(Note M7t 5)

China Diamond Holdings Company
Limited (Note it 5)

Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each
B T s 0.25 TG 1Y 54 i

Capacity

gl

Interest of controlled corporation

ZHEW o wHE £
Interest of controlled corporation
ZAEM o wHE £

Beneficial owner

A A

Interest of controlled corporation
e wHE £

Interest of controlled corporation
AR A AR A

Interest of controlled corporation

TV 7R

Interest of controlled corporation
ST A TR A

The percentage was calculated based on 210,336,221 ordinary shares in issue as at *

28 February 2013.

These ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and 1.
controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Blink Technology Limited is wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy. the spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie, an Executive
Director of the Company. By virtue of the SFO, Blink Technology Limited, Ms. Yau On Yee,
Annie (her deemed interest is disclosed under the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company”)
and Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy are deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Partner

Logistics Limited.

These 100,000 ordinary shares are held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie resulting from the
exercise of share options on 10 July 2009. Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie is an Executive Director of
the Company and the spouse of Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Tse Tat
Fung, Tommy is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie.

Approximate
percentage of

Number of total issued
ordinary shares share capital*
I AT
A B
A e e B E R 43 He *
152,960,914 72.72%
152,960,914 72.72%
68,999,034 32.80%
(Notes Mftit 3 & 4)
68,999,034 32.80%
(Notes [ffi# 3 & 4)
68,999,034 32.80%
(Notes [ffit 3 & 4)
68,999,034 32.80%
(Notes [ffit 3 & 4)
68,999,034 32.80%
(Notes [ff7# 3 & 4)

T3 LRI 2013 4F 2 J1 28 H L8817 210,336,221 it
W ©

UEZ5 A R i Partner Logistics Limited 144 » a% 2\ ]
7 I SE L (7 A 4N A AT T 4 2 B
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by Partner Logistics Limited.

3. Pursuant to the subscription agreement dated 31 March 2012 (the “Subscription
Agreement”) entered into between the Company and CDH King Limited (“CDH”), the
Company has issued to CDH, a principal amount of HK$250,000,000 five-year term
convertible bonds (the “Tranche 1 Bonds”) on 20 April 2012 under which CDH would convert
the Tranche 1 Bonds into 39,062,500 ordinary shares of the Company with an initial

conversion price at HK$6.40 per share during the conversion period.

Immediately after the full conversion of the Tranche 1 Bonds, the shareholding percentage
of CDH in the enlarged share capital of the Company would become 15.66% and of parties (i)
to (vii) would change from 72.72% to 61.33%. Details of which are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 31 March 2012 and note 26 to thefinancial statements of this annual

report.

Under the Subscription Agreement, the Company has an option to elect to issue to CDH, and
CDH has conditionally agreed to subscribe for Tranche 2 bonds convertible into shares of the
Company in an aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000 (the “Tranche 2 Bonds”).
The conversion price of the Tranche 2 Bonds shall initially be the lower of (i) 110% of the
average of the volume-weighted average price quoted by the Stock Exchange, or, as the case
may be, by an alternative stock exchange, for one share for the twenty (20) consecutive
trading days immediately preceding the date on which the Company delivers the notice for
issuance of Tranche 2 Bonds (the “VWAP”); and (ii) ten (10) times the normalized 2012
Earnings (the earnings per share of the Company as publicly announced by the Company for
the financial year ended on 28 February 2013). In accordance with the corporate substantial
shareholder notices filed by CDH, on the basis that the notice for issuance of Tranche 2
Bonds was given on the date of the Subscription Agreement (such that the VIWAP would be
HK$6.0735), and that the amount which is 10 times the normalized earnings per share of
the Company as publicly announced by the Company for the financial year ended on 29
February 2012 (which is HK$7.72) was adopted as the comparative amount instead of the
2012 Earnings, the conversion price of the Tranche 2 Bonds would be 110% of the VIWAP,
equivalent to HK$6.6808 per share. Assuming full conversion of the Tranche 2 Bonds at
HK$6.6808 per share, the Tranche 2 Bonds would be convertible into 29,936,534 ordinary

shares of the Company.

1V, L.P., which in turn is owned as to 1% by China Diamond Holdings Company Limited.

These ordinary shares are held by Partner Logistics Limited, a company which is owned and
controlled by Blink Technology Limited. Prime Investments S.A. is the preference
shareholder of Partner Logistics Limited. Prime Investments S.A. is owned as to 99.83% by
Rosy Blue Investments S.a.r.l., which in turn is wholly owned by Asiya Trust Co. Pte.
Limited, which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Viraj Russell Mehta. By virtue
of the SFO, each of Prime Investments S.A., Rosy Blue Investments S.a.r.l., Asiya Trust Co.
Pte. Limited and Mr. Viraj Russell Mehta, is deemed to be interested in all the shares held

CDH is wholly-owned by CDH Fund IV, L.P., which in turn is owned as to 0.07% by CDH IV
Holdings Company Limited, which in turn is owned as to 80% by China Diamond Holdings

o
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Other than as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2013, the Company
had not been notified of any persons who had interests or short
positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company,
which were required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of
information on directors of the Company are as follows:

- Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert has been appointed as independent
non-executive director of Wing Lee Property Investments Limited
(Stock Code: 864) with effect from 6 February 2013.

- Mr. Erwin Steve Huang has been re-designated as the Chief
Corporate Development Officer of the Company with effect from 1
March 2013. He remains as the Deputy Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company.

- Mr. Chow Chee Wai, Christopher has been appointed as
independent non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 1 March 2013. His biographical details are set out in the
“Directors & Senior Management Profile” section.

Changes in directors’ emoluments during the financial year are set out
in note 10 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted by shareholders of
the Company on 26 November 2003 (2003 Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to participants thereunder for their contribution to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group
and any entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”).
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Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
are authorised, at their discretion, at any time following the date of the
adoption of the 2003 Share Option Scheme but before the tenth
anniversary of that date, to offer options to any person belonging to any
of the following classes of participants to subscribe for shares of the
Company:

any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including
any executive directors but not any non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any
Invested Entity; and

any shareholder or any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity.
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The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the
shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer of the grant and the average closing price of the shares on
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer of the grant. An offer of an option shall be deemed to
have been accepted within 28 days from the date of offer upon
acceptance of the option duly signed by the grantee together with a
remittance of HK$1. The maximum number of securities available for
issue under the 2003 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The maximum entitlement of each
grantee in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary shares
in issue of the Company. The option period will not be more than ten
years from the date of grant of the option and the Company’s board of
directors may at its discretion determine the minimum period for
which the option has to be held or other restriction before the exercise
of the subscription right attaching thereon.

As at 28 February 2013, there was no outstanding share option under
the 2003 Share Option Scheme. No share options were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.

Subsequent to the year ended 28 February 2013, the Company has
granted share options to the grantees entitling them to subscribe for a
maximum total of 15,850,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each of the
Company. Details of the grant of options have been disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 1 March 2013 in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Except for the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed hereunder, there was no connected transactions or
contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company or
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year and up to the date of this report.

As at 28 February 2013, (i) Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (“Mr. Tommy
Tse”), the substantial shareholder of the Company and the spouse of
Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (“Ms. Annie Yau”), the Executive Director of the
Company, was employed by a subsidiary of the Company as the Chief
Merchandising Officer; and (ii) Mr. Tse Sui Luen (“Mr. Tse Senior”), the
father of Mr. Tommy Tse and father-in-law of Ms. Annie Yau, was
employed by a subsidiary of the Company as the Founder (collectively,
the “CCTs”). Details of the transactions have been disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 22 June 2012 and as set out in note
35(c) to the financial statements.

The Company’s independent auditor, RSM Nelson Wheeler, Certified
Public Accountants (“RSM”) was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. RSM has issued
an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect
of the CCTs disclosed by the Group in accordance with Main Board
Listing Rule 14A.38. A copy of the letter issued by RSM has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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The CCTs above have been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive
Directors who have confirmed that the transactions had been entered
into:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
(b) on normal commercial terms; and

(¢c) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Certain significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 28 February 2013, which do not constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules are disclosed in note 35
to the financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 28 February 2013.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

Details of the movements in convertible bonds of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

Other than the share options under the 2003 Share Option Scheme as
disclosed above and the convertible bonds as disclosed in the financial
statements, the Company had no other outstanding convertible
securities, options or similar rights as at 28 February 2013.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 28
February 2013 are set out in notes 24 to 26 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 212 to 213 of the
annual report.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group are shown on pages
214 to 215 of the annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000. The cap of monthly relevant income has been increased to
HK$25,000 on 1 June 2012.

The Group also participates in defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes for all qualifying employees in the People’s Republic of China,
Malaysia and Japan. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of independent
trustees.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during
the year ended 28 February 2013 amounted to HK$8,204,000
representing contributions payable by the Group to the schemes at the
appropriate rates set by the local government of the subsidiaries.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors as at the date of this report, the Company
has maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 56 to 105.

AUDIT, REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEES

Information on the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
of the annual report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of which are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
28 February 2013 have been audited by RSM. RSM was appointed as
the auditor of the Company on 21 January 2011 to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Moore Stephens. The term of office
of RSM will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting.

RSM will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Board has resolved, with the recommendation from Audit
Committee, to propose the appointment of Ernst & Young as new
independent auditors to fill the vacancy following the retirement of
RSM at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
Yau On Yee, Annie
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 May 2013
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Corporate Governance Report
REBREE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good governance
practices and procedures. During the year ended 28 February 2013,
the Company has applied the principles and complied with all of the
code provisions and some recommended best practices of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) (the
“Former Code”) and the Corporate Governance Code (effective from 1
April 2012) (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”,
respectively), except for the deviation of code provision A.2.1 of the
Former Code and CG Code as expressly set forth under the relevant
paragraph of the table below.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is pleased to present the following
corporate governance practices of the CG Codes adopted by the Group
during the year ended 28 February 2013:

A.DIRECTORS
A.1The Board
Code Principle
The board should assume responsibility for its leadership and
control of the company; and be responsible for promoting the
success of the company by directing and supervising the
company’s affairs.
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A.1.1 | The board should hold at least four Yes Four Board Meetings were held during the year.
board meetings a year.
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMRRE =EERE adopted by the Group
<FRIESC AEBRANEEERER
A.1.2 | All directors are given an opportunity Yes Agenda for regular Board Meetings are sent to
to include matters in the agenda for all Directors in advance and they are given
regular board meetings. opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
discussion in the Board Meetings.
ERERT ARG R TIAE R G P Gyl S e R IR ITE L 3 R ]
GURE T VRS B 5 AAH B I > UL S i R Rl o
A.1.3 | Atleast 14 days  notice be given of a Yes Timetable for regular Board Meetings are
regular board meeting. scheduled well in advance to facilitate and
maximize the attendance and participation of
Directors whilst reasonable notices are given for
all other Board Meetings.
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A.1.4 | Minutes of board meetings and Yes All minutes of Board Meetings and Committee
board committee meetings should be Meetings and/or written resolutions are kept by
kept by a duly appointed secretary of the Company Secretary of the Company (the
the meeting and open for inspection. “Company Secretary”) or the secretary of the
board committee and they are open for
inspection upon reasonable request by any
Director.
BIER BT ool B A E g R P VIREE & - &R Rk Vi YOG IR {E RN

BT ZB GG AWARA NG
A ALER LA B -

SRV RBRE (TAFAE ) & B e s i
TEAL T o 2 8% Hh 5 B 2EOR T A BAT B B sk A Bk i
B o
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Summary of Code Provisions

SRR B E

Compliance
2EMS
<F A5 XX

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRANEEERER

A1.5

Minutes of board meetings and
board committee meetings should
record sufficient details, concerns
raised and dissenting views. Draft
and final minutes should be sent to
all directors for comment and
records within a reasonable time.

g B N & B e AL BRI R
BRRSIFER > GLIE AT IR A BE 5 S B
BR o SRR ERR VIR B o AR R 2K
R DU SR o B ] A R
R ALk o

Yes

R

Minutes of the Board Meetings and the
Committee Meetings have been recorded in
sufficient details in respect of the matters
considered by the Directors and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by
Directors or dissenting views expressed. Draft
and final minutes were sent to all Directors for
comments and records within a reasonable time.

ERGHELE R GTERN GRS CRFEM
FLBRA T R MR ROE - AR R
H A o] B B B R Y ST R o R AC BRI A
Bl A C R & B N g8 i DI
RIET A KA -

A1.6

Agreed procedure for directors to
seek independent professional advice
at company’s expense.

G A ERT - SRR
BT AR AT AT -

Yes

piui

There are procedures to enable the Directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Ol TR 7 Sl e 5 B EOR - BRI L R
S A B AR F ST o




Summary of Code Provisions

SFRIROBER

Compliance
2BHE
PRI ST

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRANEEERER

A1.7

If a substantial shareholder/director
has a conflict of interest in a material
matter, board meeting should be
held.

A EEOR R ERFIALFAF
ELIE R Y A i R e
o

Yes

Ho

If a substantial shareholder/Director has a
conflict of interest in a material matter, such
matter would not be dealt with by way of
circulation of resolution or by a Committee but a
Board Meeting would be held, during which
such Director must abstain from voting and not
be counted in quorum.

Independent Non-executive Directors who have
no material interest in the transaction would be
present at such Board Meeting.

An independent Board Committee will be set up
to deal with matter when necessary.

R BB ERALEF G T B E I A
AEREF M 2E > A B A G DI B Rk R 07
AR B A S 2 B RS A B
EHG G MZEF NG LERR IR R
R NBUA -

522 7y v Sl 08 TR it 9 98 57 0T 8 B R e
FEREFGE® -

T S IR AL B S R R B R L B RO

A1.8

The company should arrange
appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the
directors.

O ) B AL T e T A R AT
VER B A PR LBk

Yes

Pl

The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal action against
its Directors and it is renewed annually.

A5 R EL 8 0 A T o 7 ) 22 R
B o SRR -

During the year ended 28 February 2013, the full Board held 4
meetings and the details of Directors’ attendance are disclosed

in the section “Attendance Record at Meetings” in this report.

R E20134E2 28 H IL4E ¥ > &
HEGLHHANREBERGGR &
A TR R R AR [k
JETER ] — i
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A.2Chairman and Chief Executive
Code Principle

There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the

A2 B RAT B
TR A
WHENEEETHEARERNH

management of the board and the day-to-day management of R E AE Iy o DAE CRAE T R

the company’s business to ensure a balance of power and

authority.

FZHES i H iy

Summary of Code Provisions

F AR R

Compliance
2EHE
SF AR X

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
TEERMNEEERER

A2.1

Separate roles of chairman and
chief executive should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

TR AT EOER N A G [ BT
FE S LA T S AR

Deviation

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company were not
separated and were performed by the same
individual, Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie. The Board
considered that the current management
structure had operated efficiently. According to
the Company’s practice, all major strategic
decisions are taken by the Board, or relevant
committee of the Board, as duly constituted.

AN T BRAT ELA R A G R AT y > H h BRE
R AT o Bl o B IR R 2R A A
PE o MEARR T 2 EHHUE T A LE PR T g
SIEARAR 2 EHEGMBAZ E @

A.2.2

The chairman should ensure that all
directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at board meetings.

E RERE R e DT S
BN AT I

Yes

piui

The Chairman accepts the responsibility to
ensure that major issues of the Company are
addressed by the Board, and that these issues
are presented in a manner which facilitates
thorough discussion and resolution and all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at the Board Meetings.

ERRMEHEAL » DHERA L A EREH b E S E
I H %A A A T R A SRR R 2
PR 5 Tk A R T
HIH -




Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMRRE =EERE adopted by the Group
PRI ST AEERMNEEERER
A.2.3 | The chairman should ensure directors Yes The Chairman, assisted by other senior
to receive, in a timely manner, executives, ensures that Directors could receive,
adequate information. in a timely manner, adequate information which
must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable.
B3OS = U B wadinh <1 i & AL HAD S AR AT BN B Tah B O 7 2 R U
FEGT B R o T A R R S a2 M RV A B 5 A T
o
A.2.4 | The chairman should be responsible Yes The Chairman, assisted by the Company
for drawing up and approving the Secretary, draws up and approves the agenda
agenda for each board meeting. for each board meeting.
F2 T I T I A R R &= F AR AR B By T AR M A v A U g gk
HIERE o TR o
A.2.5 | The chairman should take primary Yes The Chairman, assisted by the Company
responsibility for ensuring that good Secretary, takes the primary lead the discussion
corporate governance practices and of corporate governance matters in board
procedures are established. meetings and the compliance of the code
provisions.
TR EE AT > AR A R P FIWTEA AIBE B TR E g gk b gl s

M SR R AT -

A SR 1 S IH S e R ST ST RGO -
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Summary of Code Provisions

SRR B E

Compliance
2EMS
<F A5 XX

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRANEEERER

A2.6

The chairman should encourage all
directors to make a full and active
contribution to the board’s affairs
and take the lead to ensure that it
acts in the best interests of the
company.

The chairman should encourage
directors with different views to
voice their concerns, allow sufficient
time for discussion.

EHRESE A EE S I RAESGH
B WLLSAER] > MRERETENS

28 ml A 4 o

=% M S 5 AN TR B R A
SERENFE 4 TiE A R R

EECE

Yes

pint

All Directors have made full and active
contribution to the affairs of the Board and the
Board has acted in the best interests of the
Group and its shareholders. During board
meetings or via other communication means,
Directors are encouraged to express their view
and concern, with sufficient time for discussion.

A S ) BN S I DA R T R
F IR AEA G247 9 o A B S5 6 &k r OB R H At Oy
AT IR > 5 S 3% 0 D 3R R B B P AR
H B T R 400 R ] 7 i

A.2.7

The chairman should at least
annually hold meetings with the non-
executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors)
without the executive directors
present.

e AR S AT R (LR
SEIRATE ) BT KRR AT E S
HY R B

Yes

Joni

During the year, the Chairman had held several
separate meetings with all the Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive
Directors without the Executive Directors
present.

AEIA > TR LR AT RO S R AT AT
YO A AT # S5 H  Eak o




Summary of Code Provisions

SFRIROBER

Compliance
2BHE
PRI ST

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRANEEERER

A.2.8

The chairman should ensure effective
communication with shareholders
and their views are communicated to
the board as a whole.

= e DR BEL B SR 2800 8 - DL R R
e SRR R ] A B ) 2 S o

Yes

fiui

The Company establishes different
communication channels with shareholders and
investors, including (i) printed copies of
corporate communications (including but not
limited to annual reports, interim reports,
notices of meetings, circulars and proxy forms)
required under the Listing Rules; (ii) the annual
general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders to raise comments and exchange
views with the Board; (iii) the Company’s
website offers a communication channel
between the Company and its shareholders and
stakeholders; (iv) regular press conferences and
briefing meetings with analysts are arranged
from time to time to update interested parties on
the performance of the Group; and (v) the
Company’s Branch Share Registrar deals with
shareholders for share registration and related
matters.

AN ) B BER B AR L AR B AUETE ¢ () 4%
ETTRARE > A 8o m A R P S R R
AR IR - ErEE Y R AR RATERAR)
EPRRIAS 5 (i) BB R AT A PR SR 47 R b 3 3 el ok I B
G AR L 5 () A A 2 SR R A
P A BRAS A W 2R AS 5 (iv) AN RR IRE A3 BRRT
) 5% ff o S B b B R A 1 A BN PR A 4
P T SE AR 5 B (V) AR A R 2 BB o S RS A
AR 2 PR B — V1) BB A7 65 o B A B S R o

A29

The chairman should promote a
culture of openness and debate by
facilitating the effective contribution
of non-executive directors.

ERERESRAB A B ~ BTk el a9 XAk > 42
METE R (FFHIR AT ) B
TE A BT -

Yes

fiu

The Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Directors are encouraged to
express their view during board meetings and
the Board as a whole has constructive relations.

FHATHE BT EE WS R R g a
Ak AR AR S B B AR -
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A.3Board composition
Code Principle

The board should have a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the company’s business and
should include a balanced composition of executive and non-
executive directors so that independent judgement can

effectively be exercised.

A3 HERGHM
FHI R
G HEAR DR 76 1 LA 8 R
T T RN AE B o S G AT R
HELIE Y ATIE AL A AR R
M DA REA AT ROHAE H 8 ST B o

Summary of Code Provisions

F AR R

Compliance
2EHE
SF AR X

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
TEERMNEEERAER

A3.1

Identify independent non-executive
directors in all corporate communications.

B A RV E o R B A R AT
EHLEH) o

Yes

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company are expressly identified in all
corporate communications that disclose the
names of the Directors of the Company.

AN T AT 5 B T I 4 B R R > 3 W
WIS R AT 2 B -

A.3.2

The company should maintain on its
website and on the Stock Exchange’s
website an updated list of directors
identifying their role and function
and whether they are independent
non-executive directors.

O ) B AE LA i B g S P A o b A7 I
R E R G R A4 W5
A FIRRE > DA R G R 758 7 R
T3S -

Yes

o

The Company maintains on its website and the
Stock Exchange’s website a list of directors.
Meanwhile, an updated profile of its Directors
and senior management and identifies their role
and function has also been posted on its website.
The updated profile includes the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company.

AR RILEAR 2 A8 iy g 5 P A il e A7 2 S LR 44
B o BRUVIR]IRE > A2 A AR A dmo Y R R AR
EHEA B A WIE A A FIRRAE o SRR il A
FAEA N F 2 S IR AT E S o




The Directors who served the Board during the year ended
28 February 2013 and up to the date of this report are named
as follows:

Executive Directors:

Yau On Yee, Annie (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Erwin Steve Huang (Deputy Chairman & Chief Corporate Development Officer)
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence (Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary)

Non-executive Director:
Wang Guosheng (appointed on 23 July 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Chui Chi Yun, Robert

Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

Chow Chee Wai, Christopher (appointed on 1 March 2013)

Each Director of the Company has been appointed on the
strength of his/her calibre, experience and stature, and his/her
potential to contribute to the proper guidance of the Group and
its businesses. Apart from formal meetings, matters requiring
Board approval were arranged by means of circulation of
written resolutions.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship among members of the Board and between the
Chairman and the chief executive.

A.4Appointments, re-election and removal

Code Principle

There should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new directors and plans in
place of orderly succession for appointments. All directors
should be subject to re-election at regular intervals.

R E 20134F2 A 28 H 1k 4F )
WERNE AN R E S G 2 E
FUE

WATH S

IS %2 R (e AT B )
R K (R A R A
BT R A e A )

AT ES -
BB (it 2012487 H 23 AMRAT)
B ATES -

EEC

SEIEME

JEVAAR (1 2013483 )1 1 A RIT)

AR Y B — 40 R A
KEBRAN A > DL H AT RS AR AR
R R R T K SE S T A L A B R T
BERAL - BRIEUE SN HE R g
LA 1% R A B 7 T e 7 X
JREH o

R ENE 2 A SR AT B
2 T SIf 0 AT BB - SETS - S K
HARE R BB

AA AT - EEAEAR

SRR

R E RS AR
BB L2 Wi R RAER)Y - W
BOEA PR 2 AT - T A
4 A A T IR ) A AT 22
o
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TEARSZ ZATAR KB WO R & L2 G

Jir A S R RAT > D =
WK o

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMGRIEE =RRE adopted by the Group
SF RIS AEBRANEEERER
A.4.1 | Non-executive directors should be Yes All Non-executive Directors of the Company
appointed for a specific term, subject were appointed for a specific term of three
to re-election. years, subject to rotation and re-election
pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company.
FHATHERN ARG EAEH - I 2 AN F A FEPATE RN B G I EE] - £
He 2 TR o B =4 M ZEMREA S B 2 20 RN A 32 i (1 AR
LH SR o
A.4.2 | All directors appointed to fill casual Yes Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the Company, all
vacancies should be subject to Directors appointed to fill casual vacancy would
election at the first general meeting be subject to re-election at the next following
after their appointment. general meeting.
All directors are subject to retirement Pursuant to Bye-law 87(2) of the Company and
by rotation at least once every three the CG Code, every Director shall retire by
years. rotation at least once every three years and are
subject to re-election.
ST AT 75y LA B PR 22 S50 T B 22 AT ) = HRAEAS A W 2 2 WA 3 86(2) ik 2 Mg » T A 7%

SR R IR 22 BT B2 A O A PRI &
TR HE A -

IRYEA 7 2 0x R AT AR 87(2) W Je A S48 iR ~T U
ZRUE - BHREEHEDE ZAF - REEE - 3
JHAS BB AT -




Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMRRE =EERE adopted by the Group
PRI ST AEERMNEEERER

A.4.3 | Further appointment of independent Yes Further appointment of Independent Non-
non-executive director who has executive Director who has served more than
served more than 9 years should be nine years was subject to a separate resolution
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders during the annual
approved by shareholders. The general meeting of the Company. The Board has
papers to shareholders accompanying listed out in the circular to Shareholders the
the resolution should include the resolution and the reasons they believed such
reasons the board believes the Independent Non-executive Director still
individual still independent and independent and should be re-elected.
should be re-elected.
AR I AT C AT LR 1 8 S R L = AR A B I AR R b DI T sk SR T 2k IR
AT M LA 7 R S0 2 B R A i R AT C AT R LR S R BT o -
A o BERFRZ U ek 5 — M R Y 2R 7 SR SRR K A 1) R A A AP R 2 R A
A R E B AR %A A SEIEHUAT EE AT L N R B > DA A T
AP J A N N R R T AR SR o AT %40 E R A o

PR A AR RS JE AT R

All of the Directors, including the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the general meeting in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-Laws. At the annual general meeting held on 23
July 2012 (the “2012 AGM”), Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie retired by
rotation as a director of the Company and was re-elected as
Executive Director of the Company for a term of three years, Mr.
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin retired by rotation as a director of
the Company and was re-elected as Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company for a term of three years. Mr. Wang
Guosheng was appointed as Non-executive Director of the
Company for a term of three years.

The Board has received from each of the four Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Board considers each of the four Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

2 IRAS 2N W) 2 ) AR S e SRR
i (B 1 4B e IR IEAT © R 20124 7
H 23 H 84T Z Ao ) W RO 4R R
(T20124F AU AE R & )) £ AR
B AR AR A
HERBANFNATHES ALY =4
AN F R ERE S A (R
7 B 3 Ty AS o w8 S JR AT
Fo AL =4 - TRIBSEEEER
RAwFPATES AT =4

EREG ORI E TS
% B E AT RLANES 313 A 2
FEBL SN ERE R
Ko MU SL IR AT S SR B
‘lﬂ:°
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A.5Nomination Committee

ASRAZHE

Summary of Code Provisions

F AR R

Compliance
2EHE
SF AR X

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
TEERMNEEERAER

A5.1

The company should establish a
nomination committee which is
chaired by the chairman of the board
or an independent non-executive
director and comprises a majority of
independent non-executive directors.

NAESIRAZRE > MERG IR
B IF AT AT T AL
WAL I MATE R R W -

Yes

it

A Nomination Committee was established on
30 March 2012. It comprises three members,
Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr. Heng
Ching Kuen, Franklin, Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company, and Ms.
Yau On Yee, Annie, Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Chan is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

WAZEFN20124F3H30H Mo - RBZHE
B =440 B AL > S FE U T R R e ek
MSEIERESE A AT E 26 o+ o B B iR
LTAGER

A5.2

The nomination committee should be
established with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authority and duties.

O ) T AT W R 4 2 B FL A A TR
IR > {5 2 L A FL A AN AT

Yes

proud

The role and authority of the Nomination
Committee, including those set out in Code
provision A.5.2 of the CG Code, are clearly set
out in its terms of reference and in compliance
with the provisions set out in the CG Code.

REZBG MO > AFSEERTHTH 2
SERIRSCALS. 2 R Bl > 15 A )% R v o
N AT & A SR ST R p P 2 S -




Summary of Code Provisions

SFRIROBER

Compliance
2BHE
PRI ST

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRANEEERER

Ab5.3

The nomination committee should
make available its terms of reference
explaining its role and the authority
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock
Exchange’ s website and the
company’s website.

R4 % B & MEAE W3S B Ko Rl ol B
PHOLCHRMERE [ > MR A O RS
T HAHEST -

Yes

fid

The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

147 22 5 Wl O B A I 5 T B A W) A oy

Ab5.4

The company should provide the
nomination committee sufficient
resources to perform its duties. Where
necessary, the nomination committee
should seek independent professional
advice, at the company’s expense, to
perform its responsibilities.

o5 FIRE IV 44 %% BB R 5T 2 R0 UL
TR - 4247 AL @R ATRSE IS Iy
GERL S =Y ha s3SI LIl PA
CESE

Yes

ot

The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources, including the advice of
professional firms, to discharge its duties, if
necessary.

R4 Z BRI TR TR - G (AR ) R
HEER S UBITHEE -

A5.5

The board should set out in the
circular to shareholders the reasons
they believe the independent non-
executive director should be elected
at the general meeting and the
reasons they consider the individual
to be independent.

S 7 I SR BRI A ) B SR AR R
Fyd 40 AL I AT R AR & |
BEAERY IR > DL RARMTRR %4 A L
BN LR -

Yes

prot

The Board has listed out in the circular to
shareholders the reasons they believed such
Independent Non-executive Directors should be
elected and the reasons they considered such
Independent Non-executive Directors were
independent.

S B K| A ] S SR W A 5 2% % 44 T ST
FHATHFERAT A - AR A 38 2% 4 B oL
FHATE S BB N LR -
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The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board; the recommendation to the Board all appointments and
re-election of Directors of the Company.

The Nomination Committee met twice during the year ended
28 February 2013 and the individual members’ attendance
records are disclosed in the section “Attendance Record at
Meetings” in this report.

The Nomination Committee has considered and consulted the
Chairman of the Board the following proposals during the year

ended 28 February 2013:

(a) review on the structure of the Board of Directors of the
Group;

(b) review on Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee;

(c) assessment of the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors; and

(d) identification of candidates suitably qualified to become
Directors.

RABEG T ERTOUE R EH
B2 - R/ AL s R &= AE
Je B B R A R e ek

W E 201342 H28 H 1k 4F B >
REZEGUEEHMRTR > §F
B OB A A TR
ek | —f -

A ZE 201342 H 28 H 1k 4F JF »
W42 B &% 08 M 3 o R
PEF B -

(a) FERIASEF AR 6r 00

(b) FERITRAZ B & R

(c) P& MBS AT HE A 8 Sk
K

(d) e 7 10 288 N 45 8 S 5 A% I
o



A.6Responsibilities of Directors
Code Principle

Every director must always know his responsibilities as a
director of a company and its conduct, business activities and

A6 HEF AT
SRR

A 4% 2 2L IR 2 A LA 8 )
BRI > LA R %A AR

development. 3 ZEHE ) SR -
Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
AR E 2ERE adopted by the Group
SF AR S REBRANEEERER
A.6.1 | Every newly appointed director Yes A tailored induction would be provided to
should receive a comprehensive, familiarize the newly appointed Director with
formal and tailored induction on the Company’s business operations and financial
appointment. Subsequently he should positions, his responsibilities under statute and
receive any briefing and professional common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal
development as necessary. and other regulatory requirements.
From time to time, the newly appointed Director
together with other Directors would receive
briefing and professional development.
B4 BAT W T TR 2 RAT LS P BT AT (4 1 e R 3 0 FU T B AT 2R DL

A~ IE I 2 I i A A
FAR TR BT P 5 WA 40 R BE BRI

AN T HET B T BRI - DA T AR A I
WA~ BRI 0 T AR R R R A B AR
TE TR

ETE R S AT EN R S N YL SR Y PN g
& o
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AL %73

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMGRIEE =RRE adopted by the Group
SF RIS TEEFEMNEEERER
A.6.2 | The functions of non-executive Yes The Independent Non-executive Directors
directors should include those as set brought independent judgments during their
out in the Code Provision A.6.2 of the participation of Board Meetings and gave advice
CG Code. on strategy and future plans of the Group.
The Independent Non-executive Directors
reviewed the financial statements and
operational performance of the Group on a
regular basis.
The Independent Non-executive Directors also
served on audit, remuneration, nomination and
other governance committees of the Board.
FEHATEE F AR AR IR AL S A B A <P R iz T8 S FF AT T A R LA R R R MR
ZAFRIMGSCHR ALG. Zﬂkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁ W) T R A ST Oy e B A S R R R -
T8 AL I AT T 2 ) A B T Y S R B
£
B FRATEREREA LR ZEG  HMER
T REZEFGRAMERREEGERE -
A.6.3 | Every director should give sufficient Yes Satisfactory attendance at the Board Meetings
time and attention to the company’s and other Committee Meetings was shown in
affairs. “Attendance Record at Meetings™ section in this
report.
The Directors have contributed sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Group.

g 47 T SRS ) A A IR ] BORS L 1 2 R AR B G R R IR

TR AR A [l b R AC Bk | — B -

A G ) 2 S R R 0 IR ] BT




Summary of Code Provisions

SFRIROBER

Compliance
2BHE
PRI ST

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRANEEERER

A.6.4

The board should establish written
guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for relevant employee in
respect of their dealings in the
company’s securities.

A A B R RS AR SR
SOE FHEAEG] > 1551 N A BERR R
HeSPRIDTLRR -

Yes

Pt

The Company has adopted the Model Code as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions.

Specific enquiry has been made with all
Directors and the Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in
the Model Code during the year ended 28
February 2013.

Meanwhile, the Company has another written
guideline no less exacting than the Model Code
for all the employees.

In addition to the requirements set out in the
Company’s code of conduct, the Company Secretary
regularly writes to executive management and
other relevant employees who are privy to
unpublished price sensitive information, as
reminders of their responsibility to comply with the
provisions of the model code and keep the matter
confidential until announced. They are also
specifically reminded not to engage in any insider
dealings as stipulated under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

AN T BT I SR A S o BRAR TR LU
Bk 2 CERRESF D AR B AR 3w g <y HEJ) -

M M E RS AN HE2013F2H28
HIRAFERE > 2R 2 43 2 R RR O30 <7 A e < [ T 7
ZAEHE o

Al > AN F S 75— 385 RE AR GRS HID 5T
RIEEIES A RE -

BR T AR AN ) B AL S U BT AT B Y R A o 4 mIBREE
SE B A R 2 B 2 IS AR 1 1 o A A
B FCAAR B R B > $R TR A3 S 6 ZE R ST AR ST T Y
K HZR DR B DR B 2 A 1k > SRR3R
@%ﬁki*%%&%%&%ﬁ%%%ﬂ%%ﬁ@
K5 ) o
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Corporate Governance Report conined
SR BE @

Summary of Code Provisions

SRR B E

Compliance
2EMS
<F A5 XX

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRANEEERER

A.6.5

The directors should participate in
continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills.

The Company should be responsible
for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director.

P A7 S S 2 B A SR B > SRR
FERFC 0 i B R

O T RE B T R A Y B IS B A TR
Kot > LARCGE D) LT A R HE Y A
@~ BRAE R TUE -

Yes

piit

The Company Secretary circulates updated
circulars, newsletters, and updates on laws, etc,
to all Directors for updating their knowledge and
skills.

The Company Secretary is responsible for
arranging and funding a suitable development
programs to Directors. Director can also identify
his/her own training and development needs
and notify the Company Secretary in arranging
the course enrolment. After attending the
training, the Directors would file a copy of the
training course certificate with the Company
Secretary for the Company’s record.

The Company would also reimburse to each of
the Directors for their out-of-pocket expenses
incurred by them for the purpose of attending
training courses.

2 TR 14 B R A BRI R SR 4
T DL SR A A A Sk S R

N R B2 P ) S R e AR N B A B
KEA T H A o R ] $ A B B e gt R
R FIRLE 2 PR AR AR o A SE MU IR - A
22 ] i B AL Bk T 4 R AL SE VR AL BR

7 ]l U A R SR R 2




The Directors have undergone satisfactory training throughout
the year and provided the training record to the Company.
During the year ended 28 February 2013, the training records
of the Directors are set out below:

A ) AR TR AL A B 90 B BUR
AN EEI - A #IE 2013452
H 28 B IRAFFE > 4% 5 35 1 B I "o ik
WA

Corporate Governance/Updates
on laws, rules and regulations

AR, B B SR

Attend Seminars/

Read Briefings/
Materials Conferences
Hh R i
Directors #H [34] R M e e st
Executive Directors: AT HES -
Yau On Yee, Annie 22 v
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (8 B AT BUARAR)
Erwin Steve Huang T 7K v v
(Deputy Chairman & Chief Corporate Development Officer) (&l 3 i & {355 R 4450
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence BrR v v
(Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary) (H i AT M B R ) Bl )
Non-executive Director: JERATEDE ¢
Wang Guosheng T % v/
(appointed on 23 July 2012) (201247 H 23 H#ZAT)
Independent Non-executive Directors: B JEHf7# 5 ¢
Chui Chi Yun, Robert HE v v/
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin SEIFRE v v/
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael SRS v v
Chow Chee Wai, Christopher Jlia N/A A N/A A3

(appointed on 1 March 2013) (4201343 1 AMEZEAT)
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Corporate Governance Report conined
SR BE @

Summary of Code Provisions

SRR B E

Compliance
2EMS
<F A5 XX

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRANEEERER

A6.6

Every director should disclose to the
company at the time of his appointment,
and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in
public companies or organizations and
other significant commitments with a
disclosure of the time involved.

g 48 T SR e AR I 1) 2 ] R
T R ) AL AR A e o7 A9 i Btk
B A B A E R AR A AT T 5
) 18 I R4 5

Yes

Pt

A profile of Directors clearly state the nature of
offices held in public companies/organizations
and other significant commitments and disclosed
in this annual report.

If director has a relevant change in commitments
as set out in Code Provision A.6.6, director should
notify the Company Secretary within one month
from the date of change.

A RS SR A R R LA A
AP BT T A S R AR S NI AR A A AR R o

<y R SCAL6.6 BRI RIS A S B Ry > # R
JRETA 5 ) F AR 9 — M8 A s 2w AL o

A6.7

Independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors
should give the board and any
committees on which they serve the
benefit of their skills, expertise and
varied backgrounds and qualifications
through regular attendance and active
participation. They should also attend
general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders.

B Sr AT R I AT
I T o g R AT R E g R
2% B & 10 & sl B 2 B e g > DU
TERE ~ BESEMG SAN IH 5R AR A
HERK o A S R SRR
FBRCOR M A A IER T -

Yes

fiud

All the Independent Non-executive Directors and
the Non-executive Director demonstrated their
skills, expertise and qualifications by giving
professional advices during the regular Board
Meetings and the Committee Meetings. All
Independent Non-executive Directors have
attended the 2012 AGM and answered questions
from the shareholders.

B A S I AT I IR AT I S E M S
G AER G GE LRI R R
RE - BUERIGE AR o 2B IEATE I A
i 201 2 4F i OB 4 8 S o] 25 IR A 2 ] -




and other non-executive directors
should make a positive contribution
to the development of the company’s
strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and
informed comments.

P Sr IR AT HE S A IR AT R
WAL - AR o R R
3570 R il 2 AW S BOR AT Y IE TE K o

fid

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMRRE =EERE adopted by the Group
<FRIESC AEBRANEEERER
A.6.8 | Independent non-executive directors Yes All the Independent Non-executive Directors and

the Non-executive Director make a positive
contribution to the development of the
Company’s strategy.

A 8 7. AT T R IR AT S A E R
f HIE T B -

A.7Supply of and access to information
Code Principle

Directors should be provided in a timely manner with
appropriate information so as to enable them to make an
informed decision and perform their duties and responsibilities.

AT BRI KA
R A
2 R I R I R fil
WA R A AR BT
PEth P » SF AR AT HR B R AT -

sent to directors at least 3 days
before the intended date of board
meeting or committee meeting.

ELEVE RS aly i g e
BEg@RAME > = RaTgEl TS -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
AR E 2ERE adopted by the Group
SF AR 3 AEBRANEEERER
A.7.1 | Agenda and board papers should be Yes Agenda and board papers are despatched to all

ot

Directors or Committee Members not less than 3
days before the date of meeting.

FERGGHRRE LR ERTREETGHN
WAL =KATgE IR ESR S ZE N A

o
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Corporate Governance Report conined
SR BE @

Summary of Code Provisions

SRR B E

Compliance
2EMS
<F A5 XX

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEERMNEEERER

A7.2

Management should supply the
board and its committees with
adequate information in a timely
manner. The board and individual
directors should have separate and
independent access to the company’s
senior management.

LG e T R A g RN
R EORL o B fr L Al ) S A
B AT A xR A BN B ST R

1((( o

Yes

Pt

The Chief Financial Officer and/or the Company
Secretary or secretary of the board committee
attended all regular Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings to advise on accounting and
financial, corporate governance and statutory
compliance matters. Senior management have
formal or informal contact with the Board
Members as and when necessary.

AN FE R B R A R R B
WA ES e RERT R R MEWR Uile

at B s J/E% a ‘(n Be S 5 L 4 B R
S o A ER BN B B g R4 IE
IR AL -

A7.3

Directors are entitled to have access
to board papers and related materials.

P A3 44 S A 0 € S S
Yokt o

Yes

fiud

Board papers and minutes are made available
for inspection by the Directors and Board
Committee Members upon reasonable request.
The Company responded as promptly as possible
to any queries raised by the Directors.

TEAEATH P S BLEOR T » R SO Rl
BRIt R EE R E G R B AN o EHE ML
TR > A% ) R RATE i (o]




B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND BOARD
EVALUATION

B.1The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and Disclosure
Code Principle

The Company should disclose its directors’ remuneration policy
and other remuneration related matters. The procedure for
setting policy on executive directors’ remuneration and all
directors’ remuneration packages should be formal and
transparent. No director should be involved in deciding his own

B 45 1% 4 45 BN L1 5
R o

B.1 3719 % 4 % 1 K P S ALK
TR
2 T 0 8 L < R B H A
SHLSH WA B 10 < > B A IE BT
HBEMENRRF > LT A BT
P M A N Y B
o AT A R AN AT 2 BT E A B

remuneration. P o
Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRIGRIEE —RERFE adopted by the Group
<F RIS TEERMNEEERER
B.1.1 | The remuneration committee should Yes Please refer to the section below.
consult the chairman and/or chief
executive about their remuneration
proposals for other executive
directors. The remuneration
committee should have access to
independent professional advice
where necessary.
2= B e ek HAb AT 3 S N = e
Ak A AR BT B o R
B BN B e SR L
o
B.1.2 | The remuneration committee’ s Yes The role and authority of the Remuneration
terms of reference should include the Committee, including those set out in Code
duties as set out in the Code provision B.1.2 of the CG Code, are clearly set
provision B.1.2 of the CG Code. out in its terms of reference and in compliance
with the provisions set out in the CG Code.
e 22 B 6 Y TR T R AR R I FMEE G AE RS > BREAEERTFAIhZ

<F IO F I SC B 1.2 WML A2 O -

SERIGSCBLL 2 R BT 1 R SR 0 7 L I e i [
N AT & A SR S Bl P B 2 R
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BEBERHE @

ERLA B B

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMGRIEE =RRE adopted by the Group
<F A5 XX AEERMNEEERER

B.1.3 | The remuneration committee should Yes The terms of reference of the Remuneration
make available its terms of reference, Committee are available on the websites of the
explaining its role and the authority Stock Exchange and the Company.
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock
Exchange’ s website and the
company’s website.

W22 B e JRE A W5 32 T 4 s R 2w Al o 2 TN 2 5 R A [ A W 3 T B A R A
LB o R A (O R
G T R AR -

B.1.4 | The remuneration committee should Yes The Remuneration Committee is provided with
be provided with sufficient resources sufficient resources, including the advice of
to perform its duties. professional firms, to perform its duties, if

necessary.
HrN 22 B e LS T R LB AT H = HiNZ B AR TR R O (WA R E)
M - BHEDR > BT HER -

B.1.5 | The company should disclose details Yes The Board has resolved that the Senior
of any remuneration payable to Management of the Company would comprise
members of senior management by only the Executive Directors and/or functional
band in their annual reports. heads on Chief Officer grade or above. Details of

emoluments of Senior Management, please refer
to the section below.
A T IR FL AT R A 1 0 PO 5 A 48 B v AR 2 RO Gkt > AR A S SRS BN B iy AR 2 WL

FTH R R SRR BRI S AR - A B A
N1 e e




The principal responsibility of the Remuneration Committee is
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure in relation to the remuneration of Directors and
senior management by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year ended
28 February 2013 and the individual members’ attendance
records are disclosed in the section “Attendance Record at
Meetings” in this report.

In addition, during the year, the Remuneration Committee also
received a number of reports and proposals from executive
management in relation to remuneration issues of the Company
for their review and/or approval as required.

The Remuneration Committee has considered and consulted the
Chairman of the Board the following proposals:

(a) reviewed the annual salary of the executive directors and
senior management for 2012/2013;

(b) reviewed the monthly remuneration of senior management
and executive directors;

(c) reviewed and approved the annual performance bonus
schemes and the granting of discretionary bonus to both
senior management and other employees of the Company;
and

(d) recommendation of the grant of share options under the
Share Option Scheme 2003.

The Remuneration Committee is to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management.

HMZ B e EEREERE R
PR LA IR o v B A B
MECRE R AR R > WA g
NI BT AE B A 2 H EEAR AR B )
4o

Bz B E R 2201342 4 28
AR 3 AT T U o A A
B R RS A [k
JERCER ) —H o

BeAh > B 2 B AE R IS R A
BN BT 4R 32 A B e M B 2 R
Lo sk RN ULT E T LA
Jo/ oA -

W B OB K E e
PRIk

(a) MwTHUATHE 95 Jom A B B
2012/2013 H4FFEH7 5

(b) st s A BN B R AT
25 HEHM

(c) Al 3z L vE AR 23 7 Y 4F FEAE AL
FE ) R e AR BN B R H A
fE 5 8O S AEAL 5 M

(d) ek 2003 4F i HE st 342 11
T o

WM ZE A e R IR
SE R P BUAT S R AR N B
WAl o
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R B IR @

Emoluments of Senior Management

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
emoluments of the members of senior management by band for
the year ended 28 February 2013 is set out below:

RAREBANBHE

FR A A 24505 < I <F R SC5R B 1.5
o > = A B R B B A 2013 4F
2 28 B 1 4F B 4 $ 4L A 4 50
T

Number of
HKS$ Individuals
i N
1 -500,000 1
500,001 - 1,000,000 _
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 2
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 2
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 _
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 _
3,500,001 - 4,000,000 _
4,000,001 - 4,500,000 _
4,500,001 - 5,000,000
Total 48 ¥ 7

Further particulars in relation to Directors’ remuneration and
the five individuals with highest emoluments as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set
out in notes 10 and 11 respectively, to the financial statements.

0 5 4% B e A 1
— 2 RN L IR 8
3L 43 LS B e Y 10 % 11
AR -



C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

C.1Financial Reporting
Code Principle

The board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the company’s performance, position and

C. M LY
C.1 W HE
FRIEA
BT - O A A A
UNDLES RTINS

prospects.
Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRIGRIHEE —RERFE adopted by the Group
<F AR SC AEBRMNPLEERER

C.1.1 | Management should provide Yes The management provides sufficient explanation
sufficient explanation and and information to the Board in order to enable
information to the board to enable it the Board to make an informed assessment of
to make an informed assessment of the financial and other information submitted to
financial and other information put the Board for approval.
before it for approval.

P M ) B S 4R O TR 0 1 PR R = B E R R R MR AR EER
AL FEEE F g T DAt A A Mt HE Y R 2E T g A 2 BRSO B R A AR
P M AR > 1 A IR RT R o MR -

C.1.2 | Management should provide all Yes Management provides monthly management
members of the board with monthly updates to Directors for their assessment of the
updates giving a balanced and Company’s performance, position and prospects.
understandable assessment of the
company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail.

L R 1) 1) HE S g B B AL T I A H ) R R PR A A g >

B WA B AT BB IR UL
TR 24 TE T 5% B BRAR A P £ -

TEBCRTAG A R R WABSAR UL RT3 o
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Corporate Governance Report conined
BB

Summary of Code Provisions

SRR B E

Compliance
2EMS
<F A5 XX

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRANEEERER

C.1.3

The directors should acknowledge
their responsibility for preparing the
accounts, on a going concern basis
and there should be a statement by
the auditors about their reporting
responsibilities in the auditors’
report on the financial statements.

The Corporate Governance Report
should contain sufficient information
to enable investors to understand the
severity and significance of the
matters at hand.

S R R SR S e R AR YE A IR H Y
TUAT - 10 B TS A AT B B S R
AR, o R L ST A A o

IR RS RERCA 0 R > SRECE
F W E RS R A R

Yes

proud

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the financial statements of the
Group and presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment of the Group’s
performance.

In preparing the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 28 February 2013, the
Directors have selected the appropriate
accounting policies and applied them
consistently; approved the adoption of all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards which are issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants; made
judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and prepared the financial
statements on the going concern basis.

The relevant responsibility statement from the
external auditor is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 106 to 107.

The Corporate Governance Report sets out the
practices adopted by the Group which enables
the investors to understand the Company’s
commitment to the establishment of good
governance practices and procedures.

TR A 0045 A7 AR B B - S DA
BB HFEF ~ 0 ST 2 R -

O AR EHEE 201342 A 28 A 1L 2 B H
R > wHEOPOR X ERUER S B2 G5 EOR ;s it
THE B A0 5 B w1 Rl 2 AR A 22 9T A 70 ) 7 s B TS i
HEUERN 5 AR A B 2 R Rl Rt s DL R R A
46 7 L M IR R BA S IR K -

AT A Rl T AR 22 A B AT R W A 2R 106 2
107 BB AL S F A -

A SEAE IR 51 WA BT SR AR R R > LR
FH T IRAL B E RIS R WL -




Summary of Code Provisions

SFRIROBER

Compliance
2BHE
PRI ST

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRANEEERER

C1.4

The directors should include in the
separate statement containing a
discussion and analysis of the
group’s performance, an explanation
of how the company generates or
preserves value over the longer term
strategy for delivering the company’s
objectives, in the annual report.

R AR A e B 0 AT AR B R B
TSR A > W2 R R 2 A B AR
B (B 1) S e S T B8 R B o F AR G 3
W o

Yes

fid

The discussion and analysis of the Group’s
performance is disclosed under the
“Management’ s Discussion and Analysis”
section.

o I S B A T 2 o
— 4l o B -

C.1.5

The board should present a
balanced, clear and understandable
assessment in annual and interim
reports required by the Listing Rules.
It should also do so for reports to
regulators and information disclosed
under statutory requirements.

T 0 ETE AR B L TR DR E A0 4R
Ferp L i 38 08 W) e BUA P~ Y5 A
B 5 BRI IO RPHE o LA > HIRIEAE ]
LA A AR A Nl BRI (KR E R
9 S0 PR A e R B P Bt

Yes

ot

The section of Management’ s Discussion and
Analysis of annual and interim reports has
explained the factors affecting business
performance and outlook of the Group. Financial
statements have been presented in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of Listing
Rules, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

AT B T SR o R e B o3 T A R B
AL 2 ERRBLZ R MR o BB IRCARE
TR~ 7 A A ) B i s R
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Corporate Governance Report conined

AN S ST A
BEBERHE @
C.2Internal Controls C.2 N7 B
Code Principle R A
The board should ensure that the company maintains sound HR GRS AR ERERS
and effective internal controls to safeguard shareholders’ Tt 2 5 0 HL A AL > DAGR R IR R Y
investment and the company’s assets. BE KA R G RE -
Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
AR E =ERE adopted by the Group
SF AR X TEERMNEEERAER
C.2.1 | The directors should at least annually Yes Please refer to the section below.
conduct a review of the effectiveness
of the company’s and its
subsidiaries’ internal control
systems in the Corporate Governance
Report.
>086 it D 4 4P M — U2 7 LB 2 BB T

O ) B PR R B A R B R o I A
SEERE ) T A B AR

C.2.2 | The board should annually review to Yes The Board has considered the adequacy of
consider the adequacy of resources, resources, staff qualifications and experience of
staff qualifications and experience, the Company’s accounting and financial
training programmes and budget of reporting function, the continuing professional
the company’s accounting and education undertaken by the relevant staff.

financial reporting function.

R FETARRTIN » ER R B R = T O AR A RITE & w55 R RE 5 T A9
FFE G e 5 R e e 7 i ) U TR - B TR R AR R LU B B T
BTERE R - U8 TR AT E UGN R R o

AR B A B T 5 24 -




The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for
ensuring that adequate internal controls are in place to
safeguard the Company’s assets and manage risks. The
executive management has been delegated the responsibility of
identifying and evaluating the risks faced by the Group and of
designing, operating and monitoring an effective control system.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations in achieving the established corporate objectives,
safeguarding the Group’s assets, providing reliable financial
reporting and complying with the applicable laws and
regulations. Systems and procedures are also established to
identify, measure, manage and control, rather than eliminate,
different risks arising from different business and functional
activities.

The Group’s Internal Audit Department plays an important role
in the internal control function. It provides objective opinion to
the Board whether a sound internal control system is
maintained and operated in compliance with the established
processes and standards by performing periodic audits over all
major operations of the Group, under a rotational cycle. An
annual audit plan (comprising of annual audit focus and audit
frequencies) is prepared based on the department’s independent
risk assessment. Such work plan is discussed and agreed with
the Audit Committee at the beginning of each financial year.
Major internal audit findings will be submitted to the Audit
Committee for review and all recommendations from the
Internal Audit Department will be properly followed up to
ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable period of
time. The Directors have received the report from the Internal
Audit Department which conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Group. The management
is committed to continuous improvements and the Internal
Control Review Committee comprising the Chairman, Deputy
Chairman, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Talent Officer and the
Senior Manager-Internal Audit would oversee the
implementation of the recommendations raised by the Internal
Audit Department and the continuity of internal control focus
within the Group.

EREEBERE AT RAEMRA
BB E R I A AT DURBEA LY
B B R B o AT E AR
T4 IR B T R A A AR T T
ZJm\ B> LA R~ AT B
RBERE I o

TN AR P R 2 B R B TR AR S
HL o T IR A PR o ke DR R 2 AR
R e pemisE 2= Wil A ® B AR
R T AR [ A E ~ BRI T S RS
N ST I8 A R SR o i B KRR
FFZWTSL B AR - Fh - AR
Pedti o SRR R SRS K )
BTG B) 7 A 2 AT JEUBR

7 A1 [ VA 0 i A A 1 T A B 4 b
W EE A A WAL T
AEZEEEEE - — R — @
BoUmERegRfEBREL A
TS B R S A ROEAT - B
W T e e S HE B o 4R BE AR AT (2
THAFEBER I F AR TS A T4 T
M 2 f ST R B AT AL L AT > WRZE R
7 SV B T A A0 i o A
AR o R AR AL SR B
BRELERZ A GER > T AME
RER T A A RS & 3% BUE - LU
TR 5% R AE A5 SR ) N LAT o o
L WE R B AR A R AT A
Aol A1 TR R B AR A R0RE B R
o TR R W R AR 0 AT B
e AR B S E e A A
WAL E TR - B L - % M
B N B R AR R AR -
BB > I L B AT AR A
Y 412 Hh A o A A I oA A B
PERRFREME -
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R B IR @

The scope of work performed by the internal audit function
during the year included financial and operational reviews,
recurring/surprise cash counts and audits, and special reviews.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the risk assessment
analysis in the areas of strategy, operation, reporting and
compliance of the Group. The impact of risks has been
considered in terms of probability of occurrence and materiality
and there is a mechanism to ensure that there exists appropriate
business strategies or policies and procedures to address risks
where considered necessary.

The Board considers that the internal control system of the
Group is effective and continues to review and update the
system to ensure that shareholder’s investments and the
Group’s assets are safeguarded.

C.3 Audit Committee

Code Principle

An audit committee should be established with clear terms of
reference, including formal and transparent arrangements to
consider how it applies financial reporting and internal control
principles. The audit committee should maintain an appropriate
relationship with the company’s auditors.

AL B A AT AR A 2 AR 64 A 5
B aget - 18 R B S EH
BB RS Rl R o

N TE OO B AR S R R
W~ R R U TR R B
AT 20 A o SIfAR 42 A By 8 A B T
P R i TR R 25 O R B A A 1Y B
B AT — B R DA OR R AR P
T 908 5 F) 255 R g BB SR e R T
A7 I B HL

T G AR SR 2 R T R
AROEAR > B R R S IE R
B AR IR 2 4 Je AR B
FFENPRE o

CIFBZRAR

TR A

W% 22 B AT T R0 T A
[ - LA Ryl Ao B D B S i %
A1 P8 5 2 S A o TE R % L0 B
H 2 P o WAL 2R B R BN R R
Hl P4 228 F) BRI



Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMRRE =EERE adopted by the Group
PRI ST AEERMNEEERER

C.3.1 | Full minutes of audit committee Yes Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit
meetings should be kept and sent to Committee of the Company, the minutes of
all committee members for comment meetings were circulated to all Committee
and records within a reasonable Members.
time.

The minutes were kept by the Company
Secretary.
T B R AR E TR 2 WREA N W 2 W2 B MR > &R Al R
Wik — B A BN N R R R E a4 BT amEEEmE -
HOE - a8 RS R AR -
Bk A0 Bk 1 A )AL A ORAE

C.3.2 | A former partner of the company’s Yes No member of the Audit Committee is a former
existing auditing firm should not act partner of or has financial interest in the existing
as a member of the audit committee. auditing firm of the Company.

BLIRF BT W R B A% B W R R A 2 RIS A% 2 B 8 R A w) BUR A A Rl BT &
BB EIEFEZZEGNE - PSR H b A BB AR -

C.3.3 | The audit committee’ s terms of Yes The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
reference should include the terms included the role and authority delegated by the
set out in Code provision C.3.3 of the Board together with the terms set out in the
CG Code. Code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code.

TR B o IR AR R 2 B A% 22 L 1 W R (A % o T LR R
SR S RIMG SRR C.3. 3 R Pl fie ik J1 > 3[R 4 2B A ST RIS C.3.3 Mk

C.3.4 | The audit committee should make Yes The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
available its terms of reference, are available on the websites of the Stock
explaining its role and the authority Exchange and the Company.
delegated to it by the board by
including them on the Stock
Exchange’ s website and the
company’s website.

WAL B G MEAESE 5 I 8 ol B o 7] 48 i 2 o A% 2 8 ) IR 8 R S T 58 BT T AR R Ay
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Summary of Code Provisions

SRR B E

Compliance
2EMS
<F A5 XX

Corporate Governance Practices
adopted by the Group
AEBRANEEERER

C.3.5

Disclosure of any disagreement
between the board and audit
committee on selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external
auditors. The company should state
the recommendation and reasons for
taking a different view by the board
in Corporate Governance Report.

NERFHEFEL R TAE AL
JEAE KRR - BRI - RAL - BHEEE
SNSRI > 2y R REAECA IR IR
EOTHEEEE RN ER LY
R B AR A -

Yes

Pt

The term of office of RSM Nelson Wheeler will
expire upon the forthcoming annual general
meeting and retire at the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Audit Committee recommended to the
Board the appointment of Ernst & Young as new
independent auditors to fill the vacancy
following the retirement of RSM Nelson Wheeler
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

o iy 5 3E (s ) B 3 5 P 2 A U1 D e
AR R b T A T R Ji S SR 2 K o R R AR
1T -

WAL E B O R TR RO R bR
GG wt B BT % A 18 S A T - LASECAR o B
A () & at A5 IR AL AR A 2 2k

C.3.6

The audit committee should be
provided with sufficient resources to
perform its duties.

Z B G 0 R B IR B AT

F B
s

Yes

fiud

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the Audit Committee has been
provided with sufficient resources, including
advice from external auditor and Internal Audit
Department, to perform its duties, if necessary.

WEAAFRFRGLZEGNRMERRE > FREE g%
$RABET YR > LR SN A AT e oA 8 A% 1 £
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRMRRE =EERE adopted by the Group
PRI ST AEERMNEEERER
C.3.7 | The terms of reference of the audit Yes The Audit Committee reviews arrangements
committee should also require it: employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible
(a) to review arrangements improprieties in financial reporting, internal
employees of the company can control or other matters and the appropriate
use, in confidence, to raise follow-up action, if any; and acts as the key
concerns about possible representative body for overseeing the
improprieties in financial Company’s relations with the external auditor.
reporting, internal control or
other matters and the A policy “TSL Staff Integrity Guidelines” has
appropriate follow-up action; and been posted on the intranet of the Company for
our employees to refer to.
(b) to act as the key representative
body for overseeing the
company’s relations with the
external auditor.
TR B IR E R A = FEE B GREAFRER L 2P - ARHEE AT

(a) At Al BCE I LA T 8k« 22 F R
AT e B S R~ A A
oAty Ty 1T W] BB EE A B AN IE R AT S
BT o TR B oA B
E-S7 N UASHE JIA R (I PAS S
TS T A KRB EATE) K

(b) ¥4 2> w) SLANE AL Bl 2 ] 1 = 22
3R ARER FH ZH IR -

R St S O ~ A 0 42 R Ay T T RE R A
MR IERAT R b2 th B U - & B o MR R A
732N VAl AR (A S VADE R g
BB EATE (WA 5 B IS AT 22 w) BLANE AR Bkl 2 [H]
AR - AREE FH MR -
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The Audit Committee was established on 20 November 1998. It
comprises three members who are all Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. Subsequent to the year end,
Mr. Chow Chee Wai, Christopher was appointed as an additional
member of the Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the
review and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures, review of the Group’s financial
statements and review of the relationship with the external
auditor of the Company. The Audit Committee meets at least
twice a year.

The Audit Committee met twice during the year ended 28
February 2013 and the individual members’ attendance records
are disclosed in the section “Attendance Record at Meetings” in
this report.

The amount of fees charged by the Auditor generally depends
on the scope and volume of the Auditor’s work. For the year
ended 28 February 2013, the remuneration payable to RSM
Nelson Wheeler was approximately HK$2,000,000 for audit
services and HK$189,000 for other assurance services.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year:

(a) discussed with the external auditor the general scope of their
audit work;

(b) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board in
respect of the audit fee proposals for the Group for the year
ended 28 February 2013;

(c) reviewed and approved the Group’s internal audit policy and
internal audit plan for the year 2013;

FZ B ER 1998411 A 20 A A
oo =AM B AN BT R E Y
L5 B ST IR AT HE o R B AR
% RG R SeE ERAT BN
ZHEMA -

T Z B W E R e R
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FEHEZEGRBE2013F2H 28
F 1k 4 3 o SR AT T R ik o B
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1L > AT TR EEE (RS g
S T 2 R S T 4 s
2,000,000 7t S HAth IF 9% 51 e Hs #2
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(d) reviewed the internal audit reports covering the evaluation
of internal controls;

(e) reviewed the audited financial statements and final results

announcement for the year ended 29 February 2012;

(f) reviewed the Interim Report and interim results
announcement for the six months ended 31 August 2012;

(g) reviewed the internal control review report on the Group’s
operations; and

(h) reviewed the Corporate Governance Report for the year
ended 29 February 2012.

The Group’s audited financial statements for the year ended 28
February 2013 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

(d) 25 B8 A 56 1A 50 5 22 5T Al 2 A8
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D.DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

D.1Management Functions
Code Principle

A company should have a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved for board approval. The board should give clear
directions to management on the matters that must be approved

by it before decisions are made on the company’s behalf.

COI’pOI'ate GOVGI‘H&IICG Rep()l’t (continued)
R B IR @

D. & F G RE ) 1

D.1 Bk fE
TR R
I T A — TEIE R TE E B
B S ) L g A S E o
= R W e 4 s LR A0 Lk = TR R
S 45 oy 3 = o A FRE 5 Al At
TNFAMEHPE -

OE IS P nk s e g YR Sin
G s Eri S g -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SRR E =EHE adopted by the Group
SF AR AEBRANEEERER
D.1.1 | The board must give clear directions Yes Please refer to the section below.
as to the management’ s powers,
particularly on delegation to The detailed disclosure of respective
management and those required responsibilities, accountabilities and
prior board approval. contributions of the board and management is
set out on pages 24 to 35 of section “Directors
and Senior Management Profile”.
HRGWANEMEIRE] - &5 TIHW 2 GEL RS

i B A5 A Bk - & B A F A
TR ER SN BN S 24E35 5 [EE L
FEAE L B ) — e




Summary of Code Provisions Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

functions reserved to the board and
those delegated to management.

O3 EE IR SE LR B T S ) Bk RE SR
LB T PR I RE 20 I TR E R o

D.1.3 | The company should disclose Yes
the respective responsibilities,
accountabilities and contributions of
the board and management.

fid

2% ) B4 R o B L A R
o A& BT A F B R R E
B o

D.1.4 | Directors should clearly understand Yes
delegation arrangements in place.
Company should have formal letters
of appointment for directors.

ot

prot

2 7 R R A O O g P2 B
A FEAIEARER B -

FRMRRE =EERE adopted by the Group
SFRIR X FEBRANDEEERER
D.1.2 | The company should formalise Yes Please refer to the section below.

The detailed disclosure of respective
responsibilities, accountabilities and
contributions of the board and management is
set out on pages 24 to 35 of section “Directors
and Senior Management Profile”.

The Company has letters of appointment for
directors which set out the key terms and
conditions of their appointment.

FEAR R o

WEGHEHES AN E > HEaumMEAFA
HREHE RS BN E24 835 HZ [EE K
RSB /e

AFRAEAMEREZALE - GTUA RN R
A IARAE

The Board is collectively responsible for the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing
shareholders’ value. The Board is responsible for making
decisions on major operational and financial matters as well as
investments, and overseeing the management of the business.
Matters reserved to the Board for decision include significant
financial and legal commitments, material asset acquisition or
disposal, the change of share capital, the approval of financial
reporting and budget.

3 I A B TR LA A BB M
W HIRR R -
B H RN BB I o DL
T A SR o S B SR A
BTAE MEFFRENWFECUR
ORI SE R - R E L
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The general management and day-to-day operations, including
preparation of annual and interim reports and accounts for
board approval before public reporting, execution of business
strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, monitoring of
operating budgets, implementation of adequate systems of
internal controls and risk management procedures, and
compliance with relevant statutory requirements and rules and

ERCAESINIE SCNCIETE 4 iR P
o o B DA S e B
PHCATAL > BT S SRA Y 3
5 5K s B ek m,,\%@ﬁ% "
il 2 480 A1 S 5 R A L B LA
7> LA R ST R B O 5 R AL
BRI - 32 58 o A 2R [ B

regulations, are delegated to the management team of the AT
Group.
D.2Board Committees D2HFFETEHEY
Code Principle R A
Board committees should be formed with specific written terms HHRGETRZ AN NOLETH
of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties. T A 5 TR AR TS R
B K -
Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
AR E =ERE adopted by the Group
F AR 3 AEBRANCESAER
D.2.1 | Clear terms of reference to enable Yes Each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
board committees to perform their Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
functions properly. Executive Committee of the Company has clear
terms of reference which set out the authority,
duties and reporting procedures.
FEOIE RN RRER E > SEE RN R 2 KRNRIZHERERG FNEREG - REZHGHR
e R E AT AE o 1 %E@E’J%J‘J i 3% I RSP 7 3 45 B 8 HL Bk
REE S 2] A 97 A 51
D.2.2 | The terms of reference should require Yes Board committees report their findings,
the committees to report back their decisions and recommendations to the Board at
decisions or recommendations to the the board meetings.
board.
N K 2 B a0 oA A R P

%A 2T B e MO R

EREE T ZAORAEFGGRPEF TR
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D.3Corporate Governance Functions

D.3 4RIk RE

e &
TUHEAT D. 3.1 VR R [ T AR Y A 26

AT -

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
AR E 2ERE adopted by the Group
SF R FEERMANEEERER
D.3.1 | The terms of reference of the board Yes The Corporate Governance Functions would be
(or a committee or committees performed by the Board and its duties set out in
performing this function) should the terms of reference in D.3.1 of the CG Code.
include the functions as set out in the
Code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.
#HEG (SEITHBEEN R B E) K = DEE R RS AR > HMERAEER
R (B8 R 2D (4 A S A ST U 9 <7 ) SRS D. 3.1 AR o 3 T o
B SCER D. 3.1 e T sl o
D.3.2 | The board (or a committee or Yes
committees performing this function)
should be responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties set
out in the terms of reference in
D.3.1.
HHE (EITIRENE B g) B =
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E. COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

E.1Effective Communication
Code Principle

The board should be responsible for maintaining an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, use annual
general meeting or other general meetings to communicate with

them and encourage their participation.

(continued)

E. Bk S r i
E.1 4738
FRIAI

) BRI AR AR
Al R R IR A R At
P SRR By AL SRS 9 I S D 1 2 2
Bl o

WEREAY MRS T RRAER
B I R SR A I g [l
P o

Y A A L A R 7 I A i e TR T
FOR ARGl [ 2552 R o

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
SRR E =EHE adopted by the Group
SF AR X AEBRANEEERER

E.1.1 | A separate resolution at a general Yes Separate resolutions are proposed at the annual
meeting on each substantial separate general meeting on each substantially separate
issue should be proposed by the issue, including election of directors.
chairman of that meeting.
TERCHRA B b B il 36 R A0 1 T B 1 iz A SR AR > O JEU R R S SO (L
T S B SRR A R ) PR R o B ) I Bl L R o

E.1.2 | The chairman of the board should Yes The Chairman of the Board and all chairman
attend the annual general meeting. and members of the Audit Committee, the
He should also invite for the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
chairman of audit, remuneration and Committee have attended the 2012 AGM and
nomination committees to attend and answered shareholders’ questions during the
be available to answer questions. meeting.
The company’s management should Meanwhile, the representative of RSM Nelson
ensure the external auditor attend Wheeler, the external auditor also attended the
the annual general meeting to 2012 AGM and answered shareholders’
answer questions. questions during the meeting.
S S LR PR RO AR - ik = R LR EREAT  FMEAGRREEL

B2 T R A B B A U 2012 4 R 4R R
B T 0] R AR B

L[] Ry > SN AZ R P B I 2 (77 ) &t il s
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance

Corporate Governance Practices

at least 20 clear business days’
notice to shareholders of annual
general meeting and at least 10 clear
business days’ notice for all other
general meetings.

FRMRRE =EERE adopted by the Group
<FRIESC AEBRANEEERER
E.1.3 | The company should arrange to send Yes The Company has given at least 20 clear

business days’ notice to shareholders to attend
the 2012 AGM.

A DU R LS

WBRBER G T - A FELHEER 2 ARy H) A 201 2 4F i o AR 8 SR AT i R R 8
B ERAT R A D R 201875 2E H ) R g IR L 20 72 H R o

PRI > T A HAR R R i &

RIZEAE K& AT 20 2 10 & 3 H

BRI -

E.1.4 | The board should establish a Yes The Company has adopted a shareholders’
shareholders’ communication policy communication policy during the year. The
and review it on a regular basis to Board reviews the efficiency of the policy
ensure its effectiveness. regularly.

The Shareholders Communication Policy is
available on the website of the Company.
g ) o IR R > I AR 2 AN W) B AR AR A B AR R BOR - # e

MR 2R B AL -

Je S BRI A 2 F) Al A

The Company establishes and maintains different
communication channels with its shareholders through the
publication of annual reports, interim reports and press
releases. Such information is also available on the Company’s
website www.tslj.com. The annual general meeting provides a
useful forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.

AR AV T B B S
E R I NN S a4 S N
W o A BERIR R AL A
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BOTA -
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g 0 SO A
R B IR @
E.2Voting by Poll E.2 U505 Uk ik
Code Principle R A
The company should ensure that shareholders are familiar with 25 ) JRE R AR JBEHRA R LA S O 3R
the detailed procedures for conducting a poll. RIFEART -
Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
AR E =ERE adopted by the Group
SF AR AEBRANEEERER
E.2.1 | The chairman of the meeting should Yes Details of the procedures for conducting a poll
ensure that the detailed procedures have been disclosed in the Company’s 2012
for conducting a poll are explained AGM circular to shareholders.
and answer any questions from
shareholders on voting by poll. The Chairman of the 2012 AGM explained the

procedures for conducting a poll at the
commencement of the meeting and answered
the questions from the Shareholders regarding

> 100 the poll voting.

R 2 5 M e DR A kL i J R A R A DA SR J5 sUAR B B R R AR P L A A 2 ) i) B 7 %
FO7AOEAT R R FERIAR Y > Sl M1 2% 9 201 2 4 i SR AF B Y38 1K) 7 4 o
JEHAT B LA A3 52 05 sCaR R AT A 2 )
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G L CR 2012 4F i SUE AR K8 BH 4 1 A R
DA R J5 SOEAT 2R U AT i B R 25 IR 3 4% 3 07 =X
FRAGEER -

At the Company’s 2012 AGM, all the resolutions were taken by AN ) 2012 4F B OB A K b
way of poll and Tricor Secretaries Limited, the Company’s Hong AP E LRy Rt %
Kong Branch Share Registrar, was engaged as scrutineer to Yoo AN F) T A U A P B
ensure the votes were properly counted. RO BB I A PR A mIEAT

B R B PR -



F. COMPANY SECRETARY

Code Principle

The company secretary is responsible for advising the board
through the chairman and/or the chief executive on governance
matters and should also facilitate induction and professional

development of directors.

F. A A fb#E
< H 5 B
N TEVRL B B R K AT U
EHGRMEERHETTWER > Pk
W ARREE Y R B o

Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
FRIGRIIEE —=REHE adopted by the Group
<F A5 X EEERMNEEERER
F.1.1 | The company secretary should be an Yes The Company Secretary, Mr. Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence,
employee of the company and have is an employee of the Company, he is also an
day-to-day knowledge of the Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the
company’s affairs. Company, who has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company’s affairs.
During the financial year, the Company Secretary
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.
AFIRERERAANES - BHARKA p PNAERERFREA BAEAFEE - BFEIRFIR AN
WA TR A PATEE S R T AR A AR A E
A H E AR
AR B - A FRED SR DR 15 /MR I EE
B o
F.1.2 | The board should approve the Yes The appointment and removal of the Company
selection, appointment or dismissal Secretary is subject to Board approval in accordance
of the company secretary. with Bye-law of the Company.
O )RR AR~ AT R O R A & 7 RS 2 1) AT B R A T AR R AR 2N ) 4 A4 B ARG R
HEHE BLE o
F.1.3 | The company secretary should report Yes The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman
to the board chairman and/or the and they held regular meetings.
chief executive.
A R I o 2 S R BT A = 7 ) RIS ) B S G B o SRR o
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Summary of Code Provisions Compliance Corporate Governance Practices
TR E =RFE adopted by the Group
SF RIS TEERMNEEERER
F.1.4 | Directors should have access to Yes Directors have access to the advice and services to

advice and services of the company the Company Secretary and key officers of the

secretary. Company Secretarial Department to ensure that the
board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

S JE T S 2 w0 R - = H#A A U A R A RAR A Rl 2 A A A E ER T £
N B R RIRS > TR g 72 )5 BT A 8 A LR
T Ao 5145 2| 2~y

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a Special General Meeting
(“SGM™)

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (“Companies Act”), registered Shareholders holding not less
than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company (“SGM
Requisitionists”) can deposit a written request to convene a SGM at the
registered office of the Company (“Registered Office”), which is
presently situated at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda. The SGM Requisitionists must state in their request(s) the
purposes of the SGM and such request(s) must be signed by all the SGM
Requisitionists and may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of the SGM Requisitionists.
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The Share Registrars will verify the SGM Requisitionists” particulars in
the SGM Requisitionists’ request. Promptly after confirmation from the
Share Registrars that the SGM Requisitionists’ request is in order, the
Company Secretary will arrange with the Board to convene a SGM by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered Shareholders in accordance
with all the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements. On the
contrary, if the SGM Requisitionists’ request is verified not in order, the
SGM Requisitionists will be advised of the outcome and accordingly, a
SGM will not be convened as requested.

The SGM Requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
SGM if within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of the SGM
Requisitionists’ request, the Board does not proceed duly to convene a
SGM provided that any SGM so convened is held within three (3)
months from the date of the original SGM Requisitionists’ request. A
SGM so convened by the SGM Requisitionists shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to
be convened by the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at a general
meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act, either any number of the registered
Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such
registered Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give
to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next general meeting
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended
to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to Shareholders entitled
to have notice of any general meeting any statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.
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The requisition signed by all the Requisitionists may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more of the
Requisitionists; and it must be deposited at the Registered Office with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s relevant expenses,
not less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before the
meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that if an AGM is
called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition has been
deposited, the requisition though not deposited within the time required
shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the purposes
thereof.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election as a
Director, please refer to the procedures made available under the
Corporate Information, Corporate Governance section (Shareholders
Communication Policy sub-section) of the Company’s website at www.
tslj.com.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact details
are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
Ground Floor, Block B, Summit Building,

30 Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2356 0215
Email: enquiry@tslj.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s constitutional documents have been posed on the
Corporate Information, Corporate Governance section (Constitutional
Documents sub-section) of the Company’s website at www.tslj.com.
There are no changes in the constitutional documents of the Company

during the year under review.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, Audit
Committee meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination
Committee meetings and general meeting during the year ended 28

B A

AN R OE R SO R A A F AU
www.tslj.com 1 F 1 B A A B R — i
LR SCARIN o A I BIAR BN AR R R
BT AN AT AT B )

Bk R Ao gk

K EFH R E 201342 H 28 H L4
HHRGGR FREZAGGR FNEAE
o T e R YL T N

February 2013 is set out in the following table: S
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting
EHG FwHZAG Pz & REZAG Jie O A
Directors % ik ik ok ik K&
Number of meetings held AT 4 2 2 2 1
Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held
ik R U R A T R B
Executive Directors: HWTES .
Yau On Yee, Annie JS3Es
(Chairman & Chief Executive Officer) (F 7 RATECAR ) 4/4 N/A A 2/2 2/2 1/1
Erwin Steve Huang FRK
(Deputy Chairman & (RS R 33 A
Chief Corporate Development Officer) 3/4 N/A R N/A R N/A AR ) 0/1
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence BT
(Chief Financial Officer & (R S M R/ w )
Company Secretary) 4/4 N/A Z:ﬁjﬁﬁ N/AK?EH% N/AK%EE% 1/1
Non-executive Director: FfTES
Wang Guosheng T 5
(appointed on 23 July 2012) (201247 ] 23 HHEZIT) 2/2 N/A AR A N/A R H N/A R H N/A R4
Independent Non-executive %I /7H% % ¢
Directors:
Chui Chi Yun, Robert BT 4/4 2/2 2/2 N/A R 1/1
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin =~ S21E#E 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BREAHE 4/4 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
Chow Chee Wai, Christopher  Jiiffé
(appointed on 1 March 2013) (201343 /1 1 HEE(T) N/A A i N/AA# N/AA# N/A A N/A A
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B Az B R &

@) RSM

Audit - Tax - Advisory

To The Shareholders Of
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tse Sui Luen
Jewellery (International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 108 to 211,
which comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial
position as at 28 February 2013, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
28 February 2013, and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 May 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

fo B e T e 3

For the year ended 28 February 2013

BAE20134E2 H 28 HILAESE
28.2.2013 29.2.2012
Note 201342 H 28 H 201242H 29 H
Mzt HK$'000#¥ToC HK$ 000 # T T
Turnover (g 2] 6&15 3,562,819 3,359,063
Cost of goods sold SR A (1,894,715) (1,749,865)
Gross profit EH 1,668,104 1,609,198
Other income HAb A 7&15 7,575 14,674
Selling expenses B (1,389,798) (1,228,604)
Administrative expenses 1T H (142,190) (150,084)
Profit from operations #eaz 7o 143,691 245,184
Finance costs B2 8(a) (43,833) (9,377)
Profit before taxation BBt iy ) 8 99,858 235,807
Taxation BiIA 9 (27,773) (54,811)
Profit for the year AR JE 7R 72,085 180,996
Other comprehensive income J Al 2 T A
Exchange difference arising on 0 B S 2 W B R
translation of financial statements 2 e 50, 22 B
of foreign subsidiaries (1,918) 19,983
Other comprehensive income AR AR B H A 2 T A
for the year, net of tax (FnpRFiE) (1,918) 19,983
Total comprehensive income AR JBE A THT WO B
for the year 70,167 200,979
Profit attributable to JRE A 2 ) 5 4y
Owners of the Company EN/NTIE] ZEDN 72,234 162,347
Non-controlling interests FE 1 e 1 AURE 4 (149) 18,649
72,085 180,996




28.2.2013 29.2.2012

Note 201342 H 28 H 201242 H29H
Bt &% HK$’ 000 ##Toc  HK$'000 i ¥ T 7T
Total comprehensive income JRE A 2 TG W\ SR Ay
attributable to
Owners of the Company L /NEIE ZEDN 70,342 179,147
Non-controlling interests T P2 IR B R 45 (175) 21,832
70,167 200,979
Earnings per share (Y&l
Basic A 14(a) 34.3 cents{lll 77.2 centsflll
Diluted it 14(b) N/A AV N/A A

The notes on pages 116 to 211 form part of these financial statements.

F116 5B 211 MR A B ik -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fo B B 5 IR D e e

At 28 February 2013
201342 H 28 H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Other asset

Deposits

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Current tax assets

Cash at bank and in hand

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Bank overdrafts — secured

Bank loans

Convertible bonds

Interest bearing payable
Obligations under finance leases
Current tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
carried forward

FEi B ¥

E DY G i
A
Fb

&&

I SUE A5 T

T

PEacy

B MSC SR 5K 5 At R A
A B E
RATAF R BB &

B AR

JRE A e 2 L At R A5 3k
HATIE I - AR
HMATRK

] AR 2

GRSy REN

T AH BRI
AL A K

B A
AP B VAT I R A G

Note
B 5E

16(a)
17
19
21
28

20
21

22

23
24
24
26
38(a)
25

28.2.2013

201342 H 28 H
HK$°000 # ¥ T

131,233
99

500
29,551
26,874

188,257

1,584,764
233,489
8,375
205,848

2,032,476

(555,685)
(19,914)
(335,748)
(12,842)

(5,692)
(5,377)

(935,258)
1,097,218

1,285,475

29.2.2012
201242 H29H
HKS$’000 # ¥ 1T

137,932
500
23,126
21,036

182,594

1,593,216
215,533
1,237
102,512

1,912,498

(632,803)
(44,063)
(269,246)

(120,000)
(4,179)
(39,895)

(1,110,186)
802,312

984,906



28.2.2013

Note 201342 H 28 H
B 53 HK$ 000 # T C
Total assets less current liabilities 7R 4% % 72 Vi B £ 15
brought forward 1,285,475
Non-current liabilities i B £ K
Obligations under finance leases Al R B R A 25 (2,338)
Employee benefit obligations 1R Bt A 375 27 (15,186)
Convertible bonds AR R 2 26 (254,831)
Deferred tax liabilities R JE Rl T A 28 (24,427)
(296,782)
NET ASSETS I 988,693
CAPITAL AND RESERVES A Ko Gl
Share capital R A 29 52,584
Reserves G 30 936,210
Total equity attributable to owners A2 & B A\ HEAL
of the Company BE 75 B0 988,794
Non-controlling interests I Je PR JBe SRR 25 (101)
TOTAL EQUITY HE %5 483 988,693
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 May 2013
HEEH 2013455 H 30 H AN FF ol T8
Yau On Yee, Annie it %4
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence % 7 i Directors #%

— = — —

The notes on pages 116 to 211 form part of these financial statements.

29.2.2012
201242 29 H
HK$’000 ## T-7¢

984,906

(2,552)
(19,727)

(24,380)
(46,659)
938,247

52,584
885,663

938,247

938,247

116 255 211 HRMETE A M B ko) -
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Statement of Financial Position

$ 25 IR D e e

At 28 February 2013

201342 H 28 H
28.2.2013
Note 201342 H 28 H
bt HK$ 000 # # Tt
Non-current assets JEREE
Property, plant and equipment Vi3 ~ W KR 16(b) 706
Interests in subsidiaries RAF G 2 v R 2 18 1,257,397
Deferred tax assets R Lol TE & 28 134
1,258,237
Current assets i)
Prepayments TAAF K 21(d) 183
Current tax assets AR I 354
Cash at bank and in hand RATAFR I S B 4 22 195
732

Current liabilities WH) £
Other payables and accruals oAb AT 3K I E 2 23(b) (2,502)
Convertible bonds CEYide 26 (12,842)
Current tax liabilities AMABLTE £ 5 -

(15,344)
Net current liabilities i B £ AR A (14,612)
Total assets less current liabilities 48 % & W i B £ £ 1,243,625
Non-current liabilities B/ N
Convertible bonds EEdides 26 (254,831)
NET ASSETS B B 988,794
CAPITAL AND RESERVES AR R ik A
Share capital &S 29 52,584
Reserves it 30 936,210
TOTAL EQUITY W 25 40 988,794
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 May 2013
#2013 4 5 H 30 H RN a] T8
Yau On Yee, Annie if 224
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence 2 i, Directors #%#

— — = —

The notes on pages 116 to 211 form part of these financial statements.

29.2.2012
201242 H 29 H
HK$'000 i #T0

399
938,298
50

938,747

1,384

134
1,518

(1,541)

(477)
(2,018)

(500)
938,247

938,247

52,584
885,663

938,247

H116 255 211 F R AP — 5



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 28 February 2013

BAE20134E2 H 28 HILAESE
Total equity
Convertible attributable
Share Share Capital  Exchange bonds Proposed  to owners Non-
capital  premium reserves reserve reserve Retained final ofthe  controlling Total
(note29) (note30(c)()) (note30(c)(i)) (note30(c)(iv) (note30(c)(v)) profits dividend Company interests equity
K 3 YNk 2 DN R
Bk MBEE  BARE O EXGE  BHRE O RREMN O KWRE BRESSE  WoiEs  EReE
(BFE29) (B3E30(0)0) (HERE 30(c)(i) (BiF3E 30((iv)) (HE3E 30(c)(v)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000
T [T L s T T RO L B T HHET T
At 1 March 2011 2011431 1 gk 52,584 123,365 158,405 77,550 - 374,480 25,240 811,024 120,802 932,426
Transfer to capital reserves LR N ] - - 2,659 - - 2,659) - - - -
Acquisition of non-controlling U B e B R R A
interest (note 38(a)) (3 38(a)) - - (21,605) - - - - (21,605)  (128,395)  (150,000)
Dividends paid BIRIEE - - - - - (5,679) (25,240) (30,919 (14,239) (45,158)
Proposed final dividend (2011/12)  ##IRA IS (2011/12)
(note 13) (M7E13) - - - - - (26,292) 26,292 - - -
Total comprehensive income REEATASH
for the year - - - 16,800 - 162,347 - 179,147 21,832 200,979
At 29 February 2012 and r201242 /129
1 March 2012 Je2012%8 3 11 H R 52,584 123,365 139,459 94,350 - 502,197 26,292 938,247 - 938,247
Transfer to capital reserves R - - 1,056 - - (1,056) - - - -
Capital contribution from ME R E
non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - 74 74
Dividends paid ERME - - - - - (2,103) (26,292) (28,395) - (28,395)
Proposed final dividend (2012/13)  $ERAMINE (2012/13)
(note 13) (HE13) - - - - - (14,724) 14,724 - - -
Tssue of convertible honds BT ES
(note 26) (W5 26) - - - - 8,000 - - 8,000 - 8,000
Total comprehensive income SR TN
for the year - - - (1,892) - 72,234 - 70,342 (175) 70,167
At 28 February 2013 201342 A 28 HEE B 52,584 123,365 140,515 92,458 8,000 556,548 14,724 988,794 (101) 988,093

The notes on pages 116 to 211 form part of these financial statements.

116 258 211 Rk AP ick o) -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

22 N ool = R
GZolana®
For the year ended 28 February 2013

BE20134E2 H 28 H L4

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
— Finance costs
— Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
— Depreciation
— Interest income
— Provision/(reversal) of allowance
for bad and doubtful debts
— Adjustment in respect of long
service payments
— Provision for inventories

Operating profit before changes
in working capital
Decrease/(increase) in inventories

R
Wt i 2L )
A

- Es 2

- B - R R 1

- e
- FLEMA

- RO (R )

— TR A RS < e R ) A

- fr B
B B AT B

D, ()

Increase in trade and other receivables REULHEE - Hofth ek 2

and deposits
(Decrease)/increase in trade and
other payables

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid

— Hong Kong Profits Tax

- Overseas tax

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Investing activities

Payments to acquire property,
plant and equipment

Payments to acquire intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Bt 3 m
JRE A R R At FE A+ 3K
(D) B
R W R Bl
CATBLIA
— A B
— igAMBLIH
memsEE (FiH)
¥4 B 4 Y A
BEEH
SRS A ~ RRBS B

S AR
WA - W KB TR

2 AL
T B Bir 4 B 4

g
A

TH

Note

28.2.2013
201342 H 28 H
HK$ 000 # T ¢
99,858

43,833

489

55,055

(458)

480

(4,541)
3,016

197,732
5,436

(24,861)

(77,118)
101,189

(28,270)
(46,783)

26,136

(41,084)
(99)

103
458

(40,622)

29.2.2012
20124E2 A 29 H
HKS$’000 i #F¢
235,807

9,377

15

54,543

(460)

(14,155)

6,982
3,668

295,777
(328,387)

(5,306)

78,554
40,638

(1,155)
(45,846)

(6,363)

(61,402)

66
460

(60,876)



Financing activities

Capital element of finance lease
payments

Proceeds from new bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Repayment of interest bearing payable

Payments to acquire non-controlling
interest in subsidiaries

Net proceeds from trade financing

Interest element of finance lease
payments

Proceed from issue of convertible
bonds

Transaction costs on issue
of convertible bonds

Capital contribution from
non-controlling shareholders
of a subsidiary

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rates
changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of year

Analysis of balances of cash
and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand

Bank overdrafts — secured

The notes on pages 116 to 211 form part of these financial statements.
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51 T 55 3 9
TR B4 S B 5

Bl BB S HM Z K58 BT

AT B &
HATIB S - AR

Note
Bt 53

38(a)

38(a)

28.2.2013 29.2.2012
201342128 1 201242 /1 29
HK$’000 # ¥ T7C¢  HK$ 000 s ¥ T 7T
6,750) 2,722)
10,000 30,000
(56.700) (17.500)
(120.000) -
- (30,000)
113,202 62.866
(449) (238)
250,000 -
2,573) -
74 -
(14,538) 9,139)
(28.395) (30.919)
143,871 2,348
129,385 (64,891) >115
58,449 103,881
(1.900) 19,459
185,934 58,449
205,848 102,512
(19,914) (44,063)
185,934 58,449

SB116. 255 211 FIN s A B R — o)



>116

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 205 A P

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability.
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of its principal
place of business is Ground Floor, Block B, Summit Building, 30
Man Yue Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for
its accounting year beginning on 1 March 2012. HKFRSs
comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”);
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations.
The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in
significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s financial statements and amounts
reported for the current year and prior years.
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RECENT ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL 3.
REPORTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new and

revised standards and interpretations which are not yet effective

for the current year and have not been early adopted by the

Group. The Group has already commenced an assessment of the

impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state

whether these new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its

results of operations and financial position.

B HIL LA AT i e B
Rl

S I AT BT BRA DA o i
24 96 A 4 0 o 2 M
AT~ 1 BT 2 3 R R e R - S
L A £ R AL 4 R B
A2 AR - e R RERESE MO 0
T M T o S S 2 S
BRI R T B -

HKFRS 1 Amendment Government Loans?
HKFRS 7 Amendment Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities®
HKEFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements and
HKFRS 12 Amendment Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Transition Guidance?
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?
HKEFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities®
HKAS 27 (2011) Amendment
HKAS 1 Amendment Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income!
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits?
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements?
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures?
HKAS 32 Amendment Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities®

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine?®

Annual Improvements Project

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle?
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BB 125 REEE B nE:
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FEUHREELE 105 iR
BRI 125
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(2011 BTk
IS R 2ERARRNZR!
FikEHERA 195 (2010) AR
FkETHERS 275 (2010) B
FREGHENESE 01 REEATRABAAZRE
Fb A 28Tk AR R RMT A
R (ARHHRERE BRI PR WA
B -RBENE
YR 2000-2011 BN

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

ow o =
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2013417 1 H R B 2 @t 4R AR
2014451 H 1 HSRAK B IR 2 st 4 B AR
201541 H 1 H sRUAK B 2 ot 4 AR
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise their
judgements in the process of applying the accounting policies.
The areas involving critical judgements and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these financial
statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
28 February. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. Control is the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group has control.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

NOtGS tO the FinanCia] Statements (continued)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between the non-controlling interests and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.

(b) Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
cost of acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date fair
value of the assets given, equity instruments issued,
liabilities incurred and contingent consideration.
Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the
periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary
in the acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair

values.

4. EHEEFHBOR @)

(a) AREHEHE ()

7 S BOA N ] e LI RE
WY g 2 ) A 7 2 B8 2 A 4 2
oy AR (RIEA N LR A 5
T Z WEATAC5)) - PEchE fi %
T 2 I8 FBe AU i 22 MR T L B AR
AR DR e HL A R 2
A R R i S ) o IR TR R
REAT 2 B SR AT STk
A 2 2 R AR ] AT o] 2
TR R A AR o S AL

RIHEA NG

AL T Z BB IR DL R A
T BA B 2 ) 2 A i T 4 SR AS BB
W TR A A SR o B Jag 2 W
Z R AR A OO T

B B FEE AR

(b) AR GE

T SE5 5 OF o BT s g 2 W
TR AR o WO B AR 9% B
fF B - BT R AT R AR LA
Ji 2 A A B R AR R
H 2 A SR o WA B
AT AT ] IR T A B B A
A7 I I 25 Tl 0 5 B S o
WS B B Je 2> ) 2 W )
A HR O H 3 2 A

AR -



4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of
the Company’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase which is attributed to the Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is
added to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest in the subsidiary were recognised in other
comprehensive income (for example, available-for-sale
investment), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis as
would be required if the previously held equity interest were
disposed of.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The method of measuring
impairment losses of goodwill is the same as that of other
assets as stated in the accounting policy (x) below.
Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss and are not subsequently
reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition
for the purpose of impairment testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currency translation

(c)

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values
in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements (continued)

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

- Income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the exchange reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (continued)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities
and of borrowings are recognised in the exchange
reserve. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in consolidated
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal useful lives are as follows:

Land and buildings over the remaining life of the
lease but not exceeding
55 years from the date
of purchase

Furniture, fixtures 1 to 10 years
and equipment

Plant and machinery 3 to 7 years

Motor vehicles 4 to 10 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(e) Leases
(i) Operating leases

(ii)

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as finance leases. At the commencement
of the lease term, a finance lease is capitalised at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the
present value of the minimum lease payments, each
determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the statement of financial position as finance lease
payable. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same
as owned assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

®

(8

(h)

®

Trademarks

Trademarks with indefinite useful life are stated at cost less
any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed annually or
when there is any indication that the trademarks have
suffered an impairment loss.

Membership

Membership with indefinite useful life is stated at cost less
any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed annually or
when there is any indication that the membership has
suffered an impairment loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the statement of financial position when the Group becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i) Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

(continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is

recognised in profit or loss.

(j) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. An allowance for impairment of trade and
other receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables.
The amount of the allowance is the difference between the
receivables’ carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition. The amount of

the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

@

(k)

)]

Trade and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods and
recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
receivables’ recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the
receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(m) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting

period.

(n) Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which entitle the holder to convert the
bonds into a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed
conversion price are regarded as compound instruments
consist of a liability and an equity component. At the date of
issue, the fair value of the liability component is estimated
using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debt. The difference between the proceeds of
issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the embedded option
for the holder to convert the bonds into equity of the Group,
is included in equity as reserve. The liability component is
carried as a liability at amortised cost using the effective
interest method until extinguished on conversion or

redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible bonds based on their
relative carrying amounts at the date of issue. The portion
relating to the equity component is charged directly to

equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(0)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group maintains loyalty points programmes within its
retail shops operate in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), which allow customers to accumulate
points when they purchase products in the shops or joining
its clubs/programmes. The points can then be redeemed for
free products/gifts, subject to certain terms and conditions.
A portion of the consideration received for the products sold
is allocated to the points issued and deferred. This is then
recognised as revenue over the period that the points are
redeemed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the
amount of revenue can be measure reliability.

Revenues from the sales of manufactured goods and trading
of finished goods are recognised on the transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods are delivered and
the title has passed to the customers.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(r) Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis

using the effective interest method.

Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers,
under the Group’s customer loyalty programme, are
accounted for as multiple element revenue transactions and
the fair value of the consideration received or receivable is
allocated between the goods sold and the award credits
granted. The consideration allocated to the award credits is
measured by reference to their fair value. Such
consideration is not recognised as revenue at the time of the
initial sale transaction — but is deferred and recognised as
revenue when the award credits are redeemed and the

Group’s obligations have been fulfilled.

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, leave
passage and the cost to the Group of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees of the
Group. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated

at their present value.

(i) Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds (“MPF”)
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and contributions
to the retirement schemes operated by the relevant
authorities for employees of the subsidiaries in the
PRC, Malaysia and Japan are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income as incurred, except to the
extent that they are included in the cost of inventories

not yet recognised as an expense.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s)

®

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump sum
long service amounts payable on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances under the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods. The
obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
method by a qualified actuary, discounted to its
present value, and the fair value of any related plan
assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at
year end date on Exchange Fund Notes that have
maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s
obligations.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain employees and suppliers. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of
non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(u) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group
that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a

qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(v) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group'’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end

of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on interests in subsidiaries except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(v)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(w) Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group if:

(Aa)

(B)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

®

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

®

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(w) Related parties (continued)
(B) (continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(C) Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity and include:

®

(i)

(iid)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

dependants of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x)

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet
available for use are reviewed annually for impairment and
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets
except deferred tax assets, inventories and receivables to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x)

(y)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(z)

(aa)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when material.

Segment reporting

The Group determined its operating segments and prepared
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the Group’s chief operating decision
makers, for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and review of these
components’ performance.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such intra-
group balances and transactions are between group
enterprises within a single segment.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the year to acquire segment assets that are expected
to be used for more than one year.

The Group is principally engaged in one operating segment
which is the manufacture, sale and marketing of jewellery
products.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

(a)

(b)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amount recognised in the
financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and the level of future taxable profits.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and the key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below:

(i) Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges of its property, plant and
equipment. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, and will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and
therefore depreciation charge in the future periods.
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(ii)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and variable selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycle. The directors reassess the
estimations at the end of each reporting period.

(iii) Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

(iv)

The Group determines the allowance for bad and
doubtful debts based on an assessment of the
recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is
based on the credit history of the customers and other
debtors and the current market condition. The
directors reassess the allowance at the end of each
reporting period.

Customer loyalty programmes

The Group measures the cost of the loyalty award
credits by reference to the costs of products and gifts
redeemed in the prior years and the probability of
redemption are estimated by the directors based on
the past history. Actual results may different from the
estimation.

5.

HORH B S AR @)

ARSI PR 2 AR (7)

(b)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

FEZ i B F

EERqiCRE SURCRIEDEY S
R SETH R AR R i
il 5B B A T 52 B
A% R T B AR B S e B
AR TR B B T DL
B o Rtk AR R
FE i 1 2 T KR B AR
o e PRRE R R
T v 3 F b B0 24T 36
A9 T AR AT B A K
L - HERAELH
OB AT Al A B Al T

HRIGIR I

7% 412 [ 2 R RE WA IR K
AT 1] A7 L A R R
S AR KA o B
VL TE EF Al SRR % 5 K
HC At JRE WS ) 2 A R R
WO Bk DL BB AT T UL
FE o MHENAFLEHE
HRPAL A -

It

7 A ) 52 % 0 1 A
SO B 2 A
R R B 2 A -
T 4 58 22 T e U
5L A 3 -
T T e ey
BRI -
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5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(v)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture, sale
and marketing of jewellery products. Turnover represents the
sales value of jewellery products sold to customers, net of value

5.

Ew il ERILT IS

AN Y B PR R 2 R AR ()

(b)

B

(v)

P bt

A A I ZELAE 22 IR W i A
I8 48 A I A B o TS BL
B 2 E R W AR
BRAGF o TEH W
W AR Z G M
O U R 0 e KBTS
fift 5 B AN e 2 1Y o A
7% 55 LAY dog A B A
SR BRI W) RO BR Y A
R BEERKEY
22 T A% 8 A A 2 A IR
W R A -

AL T B R R - # R
JEE TR T B o SEBUR AL FUBR I (B
TeAfr itz ) 55 8 ey % 5 BT Ml 10 614

added tax and discount.

B EE 2 -

OTHER INCOME 7. HAbKA
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$°000 #&i#For  HK$'000 #iHgTr
Interest income FLE A 458 460
Net foreign exchange gains T REE S8 A 251 7,316
Others HAt 6,866 6,898

7,575 14,674



8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) Finance costs (a) MHEEH

Interest on bank loans and JRE 4T A A O £+
overdrafts wholly repayable ZSRAT R O L
within five years RS

Imputed interest on convertible AR R AR SR 2 Al
bonds FLE

Interest on other loan wholly B A TN A B )
repayable within five years Z HAb B R

Interest element of finance lease Tl G BRI 1Y
payments lipEs &l

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings,
including terms loans which contain a repayment on demand
clause, in accordance with the agreed scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements.

(b) Staff costs (b) HIEAK

Contribution to defined e BEEGR K
contribution retirement plan whlfl
(note 27(b)) (Ff5E 27 (b))

Adjustment in respect of long A= A IR 5 4 R
service payments (note 27(a)(ii), YRR (B3 27 (a) (i),
27(a)(iii) and 27(a)(iv)) 27(a)(iii) & 27(a)(iv))

Retirement costs — net IRIREHE R A - FEE

Salaries, wages and other benefits Wi~ TE R HAARF

8. FRFiwr&A]
BBIRT A SR (FEA) ¢

2013 2012
2013 4F 20124F
HK$°000 ##F-or  HK$'000 #hgTr

10,665 9,139
28,846 -
3,873 -
449 238
43,833 9,377

A B O A BUR $RAT B 2 B R
LA AR A Bl T R T
H 6L B i R AR ek 2 RE LK -

2013 2012
2013 4F 20124
HK$°000 #&#sF5t  HK$'000 #Bi#gTr

8,204 7,288
(4,541) 6,982
3,663 14,270
477,266 440,308

480,929 454,578
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

(c)

Other items
Auditors’ remuneration
— current year provision
— auditor of the Company
— other auditors
Cost of goods sold
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Operating lease charges
—land and buildings situated
in Hong Kong
—land and buildings situated
other than in Hong Kong
Provision for inventories

Provision/(reversal) of allowance

for bad and doubtful debts

(c)

HAtusE A

2 Gl

— ARAE LA

- RO F R

— FofbAz Bk

B A

res
I - W KSR 1R

AR 2
- FisZ L BT

- F LS L
BHEF

fr &1

SRR, (A 45

Cost of goods sold includes HK$83,585,000 (2012: HK$78,318,000)
relating to staff costs, depreciation expenses, operating lease
charges, which amounts are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above in note 8(b) and 8(c) for each
of these types of expenses.

(continued)

8. BrBLETEA )

2013
2013 4F
HK$°000 &%+t

2,000

610
1,894,715
55,055

489

135,040

39,230
3,016

480

2012
20124
HK$°000 &+t

2,000
375
1,749,865
54,543

15

121,841

30,185
3,668

(14,155)

HAG AR B B TR -
e ma s mAammEE

83,585,000 7T (2012 4F -
78,318,000 7t)

o

o A BHE IO LA

DA E B RE 8(b) 2% I 5 8(c) Br 1) 4% J A

B b S e



9. TAXATION

(a)

Taxation recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax ZAWIHIE - 7 F 455

Provision for the year AN LA

Underprovision in prior years DA 4R FE A R A2

Current tax - overseas AR - #gHh

Provision for the year AN A

Underprovision/(overprovision) AR AR
in prior years (B 438

Deferred tax (note 28(a)) IEAERLIAE (K 5k 28(a))

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5%
(2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
countries.

9.

BLIE
(a) &AW YA R Z & F 5
MR R 2 BLIHE
2013 2012
20134 20124

HKS$’000 ##5Te

4,139
542

4,681

28,372

338
28,710
(5,618)
27,773

HK$’000 i+

12,955
350

13,305

37,817

(1,669)

36,148
5,358

54,811

T R 5B 5 AR R A I ] s A
T e I A o 2 A R R
BL & A H B M B %R16.5%
(20124 : 16.5%) &t 5 - i i
SN 2 W Jag 2 ) 2 BT ) 4
LT A B 38 B RGO -
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9. TAXATION (continued)
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Reconciliation between profit before taxation and taxation
recognised in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income is as follows:

Profit before taxation

Notional tax on profit before taxation,
calculated at the rates applicable to
profits in the countries concerned

Tax effect of profits entitled to tax
exemption

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of prior year’s tax losses
utilised this year

Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised

Tax effect of prior year’s temporary
difference recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Underprovision/(overprovision) in
prior years

Tax effect of withholding tax at 5%
on the distributable profits of the
Group’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC

Taxation

BB i 4t A1

2 I A A B A A AL Y
TP 2 S BR B T L 1
i 4 e BLIH

A G B R ZL R Y
DRy 2

R HTBESE HBEIE

TR B 1 BEIE 3 2

JA AR B W) AL 4R FE R
B IR

A i T Wy 22 S A LI
b2

i LA AR 5 T IR 22 5L
B IE Y

e AR T ) B JE s 4R
B IE S
DAEF BB AR
(A I 438

AL B B B GE 2
A e 2 W) 22 T R i
5% S FAT LY
Tl T 2R

BLIH

(continued)

9. BiJH @)

(b) BRI & AR ARG 2 T A
ek 2 2 ) B0k 18 il 58 2 BLIR

ZHR
2013

20134
HK$’000 #&#TC

99,858

21,562
(854)

8,001
(1,441)
(667)

3,118
(6,343)

2,125

880

1,392
27,773

2012
20124
HK$’000 Tt

235,807

52,907
(5,863)
5,796
(1,665)
(4,618)
3,851
(6,217)

6,149

(1,319

5,790
54,811



10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance for the year ended 28 February
2013 is as follows:

Fees M4

Salaries and other emoluments 3B 4 b A 38 I

Performance related incentives B2 BUAH BH 2 A8 )

Contribution to defined contribution %t & EERKFHE L E
retirement plan

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees of
HK$1,080,000 (2012: HK$1,080,000) paid to the independent
non-executive directors during the year.

10. #HHM 4

MR A 2 7 O AE 161 > =
20134F 2 J] 28 I 11 4F & f 3  1 <&

BT

2013
20134F
HK$’ 000 ##s+t

1,080
5,715
1,932

28
8,755

S < LA AR A SR T ST IR BT
14 41 4 v 5 1,080,000 Ut (2012

2012

2012 4F

HK$°000 ##e+t
1,080

5,990
4,260

30
11,360

4F - #71,080,000 78) ©
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

2013

Executive directors:
Yau On Yee, Annie
Erwin Steve Huang
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence

Non-executive director:
Wang Guosheng®

Independent Non-executive directors:

Chui Chi Yun, Robert
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael

2013
BT
i %
IRk
B

FRTES
TR

B e BT -

HEL
FIEHE
B

Fees

ik
HK$°000
T

360
360
360

1,080
1,080

Salaries
and other
emoluments
Hak

L ft 57
HK$’000
T T

3,144
1,080
1,491

5,715

5,715

10. EFHME @
Contribution
to defined
Performance  contribution
related retirement
incentives plan
BB Rk
Giil b Y L
HK$’000 HK$°000
T BT
1,350 14
243 -
339 14
1,932 28
1,932 28

Total

Et
HK$’000
T

4,508
1,323
1,844

7,675

360
360
360

1,080
8,755



10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

Fees
e
HK$000
BT
2012 2012
Executive directors: Wit
Yau On Yee, Annie IE -
Erwin Steve Huang [8iTy 4 -
Cheung Tse Kin, Michael? e -
Lai Tsz Mo, Lawrence Br -
Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel' JRIR B -
Independent Non-executive directors: By IE8iT# 5
Chui Chi Yun, Robert BEC 360
Heng Ching Kuen, Franklin SEIEHE 360
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael L EaSin 360
1,080
1,080
1. Ms. Chow Kwok Ying, Rachel resigned as an Executive director on 1 May 2011.
2. Mr. Cheung Tse Kin, Michael resigned as an Executive director on 4 June 2011.
3. Mr. Wang Guosheng appointed as a Non-executive director on 23 July 2012.

No emolument was paid by the Group to any director as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation
for loss of office during the years ended 28 February 2013 and 29
February 2012.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 28
February 2013 and 29 February 2012.

Salaries
and other
emoluments
el

Hofth 37
HK$’000
BT

3,148
1,080
208
1,430
124

5,990

5,990

10. EHEMWE @)

Contribution

to defined

Performance  contribution
related retirement

incentives plan Total
LiE3) JHE R
MR BRARGHEER A5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T

3,000 12 6,160
540 - 1,620
- 4 212
720 12 2,162
- 2 126
4,260 30 10,280
- - 360

- - 360

- - 360

- - 1,080
4,260 30 11,360

1. i 20114E5 1 1 H J8 B BE & 4 B AT AR 2
AT E R o

2. 2011456 H 4 H 8 7 i Jo A B AT A 2
AT E R o

3. A20124E7 H 23 B LB AR
AN R IFRATHED

A # #E 20134£ 2 1 28 H ) 201242
H 29 HIRAFRE » A SR B A8 1 4T o] 5
HICATEN G > A Sy R BRI A ST
ARSI 2 Wl sAE 2 B i o

it B 20134E 2 H 28 H ) 201242
H 29 HIRAFRE » WA s el el &
T AT A 2 2 -
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11. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2012:
three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 10.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two
(2012: two) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments 4 S At P 4
Performance related incentives B BA B 2 B85

Contribution to defined contribution %72 k&R fRE #1t2
retirement plan

The emoluments of the two (2012: two) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

HK$

1,000,001 - 1,500,000
1,500,001 - 2,000,000
2,000,001 - 2,500,000
2,500,001 - 3,000,000

Total A48

No emolument was paid by the Group to any top five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office during the years ended 28
February 2013 and 29 February 2012.

NOtQS tO the FinanCia] Statements (continued)
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11. e A+t
R4 At =4(2012
M 34) BEEE o A BRI R A B
10N o HERW 4 (20124F : 2
) AT & SEEm T

2013 2012

20134 20124

HK$°000 %15 HK$000 #H T
3,508 2,768

808 1,412

28 24

4,344 4,204

WA (20124F 1 24%) I M 4 A\t

BB 45 E AR A A
2013 2012
2013 4 2012 4
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
ANEL NEL
- 1
1 _
1 1
2 2

R 201342 H 28 H ) 201242
J129 FIRARTE » A S P AR 08 i A o] T
2 IR BN L SN > R R R
B ABAEINAA L B 05 2 P 4 > B
TF R R 1



12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12, A w) BEA N\ e AG A4 B2
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY pll

The profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company AN A N AL A AR B B R LS —
included a profit of HK$70,342,000 (2012: HK$157,542,000) FOIIAARLN AW B BB AL AR
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Fl # W70,342,000 00 (20124« 5
Company. 157,542,000 JC) °
13. DIVIDENDS 13. BB
2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$°000 #%Toc  HK$ 000 #HToo
Interim dividend of HK$0.01 o P A P A P HE 1 0.01 5T
(2012: HK$0.027) per ordinary (20124 : #%0.027 78)
share paid 2,103 5,679
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.07 PR IR A S A 1 4 A 5 0.07 T
(2012: HK$0.125) per ordinary share (20124 : #%0.1257¢) 14,724 26,292
16,827 31,971
The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting period AR RS B AR 2 2 A BRI AR R AR
has not been recognised as a liability at the end of reporting 4 H R B 5 -

period. > 153
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company in the amount of
HK$72,234,000 (2012: HK$162,347,000) and on the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
210,336,221 (2012: 210,336,221 ordinary shares) in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is not shown for the year ended
28 February 2013 as all the potential ordinary shares
during the year ended 28 February 2013 are anti-dilutive.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amount presented for the year ended 29 February
2012 in respect of dilution as the Group had no potential
dilutive ordinary shares issue during the year ended 29
February 2012.

14. FRER

(a)

(b)

TG IBHEA BRI

I I AR J R 2 i BR AR 4 T Y
AN F)HEAT N BE A 2 R
72,234,000 7 (20124F = ¥ ¥
162,347,000 %) > LA RAENE
B AT 4 B 22 0 HE T X I
210,336,221 K (2012 4 :
210,336,221 i) 5155 -

5 e i LA

M A A 2 20134F2 1 28 1 Ik
AEBE BT TERTE A B Y 5
Ty SCHEE > O B 2 8RR
201342 J1 28 1 1k 4 & 2 4
FECHE M2 A

R 2 20124F2 129 1 Ik
A B A S [ 95 9 47 T L
S B A - WO R A
20124F2 1 29 1 Ik 4 & 2 4
A 51 A L i 8



15. SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

(b)

Information about segment profit, segment assets and
segment liabilities:

PRC (including

Hong Kong and Macau)

o (LA ST )

2013 2012

2013 20124

HK$000  HK$'000

BT BRTr

Year ended 28/29 February B2 528291

Revenue from external customers A FAMEEF A 3,529,095 3,326,420

Inter-segment revenue UiniTON 36,106 29,002
Other revenue HAf A 7564 14,636
Reportable segment revenue PSRRI A 3,572,765 3,370,058
Segment results IHES 151,037 247,260
Finance costs B 2

Taxation A

Consolidated profit for the year — A4 A B A

Depreciation for the year RAPE 53412 53438
At 28/29 February 2 H28/29H

Segment assets e 2,201,170 2,119,027
Deferred tax assets BB

Current tax assets ABIRE R

Consolidated total assets GhYEAH

Segment liahilities AR 552,361 630,871
Bank overdrafts - secured BITEY - g

Bank loans BTN

Interest hearing payahle AR

Convertible bonds WS

Deferred tax liabilities REBIAA K

Current tax liabilities AR &

Obligations under finance leases i & &k i
Employee benefit obligations 1 B AR5

Consolidated total liahilities HhARAHE

Additions to non-current segment 111z FiE)25 GE
assets 53270 90,163

The Group is principally engaged in one operating segment
which is the manufacture, sale and marketing of jewellery
products.

Information about major customers

The turnover from the Group’s largest customer amounted
to less than 10% of the Group’s total turnover for the
current and prior year.

15. sy
(a) A HEEE RS A

fE R
Inter-segment

Others elimination Consolidated

i L kiR L] frdes
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124F 20134 20124 20134 20124
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTE BT OEETT O BETT WETT BB
33,724 32,643 - - 3,562,819 3,359,063
- - (36,1060) (29,002) - -
11 38 - - 7575 14,674
33,735 32,681  (36,106) (29,002) 3,570,394 3,373,737
(7,346)  (2,076) 143,691 245,184
(43,833)  (9,377)
(27,773)  (54,811)
72,085 180,996
1,643 1,105 55,005 54,543
47834 39196 (03,520)  (85,404) 2,185,484 2,072,819
26,874 21,036
8,375 1,237
2,220,733 2,095,092
60,844 87,336 (63,520)  (85,404) 555,685 632,803
19914 44,003
335,748 269,246
- 120,000
267,673 -
24,427 24,380
5377 39,895
8,030 6,731
15,186 19,727
1,232,040 1,156,845
2,387 112 55,657 90,275

A F A 2 R - B A T AR
TRE T i SE T

(b) FAREEEFZER
T AR AR B T R AR A B AR 4 T

RRE P 28 3RS AL H A

HEFDR10% °
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y3 ~ Wm Kt
(a) The Group (a) A%EM
Furniture,
Land and fixtures and ~ Plant and Motor
buildings  equipment  machinery vehicles Total
A~
TR RERRE R RS TR am

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
EWTor W T WWTor W T Bl

COST A
At 1 March 2011 W2011431H 95,188 347,093 13,630 3,870 459,781
Exchange adjustments 5,5 % - 7,207 57 59 7,323
Additions wE - 63,861 1,165 2,123 67,149
Disposals s - (2,575) (123) (194) (2,892)
> 156 At 29 February 2012 and 1 March 2012 7201242 4 29 H

K20124F3 1 H 95,188 415,586 14,729 5,858 531,361
Exchange adjustments T 3¢, - 113 - - 113
Additions e - 47,513 1,620 = 49,133
Disposals & - (14,101) (972) - (15,073)

At 28 February 2013 1201342 1 28 H 95,188 449,111 15,377 5,858 505,534



16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. W3 ~ W5 il oo
(continued)
(a) The Group (continued) (a) ZAREM (5
Furniture,
Land and fixtures and ~ Plant and Motor
buildings  equipment  machinery vehicles Total
&I~
T BEE  EERERE  WE RS R Fioki ]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T W% T W T EWT BT
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION LR
At 1 March 2011 R20114E3 4 1H 32,440 287,301 12,540 2,962 335,243
Exchange adjustments THE 50 4 45 - 6,356 62 36 6,454
Charge for the year AAR R 1,814 51,881 515 333 54,543
Disposals R - (2,504) (120) (187) (2,811)
At 29 February 2012 and 201242 A 29 H
1 March 2012 J20124E3A1H 34,254 343,034 12,997 3,144 393,429
Exchange adjustments I 5, 78 5 - 298 - - 298
Charge for the year AT 1,814 51,825 722 694 55,055
Disposals i - (13601 (880) - (1448D) >157
At 28 February 2013 201342 28 36,068 381,556 12,839 3838 434301
NET BOOK VALUE R T
At 28 February 2013 H20134E2 0 28 H 59,120 67,555 2,538 2,020 131,233
At 29 February 2012 201242 A 29 F 60,934 72,552 1,732 2714 137,932
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y3 ~ W7 B o

(continued)
(b) The Company (b) ARAFH
Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
TR ~ %€ KA
HK$’000 #:H T 0
COST B

At 1 March 2011 H20114%3H1H 9,269
Additions BLihiy 532
At 29 February 2012 and 1 March 2012 201242 H29H & 201243H1H 9,801
Additions e 571
At 28 February 2013 n201342 )28 H 10,372

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Zat e
At 1 March 2011 201143 H1H 9,071
Charge for the year AT 331
At 29 February 2012 and 1 March 2012 201292 H29H 201243 H1H 9,402
Charge for the year AAEFE TR 264
At 28 February 2013 7201342 A 28 H 9,666

NET BOOK VALUE HR THI
At 28 February 2013 201342 H 28 H 706
At 29 February 2012 H20124%2H29H 399




16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

(c)

(d)

The analysis of net book value of land and buildings is as
follows:

In Hong Kong TEA
- Long leases - RWAE
— Medium-term leases - AT
Other parts of the PRC A v 20 Al 7
- Long leases - RUHE

At the end of the reporting period, the property ownership
certificates in respect of the property interests held in other
parts of the PRC have not been issued by the relevant PRC
government authority. The net book value of the properties
was HK$2 (2012: HK$2) at the end of the reporting period.

During the year, addition to furniture, fixtures, equipment
and motor vehicles financed by new finance leases was
HK$8,049,000 (2012: HK$5,747,000). At 28 February 2013,
the carrying amount of the office equipment held under
finance leases of the Group amounted to HK$11,779,000
(2012: HK$8,349,000).

16. Y3 ~ W= B e

(c)

Wy SE IR T AL A AT R
2013 2012
20134 20124

HK$'000 ##77t  HKS$'000 ## 17T

(D

6,098 6,268
53,022 54,666
59,120 60,934
59,120 60,934

&S B> B R BE R S
AT = 3t A Hp B L A R AT 1
Wy S HE 25 55 1 TS 7 M R
W o SZEYERFL O MNIR
I (H 75 s ¥ 200 (2012 4F -
W 25T) o

A A DA R SRR TR
AR~ e B TR Ml s N
8,049,000 7t (20124F # %
5,747,0007C) » fA 201342 A
28 H AR A B A = 3%
5B WO OB & W
11,779,000 JG (2012 4F = i
8,349,000 7C) °
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18.

Cost

At 1 March 2011, 29 February 2012
and 1 March 2012

Additions

At 28 February 2013

Carrying amount
At 28 February 2013

At 29 February 2012

The Group’s trademarks of HK$99,000 (2012: HK$Nil) at
28 February 2013 is assessed as having indefinite useful life
because the Group is able to renew the legal right of the

trademark at insignificant cost indefinitely.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

17. G E

The Group
AR
Trademarks
PRI A
HK$ 000 #:¥T 0
BRAR
R20114E3 1 H ~ 201242 29 H &
20124F3H1H -
WhE 99
#20134E2 H 28 H 99
HRTHEH
#201342H 28 H 99

#201242H29H -

A IR 201342 H 28 H /%
599,000 7T (2012 4F = M%) =T /4
AT SRR AR > R 2 AR BT LU
ANt S E R BOAR T ME R AT AR
JIHE

18. FhrJag 2> =) hE i

The Company

AN T
2013 2012
2013 4F 20124F

HK$’000 #% Tt HK$'000 #H# 17T

Unlisted shares/capital contributions,  3F F ik /& » $imA

at cost 712,742 712,742
Due from subsidiaries JRE VAL o 2 ) Bk 609,370 386,243
1,322,112 1,098,985

Less: Impairment losses W WA SR (64,715) (160,687)

1,257,397 938,298



18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.
Place of
establishment/
incorporation Particulars of issued
Name of company and operation and paid up capital
FL/ R AT AT e
AGIE PELtIE JEATENE
Beijing Qi Li Yun Jewellery PRC Renminbi (“RMB”)
Company Limited*** ] 1,000,000
JURTHRR EBRE A R 7 AR 1,000,000 7€
Beijing Qi Li Yun Trading PRC RMB3,000,000
Company Limited*** el AR 3,000,000 7C
FU SRR A T 7 A PR ]
Beijing Tse Sui Luen Jewellery ~ PRC United States dollars
Company Limited** (“BTSL”) 1 (“US$”) 2,000,000
T i A B B A R 2,000,000 %t
(b et 1) =
Concepts Management (H.K.) Hong Kong HK$1
Limited A BT
AIEE M (FE) A RAH
Excellent Ford Development Hong Kong HK$10,000
Limited (“EF”) i #%#:10,000 7T

TRSLTE A R 7] (ARSI )

18. Bt/ A FIRESRR ()

WEF g 2> 7] SR T AR~ B B e Sl e

N R T B A A W SR R
BEA RSB B A R RENT © BR
FAFEMIE SN - PR IR S
T

Group’s effective

ownership interest

AR T EE
AR Principal activities
2013 2012
2013 4F 20124F  EEEH
100%° 100%® Jewellery retailing
KEZE
100%° N/A  Jewellery retailing

100%°

100%

100%°

AR REEE

100%° Jewellery
manufacturing
and trading

KRR E S
100%¢ Trademarks holding
FRA TR

100%® Jewellery trading
KHEE
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Name of company

NEHE

Guangzhou Hong Yun Jewellery
Company Limited #**

BB E R T A R 7]+
Guangzhou Jingshi Jewellery

Company Limited**

MRS R A A PR w)

Guangzhou Tai Yi Trading

Company Limited
(“GZ Tai Yi")#*

M B B A R AR

(TR FAE D) *

Guangzhou Xi Yun Jewellery
Company Limited***

BN E IR B AT 7]

Guangzhou Xi Yun Trading
Company Limited***

RS i B A PR 7+

Guangzhou Xiang Yun Jewellery
Company Limited #**

B RSB RA A

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and operation
L,/ e R
R AGE B
PRC

el

PRC
1

PRC
H

PRC

i

PRC
H

PRC
1

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
DT R
AT
RMB1,000,000
AR1,000,000 78

HK$21,000,000
% 21,000,000 7C

HK$8,000,000
7% 8,000,000 7C

RMB2,000,000

AR 2,000,000 75

RMB3,000,000
A B 3,000,000 7€

RMB3,000,000
AR 3,000,000 78

NOtGS tO the FinanCia] Statements (continued)
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18. Bt A FIRESR ()

Group’s effective

ownership interest

ES LRV

A R 4

2013 2012
20134 20124

100%® 100%®

100%° 100%°

100%° 100%°

100%® 100%®

100%° N/A
AR

100%® 100%®

Principal activities

B ES

Jewellery retailing
RETHE

Manufacturing and
distribution of
jewellery

NS i

Jewellery trading
KHES

Jewellery retailing
KELE

Jewellery retailing
KETE

Jewellery trading

KER S



18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18. Fif 2w R R o)

Place f)f Group’s effective
establishment/ ownership interest
incorporation Particulars of issued A T B
Name of company and operation and paid up capital B HERE 25 Principal activities
oL GRS BT RME 2013 2012
NSEE B FBEA TN 20134F 20124  FEER
Impromptus Asia Pacific Hong Kong HK$10,000 100%® 100%® Goldsmith and jewellery
Limited e #%10,000 7T trading
BERBEE Y
Infinite Assets Corp. (“IAC”) British Virgin HK$277,254 100%® 100%® Investment holding
Islands (“BVI") W 277,254 ¢ BB
B R LR
() o oRE ks )
Liberty Mark Limited BVI US$1 100%° 100%¢ Investment holding
S IR LR 1% BB
Shanghai Fu Yun Jewellery PRC RMB1,000,000 100%° 100%® Jewellery retailing
Company Limited*** Gl AER#1,000,000 7t HELTE
AR R A R > 163
Shanghai Fu Yun Trading PRC RMB3,000,000 100%® N/A  Jewellery retailing
Company Limited*** i ANE 3,000,000 IC RNEH EERE
FRERE A R A
Shenzhen Jingyan Jewellery PRC HK$8,000,000 100%® 100%® Manufacturing and
Company Limited* T #8,000,000 7T distribution of
GRS IR ER S o Bl R A ) > jewellery
TRE W3 58
TSL Investment (B.V.1.) Limited BVI HK$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
B R LR i1 1,000 7 Eid-eidie
Tse Sui Luen Jewellery Hong Kong HK$34,000% 100%® 100%® Jewellery trading and
Company Limited (“TSLJ") il 34,000 % retailing
5 B R T A PR ) KEZ G REE

(T Em R EL 1)
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Name of company

NEHE

Tse Sui Luen Investment

(China) Limited (“TSL China”)

AR () A7 PR
(3t BBt o )

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
Retailing Sdn. Bhd.

TSL Management Services
Limited
Al 4 BRI A PR )

TSL Jewellery (Export)
Company Limited

AR (0 AR

TSL Jewellery (Macau) Limited

TSLERE (M) A BRA )

TSL Jewellery (H.K.) Co. Limited

A BR T (F i) AR A

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
and operation
L,/ e R
R AGE B
BVI
i B L

Malaysia
LY i

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
ik

Macau
T

Hong Kong
i

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of issued
and paid up capital
DT R
AT
US$6,863

6,863 %70

Malaysian Ringgits
1,000,000
B AP 5 1,000,000 7T

HK$2
W2t

HK$19,824,775
519,824,775 70

Macau Patacal
(“MOP”) 100,000
¥ 100,000 G

HK$40,000,490
% 40,000,490 7T

NOtGS tO the FinanCia] Statements (continued)
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18. Bt A FIRESR ()

Group’s effective
ownership interest

ES LRV
A R 4
2013 2012
20134 20124
100%* 100%*
100%¢ 100%¢
100%¢ 100%¢
100%¢ 100%¢
100% 100%
100%¢ 100%¢

Principal activities

FEEH
Investment holding

Eie il

Jewellery retailing
KETE

Management and
administrative services

B R AT BURBS

Jewellery export
HEH O

Jewellery retailing
KEZTE

Jewellery retailing

KETE



18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of
establishment/
incorporation Particulars of issued
Name of company and operation and paid up capital
Ror GRS BT AR
SRR B AL B IR T
TSL Manufacturing and Hong Kong HK$67,000,000
Distribution Limited il % 67,000,000 7G
(“TSL M&D”)
B B s B o3 A PR )
(I i 3 g 83 B 7 84 )
TSL Properties Hong Kong HK$1,000
Management Limited il s 1,000 70
S ) S B TR A
TSLJ Kabushiki Kaisha Japan Japanese Yen
(“TSLIKK”)*** HA 15,000,000
TSLI #kx{ g4t (T TSLIKK ) *** 15,000,000 H T

# Unofficial translation

m In addition to the ordinary shares, TSLJ has issued 36,574 deferred shares of
HK$1,000 each

* Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign enterprise
i Registered under the laws of the PRC as limited liability company
ek Registered under the laws of Japan as limited liability company

@ Indirectly held through subsidiaries

18. FiHE A FIRERS (o0

Group’s effective
ownership interest

S iy
AR Principal activities
2013 2012
20134F 20124  FEER
100%® 100%® Investment holding,
procurement,
manufacturing and
distribution of
jewellery
BOEREM - PRI - R R
100%® 100%® Property holding and
investment
BAYERSE
95%° N/A  Jewellery retailing and

Nl wholesales
REEE R

FERFEH

Wk 00 JE A i B B T 2 64T 36,574 A
JEEHE W 1,000 70 2 R AESLE o

R o Ik A 2 S
AR o I i 2% A R ETAE 24 )
AR H AL H R M 2 A BRITAT 24 7)

2RI 3 T AT
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19. OTHER ASSET

Membership and seat in the Chinese
Gold and Silver Exchange Society

20. INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Work in progress
Finished goods

At 28 February 2013, the inventories held by 6 subsidiaries (the
“Subsidiaries”) amounting to HK$834,538,000 (2012:
HK$823,555,000) had been pledged as a continuing security of
the debts arising from the supply of polished diamonds and
precious stones by Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited (“Rosy Blue
HK”) to the Subsidiaries (the “Debts”) from time to time (see also

note 34(b) below).

19. H Al e
The Group
ARSI
2013 2012
2013 4F 20124F
HK$°000 %% Toc HK$ 000 #H# 1o
BHERE D) G R RO A
500 500
20. HH&
The Group
ARAEH
2013 2012
2013 4F 20124F
HK$°000 #%Toc HK$ 000 #H#Too
J AL H 94,967 107,166
TR b 51,557 56,141
R 1,438,240 1,429,909
1,584,764 1,593,216

201342 H 28 H » AN FK & 4 7
(MR AT ) Feh 2 A B E T
P> FL R T (R 2 95 834,538,000 7T
(20124 : #5% 823,555,000 70) » fF
%5 Rosy Blue Hong Kong Limited
([Rosy Blue HK |) A~ I 7] 5% 25 i} Jg 23
AR SR O A R E TR A
I ([ s 50 ]) 2 FR A IR (IRFE 2
BB 34(b)) ©



21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables JRECHR 3K
Other receivables, deposits and HoAh ECE ~ 4 S TS K
prepayments

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful ¥ : SRISEHEREM (FF3E (¢)
debts (note (c))

Less: Long-term rental deposits B R EM GRS
classified as non-current assets IE B

(a) Included in trade and other receivables are trade
receivables (net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
with the following ageing analysis, based on the invoice

date:

0 to 30 days 0%£ 30K

31 to 60 days 312 60K

61 to 90 days 61 % 90K

Over 90 days 90 K

Total trade receivables JRE A IR 3 A A

Other receivables, deposits and HoAb MRS ~ 44 R TAAT 3K
prepayments (note (d)) (KT ()

Apart from retail customers, the Group allows an average
credit period from 30 to 90 days to other customers.

21. MBSO e L At JE Wk

The Group

A 4[]
2013 2012
20134 20124F
HK$'000 #¥T5t HK$ 000 ## Tt
176,190 160,458
88,330 79,524
264,520 239,982
(1,480) (1,323)
263,040 238,659
(29,551) (23,126)
233,489 215,533

(a)  ELAF A HE W A A E ik
AL 8 R SR K (L 4 B 2R R 48
i) 04 IR BT UG A Rt

e I
The Group
ALY

2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$°000 ##Foc  HK$000 T
149,953 137,863
15,730 12,300
2,371 2,177
7,656 7,795
175,710 160,135
87,330 78,524
263,040 238,659

BB RSN > AL T H
il i 7% T35 1 30 290 K 1 iR
WM o
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

()

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

Neither past due nor impaired A IR AR A WA
Less than 6 months past due LA DR 6 18
Over 6 months past due 781 13844 6 {7 H

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience the
directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over those balances.

The directors consider that the trade and other receivables
are approximate their fair values.

21. MBSO e At B WK 0

(b)

R ) R B S A i

JRESC AR 2 RS e BTl
The Group
AL

2013 2012
20134 2012 4
HK$’000 #¥F 0 HK$000 i1 o0
174,787 158,877
873 1,211
50 47
175,710 160,135

Slf7 488 7 30 L 2 R A O B
2T S R AR B 2 IR
Al o

8 3 AFL i 2R 3 (B 2 B SO K
SAL i) % 4 O A D Bk R 2
THALF T AR o R TEAL
B R0 A IR RS 4 B K
P Hh (LA LT S A
BRI MR ) A
I 465 B T A0 5 T 2 ol ]
A B2 4] 310 9 % <6 A R A AT
AT HEA i EC A £ 3 4 -

R > MEMOIR R A
WK LA FUEAR A



21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during

(c)

(d)

the year were as follows:

At 1 March

W3A1H

Provision/(reversal) of allowance SRIHHRTEE, (A 1 43
for bad and doubtful debts
Written off of allowance for bad SR SR S IR

and doubtful debts
At 28/29 February

w2 H28/29 H

Details of other receivables, deposits and prepayments are

as follows:

Other receivables
Deposits
Prepayments

21. FEMSCR K 2 L At B WK (s
() 4FRHERRIE 2 BB F -

The Group
ENCHL
2013 2012
2013 4F 20124F
HK$'000 #¥T5t HK$ 000 #4 T
1,323 15,478
)

480 (14,155)
(323) -
1,480 1,323

(d)  HAb K ~ % 5 R T AT 500

AnE
The Group The Company
A AN
2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124F 20134 20124
HK$'000 ##Toc  HK$000 #¥Toc  HKS000 ¥ Toc  HK$000 i Toc
HAbREGR 3,664 6,600 = -
e 61,547 58,636 - -
R 22,119 13,288 183 1,384
87,330 78,524 183 1,384
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 21, JE WOk B At B UK s
(e) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other (e) PAARE &M sHE 2 FEBUE R %

receivables are denominated in the following currencies: HAESGR AW T

The Group
AL

2013 2012
2013 4F 2012 4F
HK$°000 %% Toc HK$ 000 #H# 1o
Hong Kong dollars s W 72,070 66,000
Chinese Renminbi UNEY 184,241 163,972
United States dollars ES 3,497 6,449
Others HoAth 3,232 2,238
263,040 238,659
> 170 The carrying amounts of the Company’s other receivables A ) 22 JRE SR T A D o

are denominated in HK$. WESTHE -



22. CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND

The Group
AR

2013
20134

22. BATHR B &

The Company
AT
2012 2013 2012
20124 20134 20124

HK$°000 i 752 HK$°000 &% T¢  HK$'000 i Tt HK$'000 #H 17

Cash at bank and in hand WA B4 205,848

The carrying amount of the Group’s cash at bank and in hand are
denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong Dollars i
Chinese Renminbi NG
Malaysian Ringgits LY NUEHETH
United States Dollars FEt
Others HoAty

The carrying amount of the Company’s cash at bank and in hand
are denominated in HK$.

Chinese Renminbi is not freely convertible into other currencies.
However, under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
Chinese Renminbi for other currencies through banks to settle the
approved trade payables and dividend payments.

102,512 195 134

DK (7] £ W B 2 SRAT A7 3 B B4 W)
ManE

The Group
AL

2013 2012
2013 4F 2012 4F
HK$’000 #¥Foc HK$000 #HT o
78,528 23,215
121,617 75,082
3,497 2,655
733 638
1,473 922
205,848 102,512

N 2 BT SR A T (A
HHE -

oA R R HE SELFCA B B L
e o SR > R4 viv ) S FEE A7 R A6 191 B
S ~ A5 BE R A RE 4 B E > AN 2K
A R SRAT N R S A A £
DASZ A 0 R HUAZ PO A AR R S AL o
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23, MEAT Rk S Al A 5k

(a) The ageing analysis of trade and other payables, based on (@) JEAST IR SR B At BB AT 35 42 BE Uit

the date of receipt of goods, is as follows: & H IR IR S T

The Group
AL

2013 2012
2013 4F 2012 4F
HK$’000 ##Fot  HK$000 #s¥T oo
0 to 30 days 0& 30K 72,847 42,851
31 to 60 days 31260 K 35,269 49,666
61 to 90 days 612 90K 39,789 48,887
Over 90 days A 90 K 162,376 245,964
Total trade payables JRE AR S ek A R 310,281 387,368
Other payables and accruals (note (b)) HAlREATE & RERT2: T (FHEE (b)) 245,404 245,435
> 1 72 555,685 632,803

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the HHER S o AT IR S HoAb
trade and other payables are approximate their fair values. 5 RN S (B AR AT o



23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

()

(c)

Details of other payables and accruals are as follows:

23. MR B L Ath A K (a0
(b) B R 2 9 A0

N

The Group The Company

AL /NG

2013 2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20134 20124
HK$°000 ## Tt HK$'000 is#s T HK$000 #HTor  HK$'000 s T0
Other payables oA RE AT 96,037 72,536 524 580
Customer deposits MELEE 9,397 9,223 - -
Provision for liabilities ERi=eid 19,126 22,719 - -
Accruals JEGHE 120,844 140,957 1,978 961
245,404 245,435 2,502 1,541

As of 28 February 2013, HK$12,346,000 (2012: HK$Nil)
included in other payables is unsecured and interest bearing
at a fixed interest rate of 6.6% per annum.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
payables are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars i
Chinese Renminbi NG
United States dollars B
Others HA

The carrying amounts of the Company’s other payables are
denominated in HK$.

R20134E2 H28 H » H: th
38 b i — g
12,346,000 A9 # T (2012

A )

o o MK B LA ) S 4

F#6.6% 5 o

(c)  LAR[ 45 ¥ wt (6 2 B AT R AR B

HoAth BEA F AT
The Group
AR [

2013 2012
2013 4F 20124F
HK$'000 #¥T5t HK$ 000 ## Tt
184,730 194,927
181,760 151,654
187,503 281,262
1,692 4,960
555,685 632,803

AT 2 FAR I SR T D)
AT -
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24. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

At 28 February 2013, interest bearing bank loans and overdrafts
were due for repayment as follows:

Overdrafts repayable on demand SRAT I SR B R AE R
Portion of term loans and ZEUS —4F N EI A B 2 38

trade financing due for repayment E SRR T A (BEGE)
within one year (note)

Term loans due for repayment after  ZH % —4E4% 2| W E R 2 &)

one year e

- After 1 year but within 2 years - T EE 2R

— After 2 years but within 5 years - 2 BRESFR
Bank loans SRATER

Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on demand clause.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts
are denominated in HKS.

The interest bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans
and trade financing repayable on demand, are carried at
amortised cost. None of the portion of term loans due for
repayment after one year which contain a repayment on demand
clause and that is classified as a current liability is expected to be
settled within one year.

(continued)

24. BATERKIE X

R20134F2 H 28 H » w5 B AT £ 3K

Boifs SRR IR
The Group
ARSI

2013 2012
2013 4F 20124F
HK$°000 %% Toc HK$ 000 #H# 1o
19,914 44,063
335,748 227,546
- 15,000
- 26,700
335,748 269,246

BEFRE AT Y 42 K W T S PR R D
B SR AT R R K 2 R

5 S ) 2 B S8 SR (A A
BERHE -

B SRAT 8 B CEL A 1 SR R 2 8
S0 B T T ) e R AR B A
R — RPN EOR L&
TR AR G S S U T B B 2 D
T E W B — AR T -



24. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS (continued)

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Group’s statement of financial
position ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. If the Group was to breach the
covenants the drawn down facilities would become repayable on
demand. In addition, certain of the Group’s term loan agreements
contain clauses which give the lender the right at its sole
discretion to demand immediate repayment at any time
irrespective of whether the Group has complied with the
covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, is up to date with the scheduled repayments of the
term loans and does not consider is probable that the bank will
exercise its discretion to demand repayment for so long as the
Group continues to meet these requirements. Further details of
the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note 36(a)
(iii). As at 28 February 2013 none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities had been breached (2012: HK$Nil).

24. SWITERRIE ST @)

A SRAT R E B A A RIS T
B AR L 35 L A 2 B TR AT T
FIR o T O A B < A T ST 2 i
B2 PE o i AR S B S 22 o TR I
Al RIS e R B - LA AR 4R
B2 T R I el A T BN
REA T A REMY 17 Wi Iy 22 SR RV IS A0 22
TRk > AN A% S B 7 OB 325k &
JEATH R R EAL -

AR 4 B E ) B R T LS B
o4 S E WA R 2 TR BT
AR R AL MRS
SR SRAT RO AT BEAT (O HL Iy 19 25K
TR o AT I A AR I R )
ZHE— R WO T 36(a) (i) © A
2013421 28 H - W M /e A7 B )
AR 2 3256 (201248 - fE) o
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25. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

At 28 February 2013, the Group had obligations under finance
leases repayable as follows:

The Group
2013
20134
Present value
of the Interest Total
minimum expense minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future periods payments
RIEHE AR A R &R
f kB HE AHAE
HK$'000 T HK$'000 8T HK$'000 i HF T
Within 1 year TR 5,692 231 5,923
After 1 year but within 2 years TR 25K 1,775 38 1,813
After 2 years but within 5 years — 24E% 5%k 563 3 566
2,338 41 2,379
8,030 272 8,302

The Group leases furniture, fixture and equipment under finance
leases expiring within five years (note 16(d)). Interest rates are
fixed at the contractual rates and thus exposed the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. At the end of each lease term, the Group
has the option to purchase the assets at a price deemed to be a
bargain purchase option. None of the leases included contingent
rentals. All finance lease payments are denominated in HKS$.

The Group’s finance lease payables are secured by the charge
over the leased assets.
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U 265 e e B e a0

25. b AR

R 201342 A28 H » A4 [ i @l &
FHE RIS AT -

A
2012
2012
Present value Interest

of the expense Total
minimum relating to minimum
lease future lease
payments periods payments
R A B ST E
B E FEZH TEAY
HKS'000 8Tt HK$'000 8Tt HKS'000 8T 0
4179 230 4,409
1,829 70 1,899
723 26 749
2,552 96 2,648
6,731 326 7,057

AR BB 5 A B 2 A
R BB ~ 2 R et (BERE16(d)) -
F AR TE TR & KR 3 o HOAS AL [ T 36 2
SR SR B o 5 A% TGRS - A
A T W] R R Ly (0 T AR A
W R A o RN LA R AR
o BT AT B LAUE T A B

ALEENMEREUREAZHE
L A RERAT -



26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 20 April 2012, the Company has issued to CDH King Limited
(“CDH”) a principal amount of HK$250,000,000 five-year term
convertible bonds under which CDH can convert it into ordinary
shares of the Company (the “Shares”) with an initial conversion
price at HK$6.40 per Share (the “Convertible Bonds”). The
Convertible Bonds may be converted into the Shares at any time
during the conversion period, on or after the Convertible Bonds’
issuance date up to its maturity date, subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments. The Convertible Bonds are unsecured and
subordinated to all present and future indebtednesses of the
Company, excluding equity-linked debt securities which is any
present or future indebtedness in the form of, or represented by,
bonds, debentures, notes, loan stock, redeemable shares or other
debt securities, without the prior approval of CDH by ordinary
resolution.

Each Convertible Bonds bear interest at the rate of 5% per annum
which are due every year, and the Convertible Bonds mature on
the date falling on the fifth anniversary of the issue date of the
Convertible Bonds.

As at 28 February 2013, a total of 39,062,500 ordinary shares
would have been allotted and issued if all the Convertible Bonds
were converted in full.

The Company shall redeem the outstanding principal of the
Convertible Bonds at the redemption amount representing an
internal rate of return of 12% per annum on the fifth anniversary
of the issue date of the Convertible Bonds.

26. AR

R20124E4 H20H » AN AT T
CDH King Limited ([CDHJ) 7 4 4
%8 5 250,000,000 7 JC 5 4F 0] 2 W]
W& > IR REA AT AR it 2
7N T A A (TR 1) > w026 4 i
87 6.40 Wt ([ AR D) -
GIE: 33 e aup/ - S8 TN ing e
By > B EEAT H ISk LR 5
HIH o n4R I S5 2 SR LA
T BLAE B A AR A F MRS > B
£ 5 1 2 40 B0 205 8 7 S B A B A
AT R kR 2 EFH - E
R SRR B EOICAE - nT I IR s
HCAh 55 7 25 (9 55 - R JE 15 3] CDH
W PR R S

A 3 T A8 B £ A 3 00 90 ) 6 2 4
F A 5% » AT A 5 i 64T H SR
AR

i 20134E2 H 28 H » 43£39,062,500
J 530 R T R] T o g i 5 ) 2
T AL 5% B B84T o

A BRI AT AR O 2 84T HO TR
i TLAFE LUAE A5 R AR 4F 12% 2 A [m]
e 2 <o R I T R IR £ 0 BT A AR
4o
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26. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The net proceeds received from the issue of the Convertible Bonds
have been split between the liability element and an equity
component, as follows:

27.

Nominal value of the Convertible Bonds issued %47 Al #f /I {5 5 2 T
Transaction costs 5 A

Equity component HE 2 B 1y

Liability component at date of issue LT H 2 By
Imputed interest expenses fEF A S

Liability component at 28 February 2013

Current portion R 073
Non-current portion R HAF

Imputed interest expenses are calculated using the effective
interest method by applying the effective interest rate of 14.04%
to the liability component of the Convertible Bonds.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(a)

Long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of
employment in certain circumstances to certain employees
who have completed at least five years of service with the
Group. The amount payable is dependent on the employees’
final salary and years of service, and is reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group.
The Group does not set aside any assets to fund any
remaining obligations. The long service payments are paid
out from the Group’s cash in hand when such payments are
required.

26. " HBES @

AT AT B SR 2 PSR IR A O

201342 H 28 H 2 & &4

27.

I Fy BB 0y B HE #5 B 4y - A
T

2013

2013 4F

HK$°000 #:#T 7T
250,000

(2,573)

(8,600)

238,827
28,846

267,673
(12,842)

254,831

TS B TS 5% FHE BRA S  3 UE PR
I 2 14.04% A& w5 7T # ik 1 5 1 it

Ry o

1 B A 8

(a)

S0 i 5 <

R A MR e 1)) - i A 2R
B LA T DU 1 AR AR AR
MM =D AR T B
T 28 DLt e 3 TE Y 2 21
%% B TSR WIS 4 o
T SRR B TR 5 K 4 A0 IR
VAR AR 0 R AT AE AR
A E AR AR B Ir 2 R E £
A FAF LR B o A
90 7 40 T B A ] DA S A
o BRI TS B A - T A
AT R - R B 4 T iy A
S 2 FHB A -



27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

(a)

Long service payments (continued)

The latest actuarial valuation specifically designated for the
Group’s employees were completed by a qualified actuary,
Towers Watson Hong Kong Limited, as at 28 February
2013, using the projected unit credit method.

(i) The amount recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit
obligations

FE AR A B BUHE

(ii) Movements in the net liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position are as

follows:

At 1 March

(Reversal of expense)/expense
recognised in the profit or loss
in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
(note 8(b))

At 28/29 February

W3H1H

AR AT AR
SR (Sl )

3 (K3 8(b))

n2H28/29 H

27. EBWAEH @)
@) BWRES ()
A% S O 5 T 30 ) S50 B0
BN © 4 R A B
BB it A L 7S 201348 2
28 F AR TR B0 6530 52
Ejz °

() TEARS MBS AR DU R i
RS

The Group
AL
2013 2012
2013 4% 2012 4F

HK$°000 #% 75t HK$'000 #Hs 17
15,186 19,727

(i)  7EARS MBS R DU R it
e B AR BRI T

The Group
A SE [

2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$°000 #% Tt HK$ 000 ##s T
19,727 12,745
(4,541) 6,982
15,186 19,727
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27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

(a) Long service payments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(Reversal of expense)/expense recognised in the profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income is as follows:

Current service cost

Interest cost

Net actuarial (gain)/losses
recognised

Long service payment benefit
made net of MPF benefits

AAR IR A

S

CHERRRE S (FIT) 4R
FH

AMER A G 2 RIS
(REN

The (credit)/charge is recognised in the following line
items in the profit or loss in the statement of

comprehensive income:

Cost of goods sold
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

B AR
ek i
FTECE

27. 1B B A #H @
(a) RHmHES 5
(i) fELEAEWMITAREZ
1H 2% WE R MK M

B,/ S
The Group
AR
2013 2012
20134 20124F
HK$’000 ##¥T5t HK$ 000 ## Tt
233 190
255 354
(4,906) 6,438
(123) -
(4,541) 6,982

(iv) (gl /S e T

G &R A AT UL A ] E Z

845 T H A RERR

The Group
ALEH

2013 2012
20134 2012 4F
HK$’000 ##Toc HK$000 #HT o0
(570) 969
(797) 1,166
(3,174) 4,847

(4,541) 6,982



27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Long service payments (continued)

(v) The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 28
February 2013 (expressed as weighted average) are
as follows:

Discount rate i
Future salary increases KA % T
Year 2012 2012 4
Year 2013 2013 4
Year 2014 and thereafter 2014 4 J KAz
Return of MPF balances o P 4 A 5 [

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income. On
or before May 2012, the contributions subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$20,000. The cap of monthly
relevant income has been increased to HK$25,000 in June
2012.

The Group also participates in defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes for all qualifying employees in
the PRC, Japan and Malaysia. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of independent trustees.

27. EBWAEH @)

(a)

(b)

R s 4 ()

(v)  Jir20134E2H 28 HEH
B 2 RS SR (AR
) RRATE

The Group
AL
2013 2012
2013 4F 2012 4F
1.5% 1.3%
- 5.0%
4.0% 5.0%
5.0% 5.0%
5.0% 5.0%
B 5E B R )

A T e B A RO R R
REBIGBDIE - SRR
CUR AR e ) T F) 4 B > 22 B
58 1 PR B < (SR A Rt
D) o R R
PEFOR IRFTH] > 8 S0 52 5E
NERL - R RB A H - R
TR H AR B 3 e AR B A
SR 5% 1 -
20124 5 J s LLAT A H A B
A B R % 20,000 7T -
201246 784 H fAH AR
R F W 25,000 7T ©

AL IR B AT R B T
AV R BRI AR B 28—
I8 5 e FICRARFE B o 5B
R A A A I AT
B Z RN A S o
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27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (continued)

(b)

Defined contribution retirement plan (continued)

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to
the profit or loss in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the year ended 28 February
2013 amounted to HK$8,204,000 (2012: HK$7,288,000)
representing contributions payable by the Group to the
schemes at the appropriate rates set by the local
government of the subsidiaries.

28. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

(a)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

The Group

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

27. R B A EH w0
(b) AEHLHORMREH (48)

W # E 201342 A 28 A 1E 4
FE o AR SE [ 1) 0SB TR 22
4t R B T s 1 8,204,000 ot
(20124F : #s"57,288,0007C)
S ETE 5 A A A 3R 2 7
T AR o WA 3R] AR 48 [ 4 45
FF JB > ) R B8] o s 180 RF 38 ) 1
%R -

28. BERIE & &), AfE
(a) CLHEGRIREBLIE & M A K
AL [E]
TE &7 A BT IR 0 ¥ 2 e s 1 1R
T (CERE) /BT K AE R

position and their movements during the year are as BEWT
follows:
Withholding
Depreciation tax on
in excess of Employee undistributed (Other
depreciation benefit Provision profits of  temporary
allowances  obligations for inventories ~ Taxlosses  subsidiaries differences Total
BRI WERE
GBED fE A A KRB TR
i E 5gidi] BUBEH  BEAEE R ket
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT BT BT BHTT
Deferred tax arising from: BIEBIEARA
At 1 March 2011 K013 1H (5,891) (2,103) (4,698) (235) 16,914 (6,165) (2,178)
Charged/(credited) to consolidated FRETIL/ GEA)
profit or loss (note 9(a)) (Hf3E9(a)) (2,011) (1,152) (L,171) 130 5,790 3,772 5,358
Exchange difference [ 5t 3 (163) - (75) 55 356 9 164
At 29 February 2012 and 201242 H 29 H )t
1 March 2012 2012F3A1H (8,005) (3,255) (5,944) (50) 23,060 (2,402) 3,344
Charged/(credited) to consolidated T8I/ (GEA)
profit or loss (note 9(a)) (M3 9(a)) 732 749 27 (5,721) 1392 2,797) (5,618)
Exchange difference T s 163 - 76 (55) (354) (3) (173)
At 28 February 2013 #20134 21 28 H (7,170) (2,506) (5,841) (5,826) 24,098 (5,202) (2,447)



28. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

(continued)

(a)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued)

The Group (continued)

Net deferred tax assets recognised — 7E &7 4 A B R D 38 T w2 )

on the consolidated statement of B SEBLIE G VR
financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised 7 &7 & BAHS Ik It ¥ AR 1

on the consolidated statement LR TE A AR AR
of financial position

At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with undistributed
earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised is HK$82,218,000 (2012:
HK$80,162,000). No liability has been recognised in respect
of these differences because the Group is in a position to
control the timing of reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that such differences will not be reversed
in the foreseeable future.

28. IEHERBIE CEE),AE @

(a) 7 %0 0 5 0 0 5 /2 0 £ £

(%)
AEE ] (45)

2013 2012
2013 4F 2012 4F

HK$°000 #% 75t HK$'000 #H T

(26,874) (21,036)
24,427 24,380
(2,447) 3,344

A B BB 2 R R 4 UR
ZE R AR BRI 0 R e w0 R 4 o I
A2 YW
82,218,000 It (2012 4F « i &
80,162,0007%) © Hi & 7 4 4
il 1) 2 S F% [ T IR 2 2 W T
L% %5 22 50 K AT RE S 7T L5
Al A5 W o N e % S 2 A
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28. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES 28. EIEBLIH (B ) A @
(continued)
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued) (a) Ol o2 3R & B0 I 4 A A0 A A
(48)
The Company VAT
The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the TEAS LN ) BB IR 0 2R e R 1Y
Company’s statement of financial position and movements R S ol T AR A B AR N B )
during the year are as follows: I

Depreciation in

excess of
depreciation
allowances Tax losses Total
T
BEARI 48 BiIEH% ki
HK$'000 #%Tc HK$'000 #:¥ ¢ HK$'000 #:H 1o
> 184 Deferred tax arising from: EIEBLIAAH -
At 1 March 2011 201143 H1H (134) - (134)
Charged to Company’s profit or loss f£ A/ "l ZEFTA 84 - 84
At 29 February 2012 and h20124:2 29 K&
1 March 2012 20123 H1H (50) - (50)
Charged/(credited) to Company’s  FEAAFBEFHA (F0ER)
profit or loss 55 (139) (84)

At 28 February 2013 W201342 H 28 H 5 (139) (134)




28. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised
The components of unrecognised deferred tax assets at the
year end date are as follows:

Depreciation allowances in excess of 4838 K B85 (19 37 15 S B A
related depreciation

Tax losses FiIE

Others At

Net deferred tax assets not recognised Al 52 {4 1 8 Fid 1 078 T 11

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets of
HK$14,634,000 (2012: HK$16,039,000) mainly in respect
of tax losses of certain subsidiaries because of the
unpredictability of future taxable profits.

The tax losses of approximately HK$64,332,000 (2012:
HK$94,168,000) do not have expiry date under current tax
legislation.

The tax losses of HK$2,541,000 (2012: HK$Nil) will be
expired in 9 years under current tax legislation.

Should the Group recognised all unrecognised deferred tax
assets, the profit for the year would be increased by
HK$14,634,000 (2012: HK$16,039,000).

28. BERIE CEE) /A )

(b)

TR B
HYE B 1 2 o RE R AE B
MU

The Group
AL
2013 2012
20134 20124

HK$’000 ## T5c  HK$'000 M Tt

- 8
12,140 15,560
2,494 471
14,634 16,039

A& IE B R OE O
14,634,000 7C (2012 4F =
16,039,000 ¢ ) E 24 7 # T
H B 18 2 B 2 ) o RS T
T H AR ACHRBL 2L A I RE ) >
v A A 11 952 A it A B T L
HEE -

TEBLAT BB i ) T A R H
W ow BOIE R OK Al
64,332,000 7C (2012 4F = ik ¥
94,168,000 7C) °

TE BUAT BLFS B 0 T O I8 9 4 4%
B QIR TR TR S NE R
2,541,000 7C (2012 4F = ) ©

TN A SR B B AT BT A Tl R B AR
ST T A W R o LM A
514,634,000 70 (2012 4F -
#116,039,000 7¢) ©
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. A
(a) Authorised and issued share capital (@) HEEXRCBITHRA
2013 2012
20134 20124
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
et # A Ex R E &
000 T HK$'000 E#F¢ 000 T HK$'000 &#F¢
Authorised: B
Ordinary shares of B E T 0.25 70
HK$0.25 each Elid 1,500,000 375,000 1,500,000 375,000
Issued and fully paid: ORI RER
Ordinary shares Ll
> 186 At beginning and end R A
of the year 210,336 52,584 210,336 52,584
(b) Management of capital b B‘EAREH
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is AEBMEAEHEEERS
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going PRBR AR 52 8] R 455 A8 A8 I PR A
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to RIFMEALLL % > i

support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. 5 Do Iy PR s e KA



29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b)

Management of capital (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group has been
imposed with several capital requirements from banks and
under Convertible bonds instrument on the Group’s equity
to total assets ratio, gearing ratio and consolidated tangible
net worth. As of 28 February 2013 and 29 February 2012,
the Group has complied with these capital requirements. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 28 February 2013 and 29 February
2012.

The Group monitors capital using a debt to equity ratio,
which represented by total borrowings divided by total
equity of the Group. The Group’s policy is to maintain the
debt to equity ratio not greater than 100%.

Total equity i AR
Total borrowings HAE R
Debt to equity ratio AEEREA L R

29. AR )

(b)

EAE B (4)

7% 45 B4 B B AR A > IR
52 450 37 R 0 B B A TR E
JE B VR A AR o Sy A
TP o A R A 5 R A [ AT
A a4 1) BREROR 1 2 B B~ B
5] ¥ AR T 5 Aok B AT R o AR
2 ) 1 5 R ER AT 3B A 42 1] it hn
HTEARME > B ARLEEZ
WA B AE LR - AR
K& B A G T E - #2013
£2H 280 &% 201242 A 29
H o AL G UG AR E -
A 201342 A 28H K 2012
2 H29 A IR4ERE > AREER
FIAE - HOR ol 1 2 e gL -

AEBMA AL RERE
A% > RIS 45 B 28 A 45 Bk LA R
fit AR o ASGE I 2 UK G A
BB G LR A Z 2 100% -

2013 2012

2013 4F 20124F
HK$°000 ##F . HK$'000 #hgTr
988,693 938,247
631,365 440,040
63.86% 46.90%
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30. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of

30. fEf
(a) A&EH

A AR T 2 At A R % S B 51 AR
B A AR R B ARG AR

comprehensive income and consolidated statement of BB o
changes in equity.
The Company (b) AAFE
Share  Contributed Convertible Retained Proposed
premium surplus  bonds reserve profits ~ final dividend Total
MRS
Tt it it UL fi RERA BRAMRE Eit ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
(note (0)))  (note (c)(ii)) (note (c)(v)
(@O (WEEa) (o)
At 1 March 2011 20114310 123,365 14,770 - 595,665 25,240 759,040
Dividends paid EREE - - - (5,679) (25,240) (30,919)
Proposed final dividend (2011/12)  $ERAHIES (2011/12)

(note 13) (H3E13) - - - (26,292) 26,292 -
Profit for the year AR RA - - - 157,542 - 157,542
At 29 February 2012 and 201242 129 H )

1 March 2012 201243 J11H 123,365 14,770 - 721,236 26,292 885,003
Dividends paid EREE - - - (2,103) (26,292) (28,395)
Proposed final dividend (2012/13) RRA MR E (2012/13)

(note 13) (H3k13) - - - (14,724) 14,724 -
Tssue of convertible honds BATTHREC - - 8,600 - - 8,600
Profit for the year AEERF - - - 70,342 - 70,342
At 28 February 2013 201342 /1 28 A 123,365 14,770 8,600 774,751 14,724 936,210




30. RESERVES (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(c)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the
issue of shares at a price in excess of their par value
per share and is not distributable but may be applied
in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be
issued to the shareholders of the Company as fully
paid bonus shares or in providing for the premiums
payable on repurchase of shares.

Capital reserves

Capital reserves include the values arise in
the acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, gains
or losses arises in group reorganisation and
restructuring.

Capital reserves also include the statutory reserve,
which is non-distributable, and was appropriated
from the profit after taxation of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries under the applicable laws and regulations
in the PRC.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arised from
the difference between the consolidated net assets of
the Group’s subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisation at the date on which the reorganisation
became effective, and the nominal amount of the
Company’s ordinary shares issued under the
reorganisation; less the set-off of the accumulated
losses of the Company amounting to HK$865,747,000
as at 29 February 2004 pursuant to a capital
reorganisation.

30. it e

(c)

faft At P % H B

()

(i)

(iii)

P 053 ¥ 1 4 PR 4% 38 4
JI8 ThI (L 2 fB A 06 AT T4
O 7 A iR o %
ANF IR WA x A
B Z AR AL
AR TR B AT A 3 A
T B BL A B 0y 84T T
7 2 ) B R s A Fy
I3 R A i 6 2 A4

BHALHR

B fot A L A A R AT A
JBE WA S B i 5 ) %
EAZEME - M EA
YER Tt

BRI R T2
IR 2 Rk - TIARBE
R T 2k Sk
E AR A R I R R 2 ]
ZBRBLAR BLFIHEAT o

P th

Ao T 2 H BB R R
S A T ) e 2 WA
ALZE 2 H AR 95 4 B 5
LT AT 2 A5
(B BLAR 2% W) ML 4% 7 A
A7 78 BT (H < R
A 2 7R 2004 4F- 2 A
29 H 1k AR 98 B A B ALK
Mz BEEEEY
865,747,000 7 ©
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30. RESERVES (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(c)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Contributed surplus (continued)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus if:

- it is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium
accounts.

Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 4(c)(iii) to the financial statements.

Convertible bonds reserve

Convertible bonds reserve represents the unexercised
equity component of Convertible Bonds issued by the
Group recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for Convertible Bonds in note 4(n) to
the financial statements.

30.

(c) VR X H B (1)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

B R (AT

MRS A5 1981 44 )
H(RER) > AAFH
Bz BRAR T TR UR o AR
> i iy B LL R
AN TS A5 T A B
B UK IE A E IR S
e B Z - B0 TR A
Ak

- TR - R
AE B e ) f
HEH A 3

- HEEN T EBE
(BT D £
B H OB AT IRA &
e 153 i 15 MR 2 48
o

HE 52 A i

e S0 {45 6 4 40 536 S
SETE S R R 2
A7 B 5022 B8 o 5% fili M 1%
WU 55 i 2 B 4(c) (i)
Jor o R R

] BB (27 i 7

T 45 e 0 Al AR AR
S BB AT 2 T R AR R
RATHHE SR < - S
PR A 5 R 3R B 5E 4(n)
Jie 0 2 AT A e R 0wt



31. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

There were no capital commitments for the Group or the
Company outstanding at 28 February 2013 and 29 February
2012.

At 28 February 2013, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
payable as follows:

31. &

The Group
AR

2013 2012

20134 20124

HK$°000 ## Tt HK$'000 ¥ Tt

Within 1 year 1R 146,838 146,022
After 1 year but within TEBE SR

5 years 155,712 211,159

302,550 357,181

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
three years, with an option to renew the lease when all
terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually
adjusted to reflect market rentals upon renegotiation of the
terms of the lease.

Certain leasing arrangements have been subjected to
contingent rent by reference with monthly turnover
throughout the leasing periods. The minimum guaranteed
rental has been used to arrive at the above commitments.

(a)

(b)
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted by
shareholders of the Company on 26 November 2003 (“2003 Share
Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme
is to provide incentives or rewards to participants thereunder for
their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which
the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”).

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, at any time following
the date of the adoption of the 2003 Share Option Scheme but
before the tenth anniversary of that date, to offer options to any
person belonging to any of the following classes of participants to
subscribe for shares of the Company:

any employee (whether full time or part time employee,
including any executive directors but not any non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
Invested Entity;

- any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

- any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

- any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

- any person or entity that provides research, development or
technological support or other services to the Group or any
Invested Entity; and
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

- any shareholder or any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value
of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of the grant and the average closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the grant. An offer
of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted within 28
days from the date of offer upon acceptance of the option duly
signed by the grantee together with a remittance of HK$1. The
maximum number of securities available for issue under the 2003
Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company. The maximum entitlement of each
grantee in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary
shares in issue of the Company. The option period will not be
more than ten years from the date of grant of the option and the
Company’s board of directors may at its discretion determine the
minimum period for which the option has to be held or other
restriction before the exercise of the subscription right attaching
thereon.

As at 28 February 2013 and 29 February 2012, there was no
outstanding share option under the 2003 Share Option Scheme.
No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
during the year.
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33.

34.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 28 February 2013, the Company has issued guarantees to
banks in respect of general banking and other credit facilities
extended to certain subsidiaries of the Company amounting to
HK$480,849,000 (2012: HK$492,995,000).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

(@) As at 28 February 2013, debentures have been executed by
the Group in favour of its banker charging, by way of fixed
and floating charges, all of the undertakings, properties and
assets of the Company and of its 11 subsidiaries as security
for, inter alia, all obligations and liabilities, actual or
contingent, from time to time owing by the Group to the
banker. Rental revenue of the Group is also charged in
favour of the Group’s banker.

(b) As at 28 February 2013, the Company and the Subsidiaries
have executed a second floating charge and the Company
made a guarantee to the Subsidiaries and there was a cross
guarantee among the Subsidiaries in favour of Rosy Blue
HK to pledge all of the Subsidiaries’ respective rights to and
title and interest from time to time in their inventories or
stock-in-trade and their receivables from their overseas
fellow subsidiaries in connection with the sales and supply
of any inventory or stock-in-trade to such overseas fellow
subsidiaries as a continuing security for the Debts. As at 28
February 2013, the Debts amounted to HK$112,911,000
(2012: HK$170,692,000).
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed in note 38 of the financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions with its related parties during the year:

(a) Related party transactions

1.

ii.

During the year ended 28 February 2013, TSL M&D, a
subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw materials
and finished goods from Rosy Blue HK amounting to
HK$282,729,000 (2012: HK$439,536,000). At 28
February 2013, the amount due to Rosy Blue HK was
HK$112,911,000 (2012: HK$170,692,000).

During the year ended 28 February 2013, TSL M&D,
purchased raw materials and finished goods from
Rosy Blue Jewellery (HK) Limited (“Rosy Blue J(HK)”)
amounting to HK$2,967,000 (2012: HK$Nil). At 28
February 2013, the amount due to Rosy Blue J(HK)
was HK$988,000 (2012: HK$Nil).
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

iii.

iv.

During the year ended 28 February 2013, GZ Tai Yi, a
subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw materials
and finished goods from Guangzhou Rosyblue
Jewellery Co Ltd. (“Rosy Blue GZ”) amounting to
HK$5,404,000 (2012: HK$Nil). At 28 February 2013,
the amount due to Rosy Blue GZ was HK$2,606,000
(2012: HK$Nil).

During the year ended 28 February 2013, TSLIKK, a
subsidiary of the Company, purchased raw materials
and finished goods from Rosy Blue Limited (“Rosy
Blue JP”) amounting to HK$12,000 (2012: HK$Nil). At
28 February 2013 and 29 February 2012, there was
no amount due to Rosy Blue JP.

During the year ended 28 February 2013, EF, a
subsidiary of the Company, sold raw materials to
BTSL through Rosy Blue (Shanghai) Diamond
Company Limited (“Rosy Blue SH”), an authorised
diamond trading company in the PRC, amounting to
HK$131,947,000 (2012: HK$237,750,000).
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Related party transactions (continued)

vi.  During the year ended 28 February 2013, TSL M&D
sold raw materials to BTSL through Rosy Blue SH
amounting to HK$6,798,000 (2012: HK$Nil).

vii. During the year ended 28 February 2013, TSL M&D
sold raw materials to Rosy Blue HK amounting to
HK$12,000 (2012: HK$201,000).

viii. During the year ended 28 February 2013, TSL M&D
sold raw materials to Rosy Blue J(HK) amounting to
HK$36,000 (2012: HK$Nil).

Rosy Blue HK, Rosy Blue J(HK), Rosy Blue GZ, and Rosy
Blue SH are subsidiaries and Rosy Blue JP is the fellow
subsidiary of Prime Investments S.A., who has limited
voting rights as a preference shareholder of Partner
Logistics Limited, of which the control of the board of
directors remains with Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy (“Mr.
Tommy Tse”). Mr Tommy Tse is the ultimate controlling
party and substantial shareholder of the Company, and the
spouse of Ms. Yau On Yee, Annie (“Ms. Annie Yau”), the
Executive Director of the Company. The transactions
referred to above were not continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the transactions
were carried out on normal commercial terms and in the
ordinary course of business.
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Remuneration for key management of the Group is as
follows:

Short-term employee benefits R 5 A A
Post-employment benefits & 4% A8 A

As at 28 February 2013, (i) Mr. Tommy Tse, was employed
by a subsidiary of the Company as the Chief Merchandising
Officer; (ii) Mr. Tse Sui Luen (“Mr. Tse Senior”), the father
of Mr. Tommy Tse and father-in-law of Ms. Annie Yau, was
employed by a subsidiary of the Company as the Founder.
During the year, remuneration of HK$1,248,000 (2012:
HK$480,000) and HK$1,473,000 (2012: HK$480,000) were
paid to Mr. Tommy Tse and Mr. Tse Senior respectively.
Subsequent to the year end, Mr. Tommy Tse was re-
designated as Deputy Chief Executive Officer — Supplies.

The transactions constituted a continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

(continued)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUES

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(i)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through sales and purchases that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate, and
the Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
United States dollars (“US$”). The Group does not
hold or issue any derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes or to hedge against fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates. The Group mitigates this risk
by conducting the sales and purchases transactions in
the same currency, whenever possible.

In the opinion of the directors, US$ are reasonably
stable under the Linked Exchange Rate System with
HK$ and accordingly, the Company does not have any
significant foreign exchange risk.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUES (continued)

(a) Financial risk management (continued)

(ii)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk mainly arises from granting
credit to customers in the ordinary course of
operations. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk on recognised financial assets is limited to their
carrying amount at the end of the reporting period.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group reviews the recoverability of receivables
individually and collectively periodically and at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment loss is made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the management of the Group considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.
The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of counter
parties and customers.

The credit risks for cash and cash equivalents of the
Group and the Company are also regarded as
immaterial as they are deposited with major banks
and other financial institutions located in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

The Group does not hold other material collateral over
the financial assets. None of the financial assets of the
Company are secured by collateral or other credit
enhancements. The credit policies have been followed
by the Group since prior years and are considered to
have been effective in limiting the Group’s exposure to
credit risk to a desirable level.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 36. F % L B B K oy R AEL A

ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUES (continued) HEC))
(a) Financial risk management (continued) (a) P b A8 B (4%)
(iii) Liquidity risk (iii) wHE & BT

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its cash
flow management.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements, its compliance with lending covenants
and its relationship with its banks to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, based on
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the end of the reporting period)
and the earliest date the Group can be required to

pay.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUES (continued)

(a) Financial risk management (continued)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)
Specifically, for term loans which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the
bank’s sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash
outflow based on the earliest period in which the
entity can be required to pay, that is if the lenders
were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect.

No fixed

repayment
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demand

I E
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Trade and other payables JEfHRE R A RERT 3 236,007

Convertible bonds W =

Bank overdrafts - secured BATE S - AL 19,914
Term loans and trade financing subject %K &R a2

10 a repayment on demand clause EMERRE R 335,748

Obligations under finance leases HERE RS =

591,669
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUES (continued)

(a)

Financial risk management (continued)

(iii) Liquidity risk (continued)

36. SRS L WA B A% 3 oA A

#F
() S BT E (40)

(iii) GBI (A

2012
20124
Maturity analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows
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No fixed
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Trade and other payables JE A B AT 3 236,212 387,368 - - 623,580
Interest bearing payable AT - 123,873 - - 123,873
Bank overdrafts - secured SFATE L - A 44,063 - - - 44,063

Term loans and trade financing subject % ER EE K2

to a repayment on demand clause EMERREG MG 209,246 - - - 209,246
Obligations under finance leases R BRI - 4,409 1,899 749 7,057
549,521 515,650 1,899 749 1,067,819
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disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the
maturity analysis. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not consider that it
is probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe
that such term loans will be repaid in accordance with

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 36. S5 R B B % O U AE A
ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUES (continued) ERE
(a) Financial risk management (continued) (a) BABEBEA P (49)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (iii) )G 2 B (A7)
The following table summarises the maturity analysis ™ A B A 78 4 R
of term loans with a repayment on demand clause R AR 2 A R R
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the B o e T 2 T E
loan agreements. The amounts include interest IR [H) R AT 22 2
payments computed using contractual rates. As a H o A7 o B B a6
result, these amounts were greater than the amounts NG R RS 2 A

BT e - 4 &
FH B E e [
T SRAB IR | IRy W] 468 A
W iE Z & HH - KA
Gz B R IR > 3
R AT A KT REAT

the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan i SRRV 2R R 2 94

agreements. HE - HEMG ZEH
VRS S @ BRI S e
i BT 2 T E R R H
B -

Maturity analysis - Term loans and trade financing subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

BT H T - TR R e 2 0 B AR T A R

No fixed
repayment Total
terms/on Less than undiscounted
demand Tyear  1to2years  2tob5years cash outflows

i
R/ AHBLE &

BRI TEUT TEE 25 QEESE AR
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Pl T Pl T Pl T Pl T T

338,818

28 February 2013 2013427 28 H - 338,818 -

29 February 2012 2012421291 - 231,212 16,203 27,561 274,976



36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 36. F % L B B K oy R AEL A

ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUES (continued) HEC))
(a) Financial risk management (continued) (a) P b A8 B (4%)
(iv) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (iv) Bl R AT AEF %
a3
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash B4 it 1 ) S B ds
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because A 7T 55 *UE“ ) 3B
of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest BT H 2 RACH 4 &

rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market
interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
borrowings. The following sensitivity analysis have
been determined assuming that change in interest
rates had occurred at the year end date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rates for financial
instruments in existence at that date. A 1% increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit
for the year ended 28 February 2013 and the retained
profits as of 28 February 2013 would decrease/
increase by HK$1,780,000 (2012: decrease/increase
by HK$2,883,000). This is mainly attributes to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate
borrowings.

W) 2 B e 2 o E
S N OLE N SRR RS
SH B TR H
(BB 2 JE o

A% 4 [ 2 A 3 By
FENE Rt R IR SN
PLN Z SO o M ) R
e M) A A Y S AF 2 H
AT E > SlF 2R R
W% H B A7 A5 1 B T H
i THT 3 2 A1) 26 B o TE
OISR =1 N = RN
R S Ja ey > BT
TR SRk R 2k 1 e
R - BB B A
Z & BUAT RE S B A Y
Al fli o

fi Fl Z 5 m, R Bk 1
WﬁFﬁﬁEm # AR 1A
s ARSI 2013 4F
zﬂstlltiPJEZ‘.ﬁﬂ
Bk 201342 4 28 H 2
R B8 B WD 4
1,780,000 7T (2012
B s s
2,883,0007C) « 75 £
SR A A 4 TR LT B
(EEE Pl
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 36. BB a4 B S N FeAE A
ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUES (continued) Ft
(b) Estimation of fair values (b) ARMEZAGHE

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with
a maturity of less than one year (including trade and other
receivables, cash at bank, trade and other payables) are
assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of
interest bearing payable and finance lease liabilities is
estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at current market interest rates for similar
financial instruments.

The fair value of non-trade balances due from/to group and
related companies has not been determined as the timing of
the expected cash flows of these balances cannot be
reasonably determined because of the relationship.

T 45 N B 2 B i I B
T (B0 9 B ARG 0 S L A B i
A BRAT AR AT IR AR B
T REAT3K) 2 4 e R E 2 B
HA AR © B AE 85 £ A
2N TR T A R A i R
M B BB L E 2 BT 11T 45 7
HPEL 2 BUH -

T R AR R i A A SR
R K B Bt 2 W) 2 O B2 ) A R T
J B Ui IR (] A 3 PR
E S A A B S R 2
FfH -



37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the reporting date are as follows:

The Group

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables
Deposits

Cash at bank and in hand

Total

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Bank overdrafts — secured
Bank loans

Interest bearing payable
Convertible Bonds

Total

At the end of the reporting period, the directors consider that all

Vs

JRE AR e A B W
%

SRATHGER L

st

T £

RS R R A AT 3K
SRATIB S - AR
SRATE K

FHE AT K

Al A

2=

PO

financial instruments approximate their fair values.

37. ME T HAaME

BRI 2 B W5 TR AR &5 A 2 IR T

e
A
Loans and receivables
B R
2013 2012
20134 20124

HK$°000 #¥T7T

179,374
61,547
205,848

446,769

HK$’000 ##Tc

166,735
58,636
102,512

327,883

Financial liabilities at amortised costs

DLSHESS 1 AR AR 2 s 1
2013 2012
20134 20124

HK$°000 ##Tc

546,288
19,914
335,748

267,673
1,169,623

HK$°000 #¥ Tt

623,580

44,063
269,246
120,000

1,056,889

RAEREH > EERLTAMBE TR
B (BN S(E N T K22 5 o
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

37. MB TR m

The Company AT
Loans and receivables
B K
2013 2012
20134F 20124
HK$’000 #¥Foc HK$000 i1 o0
Financial assets W
Due from subsidiaries JRE AL 2 ) 3T 609,370 386,243
Cash at bank and in hand SRAT &G R M L4 195 134
Total st 609,565 386,377
Financial liabilities at amortised costs
DA 88 1 AR AR 2 85 1
2013 2012
2013 4F 2012 4F
HK$’000 #:#Fc HK$ 000 #:#T 0
Financial liabilities P A
Other payables and accruals FoAth A 8% R 122 2,502 1,541
Convertible bonds CIELS5 e+ 267,673 -
Total At 270,175 1,541

At the end of the reporting period, the directors consider that all

financial instruments approximate their fair values.

SR MERA A MY TR
BN A ENMER LR -



38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Purchase of non-controlling interests

On 29 February 2012, the Group acquired 19.54% equity
interests in two 80.46% owned subsidiaries (TSL China and
IAC) from the non-controlling shareholders at total cash
consideration of HK$150,000,000. The effect of the
acquisition on the equity attributable to the owners of the
Company is as follows:

Share of net assets in the subsidiaries acquired

38. ZEBEeMBEMEE

(a)

JRE AV o S B g 2 ) 2 e 4

Loss on acquisition recognised directly in equity 55 8 B 12 A HE 25 72

Consideration g

Consideration satisfied by: A LT B 77 KA

Cash (paid during the year ended B4 OR#kE 2012492 H29H
29 February 2012) IEAEEE N AT

Interest bearing payable hE AT 3K

The interest bearing payable of HK$120,000,000 is
unsecured and interest bearing at the prime rate of The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited. The
balance was settled by instalments during the year ended
28 February 2013.

Major non-cash transaction

During the year ended 29 February 2012, a dividend to the
non-controlling shareholders of approximately
HK$14,239,000 was settled by the trade receivables due
from the non-controlling shareholders to the Group.

(b)

St S e I SRR 2%
201242 H29H » A 4
PLB & R E A
150,000,000 Jt [i1 I F f sk S
Wi B R B 80.46% HE
ERITIS /NGNS 0 il
IAC) 1919.54% HE #i o %8 T K
WS A 0 WA N RE A R £ B
EL 1 N

HK$’ 000 #EH T 7T

128,395
21,605

150,000

HK$’000 #:#TIc

30,000
120,000

150,000

7 120,000,000 7T (9 71 B
At 3 Sz A0 A A K 4 A vt g
MGRAT AT BR 2N AT A U
HAEF R EHE > 3 LA 5 X
W E 201342 H 28 H Ik 4

FEEHEL S
HE20124F2 H 29 H R4 >
#) s 14,239,000 TG IR BT
T 2 P P S LA I iz S 2 R SR
JREA HE A3 o
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39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 1 March 2013, 15,850,000 options were granted to the
directors, employees and service providers of the Company and
its subsidiaries pursuant to the 2003 Share Option Scheme
detailed in note 32. The exercise price of options were granted at
HK$4.13 per ordinary share of the Company (the “Share”), which
is the highest of (i) the closing price of HK$4.13 per Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date
of grant; and (ii) the average closing price of HK$4.08 per Share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of HK$0.25 per Share on the date of grant. (the
“Options”)

The Options are valid for a period of 7 years from 1 March 2013
to 29 February 2020 (both dates inclusive) to be exercised in the
following manner:

Tranche 1 15% of Options granted shall be exercisable
from 1 September 2014 to 29 February
2020 (both dates inclusive)

Tranche 2 15% of Options granted shall be exercisable
from 1 March 2015 to 29 February 2020
(both dates inclusive)

Tranche 3 30% of Options granted shall be exercisable
from 1 March 2016 to 29 February 2020
(both dates inclusive)

Tranche 4 40% of Options granted shall be exercisable
from 1 March 2017 to 29 February 2020
(both dates inclusive)

NOtQS tO the FinanCia] Statements (continued)
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39. eI 1% 20

AR TR B EE 32 AR B 19 2003 4E
11 H 26 H il A2 ) 183 B A 2 6
HE wH #> R20134F3H1H #
15,850,000 13 W R AE T A ) S HL B
BTz #EE - E8 LIREHEER -
5 H W PR 2 A7 ol £ 2 A A ) 4 T
R 4130 (TR ) > A BER
TAF & IEZ e () RO i 7%
F B 52 o % 1 A 1R R TR e T
A U 41398 5 M (i) B R 2
T4 H WIHT AR 2S5 F s g
A F A 2R BT 71 1 249 5 i (A R ot
4.087G 5 M (iii) A 452 1 H 1 6 1 (B B
JREis ¥ 0.25 70 (T WEIERE D) -

W HE 2 A ROW 201343 H 1 HilE
E20204E2 29 H Ik (3G EEMH)
BE-EES WU T T AT
fifi

Bt ol B R OB 2 15%HH
201449 1 HAEZE 2020
HE2H29H I (UFEE R
W H) W7 AT

M B M B HE 2 15%
201543 41 HiE % 2020
F2A29H 1L (EEE R
M A ) AP AT

M B B HE 2 30%
201643 41 HiE % 2020
HF2A29H 1L (EEH R
W H) AT AT

SNt B B HE 2 40%
201743 41 Hi#% 2020
F2H29H 1L (ELEH R
M A ) 7 F AT



39.

40.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 39. i I AR 2 I ()

(continued)

The fair value of Options granted, was determined by using the
binomial model. The significant inputs into the model were the
closing price of the underlying share of the Options of HK$4.13 at
the grant date, exercise price of HK$4.13, expected volatility of
the Company’s share price: 51.212% p.a., expected life of Options
of 7 years, expected dividend yield of 3.414% p.a., annual risk-
free interest rate of 0.85% p.a. and exercise multiple of 2.47. The
fair value of Options granted are as follows:

B 5% Hh 11 B S R 1) 2 A (e T 3 L
W EA SR o Rl IR T Ik P
4 5 R AL TS L U0 A B R 0
Wi T A e 413 9T - AT A W
41370 ~ AR A R AR 2 T 0 O A
51.212% ~ i F HE Y 8109 4 1 7 4F
T ) 1 B B A 4F 3.414% ~ I A B 4E
FIR0.85% MAT G # /G 2.47 - %
HH A B R A 2 FU(E AR

Fair value No. of Total
Exercise period per Option Options granted Option Value
Tl IR TER SEFgiLib] g
) A IE R E fEH
1 September 2014 - 29 February 2020 20149 H 1 H—20204-2 4 29 H HK$1.62 2,377,500 HK$3,851,550
B 1.627C 13,851,550 T
1 March 2015 - 29 February 2020 201543 11 H—-20204E2 A 29 H HK$1.62 2,377,500 HK$3,851,550
B 1.627C 3,851,550 1€
1 March 2016 - 29 February 2020 201643 11 H—202042H 29 H HK$1.62 4,755,000 HK$7,703,100
B 1.627C 17,703,100 T
1 March 2017 - 29 February 2020 201743 11 H—20204E2 29 H HK$1.61 6,340,000 HK$10,207,400
161 #55 10,207,400 7
Total A5t 15,850,000 HK$25,613,600
425,613,600 7C

ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY 40. Fe¥ERIT

At 28 February 2013, the directors consider the immediate
holding company to be Partner Logistics Limited, which is
incorporated in the BVI, the ultimate holding company to be Blink
Technology Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI, and the
ultimate controlling party to be Mr. Tse Tat Fung, Tommy.

201342 H 28 H > HH L - it
9 JE R L BE S B SL M Partner
Logistics Limited % EL & ¥ i 23 A >
e R IR ) 5% S R R I R
A% 57 ) Blink Technology Limited
T e B P I N+ it e e e 24 -
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A S 5 B

RESULTS 244

Turnover -]
Profit before taxation ISR, i 28 )
Taxation i 7H

Profit for the year A A
Attributable to: JREA 3 05 -

Owners of the Company &2 ml#EA A
Non-controlling interests 12 i i HHE #5

Profit for the year A FE B A

2013
HK$’000
ki

3,562,819

99,858
(27,773)

72,085

72,234
(149)

72,085

Year ended 28th/29th February

HFE2 H28/29 H F4EfE
2012 2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000

T T T
3,359,063 2,517,543 2,017,572

235,807 230,663 199,095
(54,811) (30,425) (52,344)
180,996 200,238 146,751
162,347 176,118 121,690
18,649 24,120 25,061
180,996 200,238 146,751

2009
HK$’000
T T

1,959,360

159,500
(35,022)

124,478

104,757
19,721

124,478



ASSETS AND LIABILITIES % 7 K& £ {8

Property, plant and
equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Deposits
Other asset
Current assets
Current liabilities

Obligation under
finance leases
Employee benefit

obligations
Convertible bonds

Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable

to owners of

the Company
Non-controlling

interests

TOTAL EQUITY

VI ~ B R
B

I EE
R A E
s
Fofth e 7
RENEE
RENEH

B S RIE
(AU

RIEdess

HEAERE I S 15

A T i

[N

et

ZN/NEIE ZSUN
FEAL FE 25 K8

TR R SR 2

P25 4 A

2013
HK$’000
i T 7

131,233
99

26,874
29,551
500
2,032,476
(935,258)

1,285,475

(2,338)

(15,186)
(254,831)
(24,427)

988,693

52,584
936,210

988,794

(101)
988,693

As at 28th/29th February

2012
HK$°000
i T 72

137,932

21,036
23,126
500
1,912,498
(1,110,186)

984,906

(2,552)

(19,727)

(24,380)
938,247

52,584
885,663

938,247

938,247

w2H28/29H

2011
HK$’000
i T 72

124,538

19,015

500
1,625,218
(805,438)

963,833

(1,825)

(12,745)

(16,837)
932,426

52,584
759,040

811,624

120,802
932,426

2010
HK$’000
s T 7

118,593

22,244

500
1,316,628
(713,064)

744,901

(203)

(11,152)

(12,969)
720,577

52,584
574,782

627,366

93,211
720,577

2009
HK$’000
s T

134,625

26,732

500
1,050,499
(603,894)

608,462

(308)

(22,323)

(6,885)
578,946

52,203
458,640

510,843

68,103
578,946

>213



D214

Summary of Properties

LB S P

Location

1 B

Gross floor
area
(Square Feet)
BEEEE
(¥HR)

Percentage
interest in
property
/e
=

Category of
tenure
FHH

28

Usage
JSik:S

Private Car Parking Space

Nos. 43-50 and 73, Basement, and
Lorry Car Parking Space Nos. 1-4,

6, 11 and 14, 1st Floor

Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street,
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

vk JUBEAL M R AR 1 30 SRBLZE TR K
R 43-50 5% M 73 SR K AL HLA K
—H#E1-49% - 65F > 11 K& 14 5EEHIAHL

N/A

100%

Units A1-A7, B, Front and Rear Portion,
Storeroom No. 3 and 5, Ground Floor;
Units A1-A2, B and C, 1st Floor;

Unit E-H, 2nd Floor, and

Units A-K and Flat Roof, 3rd Floor
Summit Building, 30 Man Yue Street,
Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

s JUREAL I RAR 1 30 97 ILE TR K
R A1-A7 B0~ BEAL > AIETG
3R 5RREME  —HEA1-A2 B - B I C AL ;
T B-H BT S S A-K A T B

91,455

100%

Units A & B, 1st Floor, Shui Ki Industrial Building,
No. 18, Wong Chuk Hang Road,

Aberdeen, Hong Kong

T B AT BT YU 18 PR Bl L2
—HEAZEBHAL

10,716

100%




Gross floor | Percentage
area interest in | Category of
(Square Feet)| property tenure
Location EEME YEER FHH Usage
i B (EER) = »E A

4 Unit A1 on Level 1 and 2, Block 2,

Heng Chang Garden, Beijing, PRC 1,654 100% L R

R E B A 2 ) — 2 AT AL

5 Flat 01, 23rd Floor, Block F, Beijing Rome Garden,
Cao Hui Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC
L 1,735 100% L R

e B b T 0 o R SR e S AL R

FEE =1 =
L:  Long term lease L. R4
M:  Medium term lease M: i
C:  Carpark C: AFA
I: Industrial unit I: LEH B
R:  Residential R:  fEEH > 215
N/A: Not applicable N/A: A



© Copyright Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited. All rights reserved.

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying,
recording, or otherwise, without the prior written permission of TSL.






the artisanis

FSC

www.fsc.org

MIX

Paper from
responsible sources

FSC™ C102904




	Cover
	Inside Cover
	Table of Contents
	Year at a Glance
	Financial Highlights
	Corporate Information
	Letter to the Shareholders
	Management’s Discussion & Analysis
	Directors & Senior Management Profile
	Product Profile
	Report of the Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Summary of Properties
	Inside Back Cover
	Back Cover



